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CORPORATE PROFILE
£ LM

China SCE Group Holdings Limited (“China SCE” or the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the”Group”), was
established in 1996 and with its shares listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) in February 2010 (Stock Code: 1966). The Group’s major
businesses include property development, commercial management,
property management and long-term rental apartments business. The
Company is headquartered in Shanghai for its business operations,
while implementing regional focused development strategy in the
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, the Bohai Rim Economic Zone,
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the West
Taiwan Strait Economic Zone and the Central Western Region.

The Group's property projects are distributed in 60 cities, including
Beijing, Shanghai, Tianjin, Chongging, Chengdu, Suzhou, Hangzhou,
Nanjing, Zhengzhou, Qingdao, Jinan, Xiamen, Nanchang and
Kunming, etc. Its products cover a wide range of properties including
high-rise residential buildings, offices, shopping malls and long-term
rental apartments. The Company upholds “We Build to Inspire” as its
key value proposition, “Creating Smart Living to Help Seize
Happiness” as its mission. The Company was awarded the “2022
China Top 100 Real Estate Developers”, “2022 Top 50 of China Real
Estate Developers” and “Fortune China 500" in 2022.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates owned a land bank with an aggregate planned gross
floor area (“GFA") of approximately 33.87 million square metres
("sg.m."), which is believed to suffice the development by the Group
in the next two to three years. In the future, China SCE will continue
to deepen the strategic plan of “One Body Two Wings” and secure
the regional leading position by implementing more proactive and
prudent development strategies. In addition, the Company will strive
to become a more competitive property developer in the People’s
Republic of China ("PRC").
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Yuanlai

Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok

Mr. Huang Youquan

Mr. Wong Lun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
Mr. Lu Hong Te
Mr. Dai Yiyi

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Li Siu Po

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Li Siu Po

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Hong Te
Mr. Dai Yiyi

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Dai Yiyi (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BEER

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Hong Te
Mr. Dai Yiyi

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Huang Youquan (Chairman)
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
Mr. Lu Hong Te

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO
HONG KONG LAWS

Chiu & Partners

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

SCE Tower

No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road
Honggiao Business District, Shanghai
China
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 2801, Hysan Place
500 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
BEER

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: ir@sce-re.com
Fax: (852) 2342 6643

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1966

COMPANY WEBSITE

WWW.sce-re.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 755 17 2

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

4

BaERRHE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=T-HLEE

2022 2021 Change
—E-= = St k=)
RMB’000 RMB'000 (%)
AR®T T AREET T
Revenue WS 26,705,112 37,737,447 (29.2)
Gross profit EF 4,420,333 8,173,622 (45.9)
Profit attributable to owners A RIHEAR ARG T
of the parent 24,544 3,070,022 (99.2)
Earnings per share sR2AF
— Basic — HEK RMBO.6 cents RMB72.7 cents
ARM0.6% AR®T727 5 (99.2)
— Diluted — s RMBO.6 cents RMB72.2 cents
AR¥0.6 7 ANRET225 (99.2)
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL MBI EREE
POSITION
31 December 31 December
2022 2021 Change
—E-CF —E-—F
+t=A=+—-8H +=-A=1+—H %
RMB’000 RMB'000 (%)
AR®T T AREET T
Total assets BERTE 193,964,068 195,012,986 (0.5)
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTERESR 15,016,058 20,005,869 (24.9)
Total debts B4R (44,157,148) (50,198,334) (12.0)
Total liabilities BEERE (157,338,827)  (152,305,875) 33
Total equity W% A KR 36,625,241 42,707,111 (14.2)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the
results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December
2022.

HENURRK :
RARAIREAEEBHE
—EC F T A=1T—
HIFFERZESE o

Wong Chiu Yeung Chairman
B5HE TE

RESULTS E

Over the past year, the global economy was severely challenged by BE8—F - A EERMEGEBEAEZRES
the pandemic unseen in a century and geopolitical conflicts, and the  HIF » 2L EERE T D BEEH S - BE
world was filled with uncertainties due to overwhelming changes. & BIEIRE 12K - <t 57 7850 2 1% A M R EE
2022 was also a difficult year for private real estate enterprises. Since |4 | YN REEHENE  EHBAHHREL
September 2021 when the first domino fell in the real estate industry  #—% | B =2 = —F A AUK  BHIES —
and triggered a financial tsunami, many private real estate enterprises BB hEFAEIT » 2|3 T /BERO S RIE N, -
defaulted on debts due to limited liquidity, and the whole industry AKEHEREEPR AR EEEERIEL
had entered a crisis that lasted for 16 months. TE—RFRE | BHETELET16EAMN
e - Dranbstt |
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As the tide receded, employees at China SCE worked to sustain
operations with resilience and determination. Dampened by the
sliding market demand and COVID-19 pandemic, for the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group recognised a revenue of approximately
RMB26.705 billion, representing a decrease of approximately 29.2%
over last year. Due to the decrease in revenue from sales of properties
and the provision for impairment on property projects resulted from
declining property selling prices, profit attributable to owners of the
parent substantially declined to approximately RMB24.54 million.

CONTRACTED SALES

To stimulate the weak real estate market, regulation has been
constantly loosened at both state and local levels, yet producing few
results. The Group believes that the market is still at its bottom. In
2022, the Group together with its joint ventures and associates
achieved a contracted sales amount of approximately RMB59.023
billion and a contracted sales area of approximately 4.91 million
sg.m., representing a decrease of approximately 43.5% and 34.2% as
compared with those of last year, respectively.

To strengthen sales and accelerate cash collection, the Group required
sales management personnel at all levels to conduct adequate
investigation at project sites and tailor precise strategies. Moreover,
the Group sought for reliable partners, and built trust with sales
agents and other external stakeholders to increase customer visits and
conversions. Also, it reasonably analysed time nodes in sales, properly
deployed promotional efforts and scientifically scheduled goods
supply, to ensure a controllable marketing pace and facilitate
sustained sales.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

During the year, the Group together with its joint ventures and
associates had an aggregate of over 120 projects for sale in over 50
cities, five of which were newly launched during the year. The six
cities with the biggest contracted sales amounts were Hangzhou,
Beijing, Quanzhou, Kunming, Nanjing and Shanghai, which accounted
for about 52.8% of the contracted sales amounts of the Group
together with its joint ventures and associates.

FINANCING STRATEGY

Thanks to its robust and controllable liability structure built on a
prudent financial philosophy, the firm belief of its team and a long-
term steady operation, the Group is strongly backed in its efforts to
get through the current financing and operating difficulties.

Due to frequent debt defaults by private real estate enterprises, credit
bond issue both offshore and onshore almost came to a halt in 2022.
However, seizing the opportunity in overseas financing market, in
January 2022, the Group issued offshore US$150,000,000 senior
notes due in September 2024 with a coupon rate of 5.95%. To
prevent and defuse financial risks in the real estate market, China
rolled out intensive policies in 2022 fourth quarter to boost real estate
financing. Thanks to the policies, the Group issued the first tranche of
2023 medium-term notes in January 2023, which has a size of
RMB1.5 billion, a term of three years with a coupon rate of 4.1%,
with China Bond Insurance Co., Ltd. (“CBIC") providing unconditional
and irrevocable joint and several liability guarantee. Being one of the
first CBIC-backed private real estate enterprises in 2023 and the
success in bond issue demonstrated the confidence of both investors
and regulators in the Group’s development.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
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Since December 2022, the Group has successively signed strategic
cooperation agreements with several commercial banks, receiving
more than RMB43 billion of loans from them. According to the
agreements, the said banks will provide necessary financing services
for the Group, and will cooperate with the Group on real estate
development loans, personal housing mortgage loans, bond
underwriting and investment, mergers and acquisitions financing and
supporting services for real estate projects, rental house financing,
letters of guarantee for supervision over funds from pre-sales,
offshore financing, and loans against outbound security, etc.

The Group will keep a close eye on the implementation of various
financial policies, make full use of policy tools, and further
communicate with financial institutions to tailor region-specific
financing plans. Meanwhile, it will step up efforts to secure financing
guarantee from CBIC and bond issue, so as to ease the pressure on
cash flows through various channels.

OUTLOOK

Driven by urbanisation in China, real estate, a pillar industry of the
national economy, experienced a boom yet extensive and unorderly
expansion. Five years ago, as we recognised the business growth
without quality is not sustainable, we developed the “One Body Two
Wings” strategy for coordinated development, which helped build
our competence in differentiation. Going forward, we will upgrade
the strategy, focus more on core cities and regions where we have a
competitive advantage, and tap further into the market, customers
and products, so as to sharpen our competitiveness.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

With the optimisation of China’s real estate policies, the real estate
industry is expected to operate on a brand-new model and embrace
an era where customers and products are prioritised. Quality is
fundamental to China SCE, we will focus more on customer demand,
product research and development and creating values for customers,
in pursuit of stronger competitive edges in the new market landscape.

Improving operational safety, building a cash flow and operating
quality-oriented business model, maintaining financial prudence and
self-discipline and driving sustainability will be what guide us forward;
being led by corporate culture, reinforcing and improving the
cognitive power of our management team, strengthening the
competence of our organisation and building a competitive and
reliable team on high consensus will be a new normal in our
management. Through mutual reinforcement between operating
ability and organisational ability, we will be more self-adaptive and
self-driven, thus become better positioned for sustainable
development to fulfill our centennial aspiration.

In terms of new businesses, we will seize more opportunities, develop
the asset management model, reduce reliance on financing, and
improve the coordination with properties development. Guided by the
philosophy of “Regional Focus, Coordination for Coexistence and
Digital Empowerment”, we will strengthen the coexistence operation
model of Funworld, enrich urban consumption and social scenarios

and create a better life for customers.
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As the real estate is bottoming out with favorable policies and the
pandemic is fading away, private real estate enterprises are to
embrace the dawn. 2023 will be a promising year, as China’s
economy will remain strong and the Chinese will be as eager to
change their destiny as ever. China SCE has the courage to overcome
difficulties and the ability to build a better future. All employees at
China SCE are dedicated, determined enterprising and resilient, we
will work together to navigate through every cycle and usher into a
new journey.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Last, on behalf of the Board of Directors, I'll extend my sincere thanks
to all of our employees, shareholders, customers and partners.

Wong Chiu Yeung
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
30 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREF N D

MARKET REVIEW

In 2022, inflation in Western countries such as the United States and
Europe was the highest in 40 years, and the shift in monetary policy
from extreme quantitative easing to aggressive increases in interest
rates, along with the resurgence of the pandemic and geopolitical
conflicts, have greatly increased the difficulty and uncertainty of
economic recovery in China and the world. Also, with the frequent
debt defaults of private real estate companies in the PRC, property
purchasers are gradually less willing to purchase properties, most of
them have adopted a wait-and-see attitude; hence, the sales volume
of commodity housing in 2022 had a significant year-on-year
decrease, the real estate in the PRC has experienced unprecedented
challenges, and the whole real estate industry is in dire straits.

Since November 2022, the PRC government has proposed to support
enterprises including private real estate companies to issue bonds for
refinancing, and the People's Bank of China and the China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission have introduced 16 measures
to support the stable and healthy development of the real estate
market in the hope of instilling confidence in the market. Even though
local governments have been relaxing purchase restrictions, lowering
down payment for the first property, lowering mortgage rates,
offering subsidies and housing concessions to boost the housing
demand, the fundamentals of the real estate market have yet to
improve, and the confidence of property purchasers has yet to be
restored. In 2022, the sales amount of national commodity house was
approximately RMB13,330.8 billion, representing a decrease of 26.7%
as compared with the same period last year, including a 28.3% year-
on-year decline in residential housing sales; the sales area of national
commodity house was approximately 1.36 billion sq.m., a decline of
24.3% as compared to the same period last year, including a 26.8%
decrease in residential housing sales area as compared with the same
period last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Contracted Sales

Over the past year, in the face of industry risks and the impact of
the pandemic, the confidence of domestic property purchasers
has plummeted and the volume of commodity housing
transactions in major cities has slowed down significantly, with
the country's commodity housing sales and sales area hitting the
lowest in recent years. In the fourth quarter of 2022, although the
relief efforts on the policy side continued to increase, they had
not yet reached the market side and the property market was still
in a stage of bottoming out. In 2022, the Group achieved
contracted sales amounted to approximately RMB59.023 billion
for the year, including contracted sales of approximately
RMB12.377 billion by joint ventures and associates, and
contracted sales area of approximately 4.91 million sq.m.,
including contracted sales area of approximately 1.08 million
sg.m. by joint ventures and associates, representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 43.5% and 34.2% respectively. The
average property selling price during the year was RMB12,016 per
sg.m.

In 2022, the Group together with its joint ventures and associates
had an aggregate of over 120 projects for sale in over 50 cities,
mainly in second-tier cities and core areas of high potential third-
and fourth-tier cities. A number of large-scale properties located
in first- and second-tier cities achieved remarkable contracted
sales results, including Woven City in Hangzhou, The Cloudland in
Beijing, Imperial Manor in Shanghai, Parkview Mount in Hefei and
Imperial Manor in Fuzhou.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB W& DT

The contracted sales realised by the Group together with its joint A - REBFFERES L AT REBELSARNE
ventures and associates during the year are set out below: RIHEFERFROT
By City R E D
Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Amount Sales Area Sales Amount
ERHEE EEHEE HERHE
City B x| HE SEEIL
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)
(ARBB&ET) (FFF7K)
Hangzhou LN 11,127 400,035 18.9
Beijing 5175 6,715 254,409 1.4
Quanzhou EM 4,669 425,424 7.9
Kunming =802 3,389 385,679 5.7
Nanjing [E2p 2,788 194,635 4.7
Shanghai =) 2,502 49,886 4.2
Hefei ahe 2,473 146,962 4.2
Shangrao i 2,312 379,640 3.9
Fuzhou =l 2,111 71,069 3.6
Suzhou RN 2,092 146,845 35
Shantou MIEE] 1,956 171,013 3.3
Tianjin Kz 1,517 139,714 2.6
Chongging 5E 1,444 238,981 2.4
Chizhou N 1,155 159,412 2.0
Other Hih 12,773 1,748,274 21.7
Total as 59,023 4,911,978 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WK DM

By Region REE S
Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Amount Sales Area Sales Amount
EEBE EREE HERHEE
Region B &8 [k SEESL
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)
(AREBET) (FFHK)
Yangtze River Delta R=AKREE
Economic Zone 24,609 1,371,972 41.7
West Taiwan Strait Y I 7 e 4 B
Economic Zone 11,036 1,121,874 18.7
Bohai Rim Economic Zone IR A T B 11,001 810,295 18.7
Central Western Region AR SR & 7,220 984,914 12.2
Guangdong — Hong Kong BAERAN &R
— Macao Greater Bay Area 5,157 622,923 8.7
Total &5t 59,023 4,911,978 100.0
By City Tier R T R B8 D
Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Amount Sales Area Sales Amount
EEEE EREBE HERHEE
City Tier T A% Bl &8 [ SHEADL
(RMB Million) (sq.m.) (%)
(ARBBET (FFHK)
First-tier cities — R 9,219 304,421 15.6
Second-tier cities R 31,103 2,189,867 52.7
Third- and fourth-tier cities = VORI 18,701 2,417,690 31.7
Total BEF 59,023 4,911,978 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

From the perspective of city distribution, contracted sales in
Hangzhou, Kunming and Nanjing have been the most remarkable
among the second-tier cities, amounting to approximately RMB11.127
billion, RMB3.389 billion and RMB2.788 billion, respectively, bringing
the Group good sales results in a difficult real estate market. In
addition, contracted sales in Beijing and Quanzhou have been the
most remarkable among the first- and third-tier cities, amounting to
approximately RMB6.715 billion and RMB4.669 billion, respectively,
accounting for approximately 11.4% and approximately 7.9% of the
total contracted sales amount. As a result of the popular sales of
Woven City in Hangzhou and the launch of a number of projects by
the Group in the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, this region has
accounted for the largest share of contracted sales of the Group
together with its joint ventures and associates, amounting to
RMB24.609 billion or approximately 41.7% in 2022.

Investment Properties

As at 31 December 2022, the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates held 53 investment properties with a total gross floor
area of 4.01 million sq.m. (attributable gross floor area of
approximately 3.66 million sg.m.), of which 27 investment properties
had commenced operation. The Group together with its joint ventures
and associates have investment properties in 26 cities, including
Beijing, Shanghai, Xiamen, Hangzhou and Suzhou, among others,
with its business covering shopping malls, long-term rental
apartments, offices, commercial streets and shops.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Recognised Property Sales Income

In 2022, the Group achieved recognised property sales income of
approximately RMB24.739 billion and area of properties delivered of
approximately 2.57 million sq.m., representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 31.6% and approximately 22.0%
respectively. The average selling price of properties was approximately
RMB9,608 per sq.m., representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 12.3%. Details of the Group's recognised property
sales income are as follows:

Shanghai e SCE Plaza W
L e REEES

BB W R D
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#9,608 7T * RILL D #112.3% - NEE R
MEHERAFBHOT ¢

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
PEREBIERERAR/ T _FFR

21



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBER W& DT

By City RETHE S

Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property
Sales Income Sales Area  Sales Income
IhHER Y%
LRy ES BRYE SHEWA
City W SHEWA HEE® Aot
(RMB Million) (sq.m.) (%)

(AR®RB&T) (FHK)
Suzhou BRI 3,062 388,632 12.4
Quanzhou M 2,840 347,474 11.5
Fuzhou GO 2,789 105,663 11.3
Chongging 2B 2,502 451,982 10.1
Xuzhou =M 2,409 300,983 9.7
Beijing 5 2,180 62,402 8.8
Huizhou =M 1,803 172,114 7.3
Lishui Bk 1,310 81,609 5.3
Tianjin RAE 1,220 106,699 4.9
Taizhou Z=M 1,126 83,920 4.6
Other HAh 3,498 473,406 14.1
Total BF 24,739 2,574,884 100.0

Suzhou e Glory Sky
BN o XE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WK

By Region REFE S
Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property Sales
Sales Income Sales Area Income
LRI
i ES LY ES HEWA
Region B SHEWA HEmE Aot
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)
(ARBB&ET) (FFFAK)

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone &= A B 8,384 929,043 33.9
West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone Y U 7 7 4 375 ) 6,347 547,048 2537
Bohai Rim Economic Zone IR A& P B 4,258 286,874 17.2
Central Western Region AR R & 3,298 586,500 13.3

Guangdong — Hong Kong — BB A R
Macao Greater Bay Area 2,452 225,419 99
Total A&t 24,739 2,574,884 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

By City Tier R AR B &5
Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property
Sales Income Sales Area Sales Income
LR E
R Ry SHEWA
City Tier 35,0 A% Bl SHEWA HEEHE Aot
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)

(AREBET) (FEAHXK)
First-tier cities — R 2,221 64,039 9.0
Second-tier cities AR 11,592 1,285,055 46.9
Third- and fourth-tier cities = - U 10,926 1,225,790 441
Total BEr 24,739 2,574,884 100.0
Land Bank + iR

As a result of the continued sluggish contracted sales of commodity
house and difficulties in financing in the capital market, land auctions
remained sluggish in 2022, with most private real estate companies
being absent from the land auction market, and the participation of
state-owned, central enterprises and city construction investment
companies are predominating. The Group believes that the weakness
of private real estate enterprises' investment in the land auction
market will not be reversed in the short run. In addition, the popularity

of the land auction market in Beijing and Hangzhou indicates that

there will be a growing divergence between the first-tier, famous

second-tier and other cities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In order to maintain sufficient liquidity, the Group suspended land
acquisition in 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the Group together
with its joint ventures and associates had a land bank with an
aggregate planned GFA of approximately 33.87 million sq.m. (the
aggregate planned GFA attributable to the Group was 26.68 million
sg.m.), distributing in 60 cities. The existing land bank is expected to
be available for the Group’s development in the next two to three
years. From the perspective of geographic distribution, the land bank
costs (excluding investment properties) of the Group together with its
joint ventures and associates located in the Yangtze River Delta
Economic Zone, the Bohai Rim Economic Zone, the West Taiwan Strait
Economic Zone, the Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macao Greater
Bay Area and the Central Western Region accounted for 36.2%,
20.8%, 22.5%, 8.4% and 12.1% respectively. Considering the tiers
of cities, the land bank costs (excluding investment properties) of the
Group together with its joint ventures and associates located in first-
tier cities, second-tier cities as well as third- and fourth-tier cities
accounted for 12.5%, 55.9% and 31.6% respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group mainly derives its revenue from sales of properties,
property management fees, rental income, land development income
and project management income.

The annual revenue decreased by approximately 29.2% from
approximately RMB37,737,447,000 in 2021 to approximately
RMB26,705,112,000 in 2022, which was attributable to the decrease
in revenue from sales of properties.

o Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties decreased significantly by
approximately 31.6% from approximately RMB36,154,258,000
in 2021 to approximately RMB24,739,180,000 in 2022.
Delivered area decreased by approximately 22.0% from
3,300,131 sg.m. in 2021 to 2,574,884 sgq.m. in 2022. The
average unit selling price decreased from approximately
RMB10,955 per sg.m. in 2021 to approximately RMB9,608 per
sg.m. in 2022.

o Property management fees

Property management fees increased by approximately 10.5%
from approximately RMB895,682,000 in 2021 to approximately
RMB989,751,000 in 2022, which was mainly attributable to the
increase in the number and floor area of properties under
management.

. Rental income

Rental income increased by approximately 13.3% from
approximately RMB453,282,000 in 2021 to approximately
RMB513,670,000 in 2022, which was mainly attributable to the
contribution of rental income from the newly opened shopping
malls of SCE Funworld at the end of 2021.

o Land development income

During 2022, the Group recognised land development income
of approximately RMB201,893,000, which was the income from
pre-construction and preparation work provided for certain land
parcels in Nan'an, Quanzhou.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o Project management income

The project management income increased by approximately
11.3% from approximately RMB234,225,000 in 2021 to
approximately RMB260,618,000 in 2022, which was
attributable to the increase in project management service and
other property related service income provided to joint ventures
and associates.

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased significantly by approximately 45.9% from
approximately RMB8,173,622,000 in 2021 to approximately
RMB4,420,333,000 in 2022. Gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 21.7% in 2021 to approximately 16.6% in 2022. The
decrease in gross profit margin was attributable to declining property
selling prices had resulted in lower gross profit margin and increase in
provision of impairment for property projects.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by approximately 19.2%
from approximately RMB1,039,303,000 in 2021 to approximately
RMB1,239,106,000 in 2022. Such increase was primarily driven by
the increase of sales promotion during the epidemic.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 13.4% from
approximately RMB2,056,594,000 in 2021 to approximately
RMB1,781,374,000 in 2022. The decrease in administrative expenses
was mainly attributable to the implementation of stringent cost
control and streamlined manpower structure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN DA

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by approximately 11.5% from approximately
RMB825,919,000 in 2021 to approximately RMB921,124,000 in
2022. Finance costs mainly represented partial borrowing costs which
have not been capitalised as certain borrowings were not used for
project developments. Despite the decrease in bank and other
borrowings (including senior notes and domestic bonds), the cost of
funding increased slightly during the year, therefore, total interest
expenses increased slightly from approximately RMB3,356,562,000 in
2021 to approximately RMB3,380,997,000 in 2022.

Share of Profits and Losses of Joint Ventures and
Associates

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associates changed
from profits of approximately RMB640,636,000 in 2021 to losses of
approximately RMB454,266,000 in 2022. The losses were mainly
attributable to the operating losses and fair value losses of investment
properties of certain joint ventures during the year.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased significantly by approximately 50.7%
from approximately RMB2,067,114,000 in 2021 to approximately
RMB1,020,120,000 in 2022. The Group’s income tax expense
included provisions for the corporate income tax and land
appreciation tax net of deferred tax during the year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in provision of land appreciation
tax and corporate income tax as a result of the decrease in revenue
from sales of properties and decrease in gross profit margin.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

Profit attributable to owners of the parent decreased significantly by
approximately 99.2% from approximately RMB3,070,022,000 in
2021 to approximately RMB24,544,000 in 2022. Basic earnings per
share amounted to approximately RMBO0.6 cents in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and bank balances
were denominated in different currencies as set out below:

BB W R D

nBEE - WBERERER
REMR

R-ZBE-_—_F+-A=+—0  "&EEHNRSL
MERITIE AR TIAA T AR & HE

2022 2021
—==-= T T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AREBTE

Renminbi ARHE 14,855,496 19,221,382
Hong Kong dollars T 77,676 711,128
US dollars =T 82,886 73,359
Total cash and bank balances RE RIRITIER GRS 15,016,058 20,005,869

According to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, certain
property development companies of the Group are required to place
certain amounts of cash and bank deposits into designated bank
accounts to provide guarantees for the development of the relevant
properties. The Group also places certain deposits in banks in the PRC
to secure certain bills issued from banks in the PRC. As at 31 December
2022, the amounts of restricted cash and pledged deposits were
approximately RMB3,866,093,000 (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB4,273,708,000) and approximately RMB2,031,012,000 (31
December 2021: approximately RMB54,574,000), respectively.

BEFRBRBEEGRER  AEEETYER
ENBIERE TEEMNES RBITFERTFAR
ERITE OEABERMERERE - B -
REBIEE TERFERIBEARITAETEA
BITEENETEE RZTE__F+=H
=+—B  ZRHBSMEERFRD BLA
R #3,866,093,0007t( = ZF = —F + = R
—+—H: HAR¥4,273,708,0007T) F4 A
R #2,031,012,000c( =T = —F + = A
=+—H: #HAR¥54,574,0007T) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB W& DT

RREERH

Borrowings and Pledged Assets

The maturity profile of the borrowings of the Group as at 31 WRZZ-—F+-A=+—0 A&EEEFKE

[0

30

December 2022 was as follows: FEARAT
2022 2021
=== = —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Bank and other borrowings: RITREMER
Within one year or on demand —FAFRILEK 10,742,959 8,689,342
In the second year F-F 11,063,555 8,247,016
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FCERF(REEREMRF) 3,819,267 10,520,506
Beyond fifth year ERAF 1,369,331 2,065,858
26,995,112 29,522,722
Senior notes and domestic bonds: BREEERENBERNES
Within one year or on demand —FRIZRENR 3,959,846 6,618,778
In the second year F_F 7,418,104 3,688,639
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EZRF(BEEEMF) 5,784,086 10,368,195
17,162,036 20,675,612
Total borrowings B 44,157,148 50,198,334
The borrowings were denominated in different currencies as set out ZEEFRJIAR N TR EEHE :
below:
2022 2021
—=:=-= = —F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARETIT
Bank and other borrowings: RITREAMEN
Renminbi AR 21,655,224 23,987,110
Hong Kong dollars BT 1,127,006 1,360,565
US dollars e 4,212,882 4,175,047
26,995,112 29,522,722
Senior notes and domestic bonds: BEAEEMERNES
Renminbi AR 1,610,688 4,000,000
US dollars e 15,551,348 16,675,612
17,162,036 20,675,612
Total borrowings Bass 44,157,148 50,198,334
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WK DM

Breakdown of the borrowings by categories is as follows:

ERAARETRE ST

2022 2021
—E-8F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBFIT
The senior notes of US$500 millionata M—-—ZT = —4= AF|HI# Secured/Fixed AiEME - 3,158,778
coupon rate of 5.875% due in March 518 £ JL5.875% 18 %t interest rate & E F| &
2022 e
The senior notes of US$500 million ata R =Z =04 py B E|EAH  Secured/Fixed ogiigi g 3,419,467 3,155,465
coupon rate of 7.375% due in April 518X JL7.375% & % interest rate [E] 5E 1| %
2024 e
The senior notes of US$500 millionata R=—Z = =4 5|88 Secured/Fixed gl 3,419,846 3,148,639
coupon rate of 7.25% due in April S{EEITL725%B%EE  interest rate (& 7E Al 2=
2023 2
The senior notes of US$500 million ata R=—Z=HEH AFIEAH  Secured/Fixed Pogiigi 3,403,779 3,136,224
coupon rate of 7% due in May 2025 SIEETT 7% BERE interest rate Ehailps
The senior notes of US$350 millionata M=—Z = XE = AZ|HI#  Secured/Fixed B 2,380,307 2,193,801
coupon rate of 6% due in February 358X L6%E KR interestrate (& 72 1|
2026 %
The senior notes of US$450 million M-Z & AFHE  Secured/Fixed boE iV 2,927,949 1,882,705
(2021: US$300 million) at a coupon 4A5BET(=ZF=—  interestrate (& £ F1| %

rate of 5.95% due in September
2024

F 3 E)595%
BEZE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

2022 2021
-8 —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARMEFT
The domestic corporate bonds of R-Z =%\ AE|HH Unsecured/Fixed mIER 540,000 540,000
RMB540 million at an adjusted ARMBSAEBTETAE  interest rate Eibvabilkd
coupon rate of 6.5% due in August ZEK65%EANRN A
2023 &%
The domestic corporate bonds of MZZT -+ AR Unsecured/Fixed 3w 506,019 1,460,000
RMB506,019,000 (2021: A R #506,019,000 interest rate & T K| &
RMB1,460,000,000) at a coupon rate T(ZEZ—F: AR
of 5.5% due in July 2024 ¥1,460,000,0007T)5.5%
BRAREMES
The domestic corporate bonds of RZZTZRF+AEIHA  Unsecured/Fixed mIER 564,669 2,000,000
RMB564,669,000 (2021: A R # 564,669,000 75 interest rate & E F =
RMB2,000,000,000) at a coupon rate (ZEZ—F: AR
of 5.5% due in October 2025 #2,000,000,0007T)5.5%
BANARES
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER Secured/Floating A&,/ 22,895,560 21,925,180
interest rates TFENF &
Bank and other borrowings RITREAME R Secured/Fixed BHER/ 4,099,552 7,422,553
interest rates E A&
Bank and other borrowings RITREAE R Unsecured/Floating  #E$E38 = 174,989
interest rates F BN
44,157,148 50,198,334
As at 31 December 2022, the following assets of the Group were RZEBEZZF+ZA=+—H0  X5H

RATEERR  UBBETAEEDN

pledged to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to the

32

Group: BTRITREMEN :
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARKEFT
Bank deposits RITFR 2,031,012 54,574
Property and equipment L E PSRN 498,070 512,512
Investment properties WEYE 12,847,267 10,714,425
Properties under development BEPYE 49,683,439 23,837,954
Completed properties held for sale BEELECERME - 903,840
65,059,788 36,023,305
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gearing Ratio

The net gearing ratio was calculated by dividing the net debt
(including bank and other borrowings, senior notes and domestic
bonds after deduction of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash
and pledged deposits) by total equity. As at 31 December 2022, the
net gearing ratio was approximately 79.6% (31 December 2021:
approximately 70.7%).

Exchange Rate Fluctuation Exposures

The Group's businesses are located in the PRC and substantially all of
the Group’s revenue and operating expenses are denominated in
RMB. The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2022, except for certain
bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
bank and other borrowings and senior notes which were
denominated in foreign currencies, exchange rate changes of RMB
against foreign currencies will not have material adverse effect on the
results of operations of the Group.

No foreign currency hedging arrangement was made as at 31
December 2022. The Group will closely monitor its exposure to
fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates.

BB W R D

aELR

FRAELEDRFEKR(BRRITEEME
o BEZEBERAGHFNRERREEE
Y XBRHIB e REERFR) RAERREE
FE-R-—TE_—F+-_A=+—R8 FafE
Lh R B79.6%(ZE_—F+-_A=+—H:
70.7%) °

[ =% B EL b2

RNEBRPBIEITER - AEB KL K=
KERYHUARKEHE - AEERTHEE
RBEHUARBHE RZZE-__F+=H
=+—H8 ' BRETUINETENRITER - &
AREFEEEZFH A BENERMEE R
TREMBERARELARRE - ARBEHHEAMING
WEREB T2 REBAEEFEEEREAN
TRFE -

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H KNEBEWEE
AR INE SR 2 B - RE B EE TR
GNES T SR B RS o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

BFSHEIR

As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided financial guaranteesto R-ZE-——F+=-F=+—H ' KEEZIUT

the banks in respect of the following items:

BIHEMRITRESEHRER -

2022 2021
-2 —F-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREFT
Guarantees in respect of mortgage AAEEETYEERD
facilities provided for certain purchasers RREFIEHOER
of the Group’s properties 25,482,461 21,647,437

34
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ and associates’
own financial guarantees, which are not included in the above, is as
follows:

BB W R D

AN AEBDERERRRBE AR AT R
BARSHER (EARAMA LSO T ¢

2022 2021
—s=-= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Guarantees in respect of mortgage EEIWNCIY 3N

facilities provided for certain purchasers ETMEBERNIZIBER

of the joint ventures’ and associates’ RHAER

properties 4,433,874 5,437,686
As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided guarantees to banksin  R—ZE—-——F+—-H=+—H ' AEEHIET
connection with loan amount of RMB3,202,552,000 (31 December  EF AL AT REANT Y B4 EA ARE

2021: RMB4,987,480,000) granted to joint ventures and associates.

3,202,552,000 . ( —E - —F+=-A=+—
H : AR 4,987,480,0007T) IRLIEIR -

( Jinan e Royal Palace
R o ERNT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB W& DT

COMMITMENTS I
As at 31 December 2022, the capital commitments of the Group were R-TE-—&+=-HF=+—H ' KEEHER
as follows: AEMT
2022 2021
—EFE=-_= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARETIT
Contracted, but not provided for: DELB KRB
Capital expenditure for properties under EFRBRREMZERPYE
development and construction of NEZRREMENERNEFX
investment properties in Mainland China 18,135,770 19,826,245

In addition, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ and associates’  LE7N - REE (GG E QA LEE AR AR FH)
own capital commitments, which are not included in the above, is as & ZANFHE GRAALA LAl AN -

follows:
2022 2021
—B--F —F-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: BE LB KRB
Capital expenditure for joint ventures’ and AR NT R E QTR BIRRER
associates’ properties under development BRAYEREERRE
and construction of investment properties L E VN it b
in Mainland China 1,458,795 3,850,201
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 7,719 employees
(31 December 2021: 9,770 employees). During the year, the total cost
of employees was approximately RMB1,122,529,000 (2021:
approximately RMB1,673,388,000). The Company recognises the
importance of gender diversity and recruits employees at all levels
based on merits and regardless of gender. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group had 4,676 male employees and 3,043 female employees
and the male-to-female ratio in the workforce, including the senior
management, was approximately 1:0.65, which is regarded by the
board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company as satisfactory and
in line with the industry which the Group operates its businesses in.
The Group shall further strengthen the gender diversity in the
workforce in the future where appropriate. The Group provides
employees with competitive remuneration and benefits and has
adopted share option schemes to provide incentives and rewards to,
among others, the employees (please refer to the section headed
“Report of the Directors — Share Option Scheme” of this annual
report for further details of the share option schemes). The Group
reviews the employee remuneration plan at least annually to ensure
that it maintains market competitiveness and allows the employees to
receive fair and equal rewards. The remuneration and promotion
decision are also based on considering the employees’ assessment
results, experience, skills and personal characteristics. In addition, the
Group has established China SCE College to provide employees with
three types of training programs, namely business courses, quality
skills and cultural identity. The Group has launched its management
trainee programme since 2011 for positions in selected functional
areas in order to build pipeline for succession.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group by band
and the respective number of persons for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out below:

BB W R D

& & K2 B

BUER

RIE-—F+-A=+—H AEEHEH
7719%EE(ZE=—F+=-RA=+—8:
97708 ) TR BEXNABEHNARK
1,122,529000c( ZE = —F: HARK
1,673,388,0007T) ° AN A R RHENERIZ Tt
MEZ M - WREHREMT S MR RIS R
BT HEZT-__F+-HA=+—H &%
EHE4676 2 BME TM3043ZLZMHET
PREAEEABTANE TKAF B Hl
71065 ARFESFE([EF2RAT
ARBIFEAEELEEBRAERITE - K
SBERZBEES BRI TE— 288 Thkih
BERIZ Tl - AEERESRHARF N
HMFBRE RN ERET S S EE B R RE
(EhefE) EE(EEBRETENS &
2HRFREFSRE | P [ERETS] —
B) ANEERLBFERIBEIFMAIERE U
BRERBTSHRFNREEIRSAERT
LR - MBI REAMRENEREES

T ZER - &R XEREBEARERE
oo dbsh - AERERY T ®RESBR - BB TIRH

BRI RERENMUELRR =HEIIER
B-B - AEEREEXRHMEL
FREEEE - S ETHTER -

N

EZ NN EIEED

HE_T -+ -_A=1T—HILFEAKHE
BAREE R FENEE N AR AT ¢

Number of

Persons

Remuneration Bands HENEE AE
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T E 1,500,000 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T & 2,500,000 7T 5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

Further details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements,
respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

China SCE actively fulfils its social responsibilities of protecting the
environment and plays an exemplary role by undertaking the mission
of promoting social environmental protection activities. China SCE
gives due consideration to environmental philosophy in various
aspects of its business, including construction works, fitting-out
works, landscaping and property management, and incorporates
environmentally friendly practices into its daily course of business to
save energy and reduce emissions, performing its commitments and
obligations of protecting the environment in all aspects and
contributing to creating a green and harmonious society. Such
environmental initiatives include but are not limited to dust control,
noise control, water and energy conservation and handling
construction waste properly as well as using environmentally friendly
materials.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Group published by the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s business is mainly operated by its subsidiaries
incorporated or established in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC and the Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and is a listed company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Therefore, the Group should comply with relevant
laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, British Virgin Islands, the
PRC and Hong Kong. The Group will seek professional legal opinions
from its Legal Department and legal advisors when necessary to
ensure that the Group's transactions and business are in conformity
with all applicable laws and regulations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WK

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, HEAEEEE BFEFAEER
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS B BRIR

China SCE has always insisted on the characteristic management  FREEIG4RERIE [ AAE | E—BAEEFEEE
concept of “Human-Centric” and put it into the construction of HEEEASWEHETRAANERESL - FE
human resources. China SCE understands that protecting the interests FEA4AEE TR AR EETERXKEE
and development of its employees is not only a business necessity, but M —EANEETIRNERNEIZ - BTETHEE
a fundamental goal that must be achieved. In order to fulfill its H{f - AEBEURAAR - K T —EBEHHE
corporate responsibility, the Group has developed a unique people- AR AMS] - AlEES FEL28 N Z kAT
oriented employment mechanism, created a working environment  {EI&35 - S ESGERE LIEENERELZ S -
that respects equal participation and diversity, the Group attached REEFFBME TR @ B MLm=
great importance to protecting the health and safety of workers,  ZEEPK -

improving welfare benefits and employee care, and building a

harmonious and integrated professional team.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

The Group maintains a solid relationship with its existing and
prospective customers, which plays a vital role in the development
and success of the Group. The Group's “SCE Club” is established for
such purpose. The Group attaches great importance to customer
satisfaction and has adopted various measures and collected customer
feedback through various channels. The Group conducted a
residential customer satisfaction survey to better understand the
feedbacks and expectations of our customers. In the future, the
Group will continue to improve the quality of its projects and services
so as to increase customer satisfaction and loyalty. As a property
project developer, China SCE attaches great importance to the quality
and safety of its projects. The Group maintains close communication
with its suppliers to ensure the quality of its properties. In addition,
the Group also responds properly to customer complaints, respects
intellectual property rights and has the responsibility to protect
customer information and privacy. The Group is committed to
ensuring the quality of its projects, and also attaches importance to
sound customer service management and continuous attention to
customer feedback on its projects. The Group ensures the quality of
its projects and satisfies customers’ needs through different ways and
measures.

The Group also establishes long-term collaboration with international
prominent designers in architecture and landscape and famous
construction contractors, while maximising its efforts to ensure its
adherence to the objective of providing customers with premium
properties. The Group selects qualified construction contractors
through tender process in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations, and conducts thorough due diligence review over such
contractors. Successful tenderers are selected based on a variety of
factors, including costs, construction completion schedule, quality
performance of construction projects, construction planning,
manpower distribution, safety measures and standards, equipment
and facilities and the industrial experience of project managers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not hold any
other significant investment, or conduct any material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT

As at the date of approval of this annual report, the Group did not
have any future plan for material investments or capital assets.
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

hY Sz b
FEYEEHN
Completed Projects Held Percentage of
Investment Projects Projectunder  for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BENE ARe r£E
ER Wi n=ER REME EERME  REMHE HENE BEER FElRR
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(F5%) (F5%) (%) (FAX) (FA%)
Bohai Rim Economic Zone
REBLER
Beijing CBD SCE Funworld Beijing Commercial 32,443 = = = 32,443 100
LR CBDHERLE I b7 Ax
Royal Terrace Beijing Commercial 22,640 = = = 22,640 100
RE IR [EE
Sunshine Mansion Beijing Residential - 6,816 - - 6,816 100
e IR e
Cloudview Terrace/Imperial Beijing Residential and commercial - - 417,800 - 417,800 100
Terrace
Z2E/REE R EEhEz
Beijing West Chang'an Beijing Residential and commercial 103,453 153 - - 103,606 100
SCE Funworld/The Regent
IRBERTRSLERE,/KE SR EEREE
The Cloudland Beijing Residential - - 331,118 - 331,118 75
ARER R fix
Marina Bay Tianjin Residential = 9,155 - - 9,155 100
bt ] R e
Polaris Bay Tianjin Residential = 5271 - - 5271 9
R R ffE
Galaxy Tianjin Residential - 5014 - - 5,014 48
AR RE frx
Gratifying Bay Tianjin Residential - - 64,156 - 64,156 9
hizg RE ff=
Imperial Palace Tianjin Residential - - 115,029 - 115,029 100
REF R e
Royal Manor Qingdao Residential and commercial - - 129,892 130,415 260,307 %
ESH 55 ExhEz
Parkview Palace Qingdao Residential - 30,007 - - 30,007 100
i &5 %
Uptown Jinan Commercial - 2,549 - - 2,549 100
L BE EE
Royal Palace Jinan Residential - - 150,457 - 150,457 9%
ERTT BE ft=
Parkview Mount (Zhucheng) ~ Weifang Residential - - 80,080 171,462 251,542 100
EEE i fi=
SCE Funworld Weifang Commercial 115,869 - - - 115,869 97
RS ] [
Parkview Mount Weifang Residential - - 203,684 111,537 315,221 97
%i& i i
Sunshine City Tangshan  Residential and commercial - 2,574 83,065 - 85,639 100
M Bl EEhEx
The Royal Bay Dezhou Residential - 16,387 - - 16,387 100
ERE =M e
Royal Spring City Anshan Residential, commercial and hotel - 6,541 - 1,454,903 1,461,444 70
WA Ll € mERBE
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
ERYEEN

Completed Projects Held Percentage of
Investment Projects Projectunder  for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE R | r5E
EH Wi n=ER RENE CEANE  RR9NE HENE BEER 4
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(FHK) (FFHK) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK)
Yanjiao Funlive Yanjiao Commercial 26,043 - - 26,419 52,462 55
gyl S [
Imperial Manor Weihai Residential - - 87,580 113,360 200,940 100
Bt Bg fiz
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Yantai Residential and commercial - - 66,618 303,662 370,280 100
B R, EE Ea FEREE
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Binzhou Residential and commercial - - 176,027 571,325 747,352 100
B R, EE BN EEREE
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Rizhao Residential and commercial - - 98,676 199,181 297,857 100
B R, EE AR TEREE
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
REALER
SCE Plaza Phase 2 Shanghai Commercial 158,442 - - - 158,442 61
MERRESS 5 i ¥
Skyline Tower Shanghai Commercial 61,574 - - - 61,574 100
PN g ¥
The Paramount Shanghai Commercial 24,423 - - - 24,423 100
RE v} [
The Glamour Shanghai Residential 2,491 - - - 2,491 100
PN s} e
Imperial Manor Shanghai Residential and commercial 45,483 - 80,489 - 125,972 70
BiH s} FERESE
Parkview Bay Shanghai Residential 795 - - - 795 100
e g £
Shanghai Guangfulin Funlive/  Shanghai Residential and commercial 38,528 - 97,966 - 136,494 100
Imperial Manor
HEEEMABAB/BE LS EEREE
The Royal Bay Shanghai  Residential - 117 - - 1,17 100
3 L f£E
Future Sci-Tech City Funlive Hangzhou  Commercial 28,598 - - - 28,598 100
RRBHEH R M [
Parkview Bay Hangzhou  Residential and commercial 46,380 - - - 46,380 100
bt ] M EERES
Hangzhou Woven City/ Hangzhou  Residential and commercial 189,140 - - 1,069,250 1,258,390 100
Dinghu Funlive
WHARES,/ AR M EEhEE
Suzhou Project (Kunshan) Suzhou Residential and commercial - 81,761 - 518,118 599,879 80
#MIER (Bil) M TEREE
Parkview Mount Suzhou Residential and commercial - - 219,436 - 219,436 47
4 B EEREE
Orient Moon Bay Suzhou Residential - 2,149 - - 2,149 50
ZRE B €
Cloudview Terrace Suzhou Residential - 1,113 - - 1,113 100
ERE B %E
Glory Sky Suzhou Residential and commercial - 12,419 - - 12,419 100
PN ) BN EERES
Zhangjiagang SCE Funworld/  Suzhou Residential and commercial 87,152 4,592 145,038 - 236,782 0
Imperial Manor
KRR AT R/ B B FERESE
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

hY Sz b
FTEY BN
Completed Projects Held Percentage of
Investment Projects Projectunder  for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA to the Group
BELE R | r58
EH Wi n=ER RENE CEANE RRTNE HENE EEER 4
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m) (%)
(F5%) (F5%) (F5%) (FHK) (FHK)
Kunshan SCE Funworld/ Suzhou Residential and commercial 265,567 - 231,859 - 497,426 100
Imperial Manor
EILREt R,/ B8 B FEREE
6 Park Square Nanjing Commercial - 157,181 - - 157,181 64
NRER FR [
Parkview Bay Nanjing Residential and commercial - 7,425 - - 7,425 50
HRE BR EERES
Hai'an SCE Funworld/ Nantong Residential and commercial 105,411 - 244,261 - 349,672 100
Parkview Mount
SRR R/ B 3 FERE%
Rudong SCE Funworld/ Nantong Residential and commercial 107,914 - 141,232 252,540 501,686 51
Imperial Manor
RPN/ BERE  BA EERER
Haimen SCE Funworld/ Nantong Residential and commercial - - - 291,035 291,035 56
Imperial Manor
PSRt R/ B [ FEREE
Parkview Bay Xuzhou Residential and commercial - 38,832 - - 38,832 100
HRE &M FERES
Golden Riviera Xuzhou Residential and commercial - 33,624 - - 33,624 70
EN- =M EERES
Parkview City Xuzhou Residential - 22,351 249,915 - 272,266 100
R M e
Lake Manor Xuzhou Residential and commercial - - 264,178 - 264,178 54
ENe =M EERE%
Parkview Palace Jiaxing Residential and commercial - 3,137 - - 3,137 100
B i EERES
Parkview Mount Taizhou Residential and commercial - - 101,346 - 101,346 %8
%k ZM FEREE
SCE Funworld/ Taizhou Commercial 144,168 - 34,306 - 178 474 100
Parkview Residence
et R/ BRE N [
SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor -~ Chizhou Residential and commercial 100,923 - 225,102 99,490 425,515 100
et R,/ B8 M EERES
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Hefei Residential and commercial 149,334 - 318,945 - 468,279 100
mEH R, BEE Al EEREE
West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone
BREFCER
Imperial Manor Fuzhou Residential 17,002 - 27,476 - 44,478 100
BR &M ffE
SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor  Fuzhou Residential and commercial 133,707 5,456 93,881 98,167 331,21 99
Mt R B &M EERES
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Nanchang  Residential and commercial 115,137 - 147,057 - 262,194 99
et R,/ BE B FEREE
SCE Building Phase 1 Xiamen Office and commercial 10,098 - - - 10,098 100
MEEEARE—5 B N
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
ERYEEN

Completed Projects Held Percentage of

Investment Projects Projectunder  for Future Total  Attributable

Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE aRe rEE

EH W n=ER RENE EERNE  RERMHE HENE BEER FElRR
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m) (%)

(F5K) (¥5K) (¥5K) (%) (F7K)

SCE Building Phase 2 Xiamen Office and commercial 36,597 - - - 36,597 100
HEREEAE—H Ef BAERER
Polaris Palace Xiamen Office and commercial 6,529 - - - 6,529 50
NS Ef WOEREE
The Regent Xiamen Residential - 4,304 - - 4,304 100
B Ef *F=E
The Skyland Xiamen Residential - - 273,031 - 273,031 65
xE Ef FE
Sapphire Peninsula Quanzhou  Commercial 1,355 - - - 1,355 100
gErs M [
Nan‘an SCE Funworld Quanzhou  Commercial 72,618 - - - 72,618 100
BRREF M [
Imperial Manor Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 696 4,713 - 43,409 40
ERE M FEREE
Enjoy City Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 3,603 - - 3,603 40
%) M FEREE
The Paramount Quanzhou  Residential, office and commercial 42,723 - - - 42,723 100
rE M 5 BAEREE
Quanzhou SCE Funworld Quanzhou  Commercial 142,682 - - - 142,682 58
RN B M EE3
Fortune Plaza ® Imperial Terrace  Quanzhou  Residential, office and commercial - 522 33,027 - 33,549 100
FEPL 122 M % BAZREE
Parkview Palace Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 516 82,125 - 82,641 70
BRN M TEREE
Gold Coast Quanzhou  Residential and commercial 28,547 43,539 4,100 26,505 102,691 45
k) M TEREE
SCE Mall (Shishi) Quanzhou  Office 28,707 309 - - 29,016 60
w7l (R ) M IS
Parkview Palace Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 1,510 - - 1,510 60
5= 51 M TEREE
Parkview Mount Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 4,019 - - 4,019 92
Big M TEREE
SCE Plaza Quanzhou  Office and commercial 32,560 - - - 32,560 100
RE RS M HAERER
Cloudview Palace Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 3,569 - - 3,569 90
ERF FM TEREE
Imperial Terrace Quanzhou  Residential - - 115,030 - 115,030 100
HERN FM €
Shuitou SCE Funworld Quanzhou  Commercial 84,360 - - - 84,360 100
KA Bt U5 FM [5ES
Imperial Palace Quanzhou  Residential - - 100,270 - 100,270 70
RERN FM FE
Cloudview Palace Quanzhou  Residential - - 114,295 - 114,295 100
£E FM FE
Imperial Terrace Quanzhou  Residential - - 217,541 - 217,541 100
EER FM F=x
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

hY Sz b
FEYEEHN
Completed Projects Held Percentage of
Investment Projects Projectunder  for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BENE ARe r£E
ER Wi n=ER REME EERME  REMHE HENE BEER FElRR
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m) (%)
(F5%) (F5%) (%) (FAX) (FA%)
Cloudview Palace Zhangzhou  Residential and commercial - - 166,086 - 166,086 43
ERR M EEhEx
Parkview Palace Zhangzhou  Residential and commercial - - 60,510 - 60,510 0
BRI M EEhEz
Cloudview Terrace Shangrao  Residential and commercial - 63,235 324,078 - 387,313 %
ERE i EEREE
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Shangrao  Residential and commercial 99,783 - 243,233 126,029 469,045 100
MRy, B & EEhEx
SCE Funworld/Parkview Bay Putian Residential and commercial 82,855 23,280 - - 106,135 0
MEH R,/ AR #H EEhEx
Imperial Manor Longyan Residential - - 152,413 - 152,413 100
MEFT EE ftE
Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macao Greater Bay Area
BRRAEE
Royal Terrace Foshan Residential and commercial - 2,518 66,207 - 68,725 98
ERE Il EEhEz
Parkview Palace Huizhou Residential and commercial - - 142,530 40,479 183,009 %
ERM E| EERE%
The Royal Bay Huizhou Residential and commercial - 5329 - - 5329 58
ERE =M EEREE
Royal Terrace Huizhou Residential and commercial - 5,864 - - 5,864 95
RE =M EERE%
Cloudview Palace Jieyang Residential - - 145,227 - 145,227 9%
ESR el e
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Jieyang Residential and commercial 124,530 - 218,002 290,774 633,306 98
MRy, B bl EEhEx
The Royal Bay Meizhou Residential - - 96,431 98,811 195,242 100
il 1M e
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Meizhou Residential and commercial 112,969 - 142,357 401,611 656,937 100
mEH Ry EE 18 FEREE
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Shaoguan ~ Residential and commercial 111,221 - 295,745 359,183 766,149 100
Mt RYBE il EEREE
The Royal Bay Shaoguan ~ Residential - - 137,807 383,076 520,883 100
ERE il i
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Heyuan Residential and commercial 91,568 674 430,706 - 522,948 98
MRy B R FEREE
Century Palace Shanwei Residential and commercial - 103,834 126,660 113,188 343,682 92
BRAS W EERES
SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor ~ Shantou Residential and commercial 146,364 - 181,539 137,327 465,230 9%
Mt R/ B S EERESE
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
ERYEEN

Completed Projects Held Percentage of

Investment Projects Projectunder  for Future Total  Attributable

Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE aRe rEE

EH W n=ER RENE EERNE  RERMHE HENE BEER FElRR
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m) (%)

(F5K) (¥5K) (¥5K) (%) (F7K)

Central Western Region

FESHE

Cloudview Terrace Chongging  Residential and commercial - 16,155 - - 16,155 9%
ERE 5E FEREE

The Royal Bay Chongging  Residential and commercial - 11,621 - - 11,621 80
ERE il TEREE

Imperial Terrace Chongging ~ Residential and commercial - 12,749 61,107 - 73,856 47
ERE El TERESE

Liberty Mountain Chongaing ~ Residential and commercial - 9,029 - - 9,029 49
bl El EEREE

Imperial Manor Chongging  Residential - 9,106 190,228 - 199,334 50
B8 BE €

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Chongging  Residential and commercial 112,478 - 191,022 118,614 422,114 100
mEH R,/ BE £ EEREE

Imperial Manor Zhengzhou  Residential - - 100,108 - 100,108 0
B M €

Cloudview Palace Zhengzhou  Residential - - 85,816 62,616 148,432 9
B3 M €

Cloud Valley Kunming Residential and commercial - 57,737 171,103 1,211,758 1,440,598 67
EANR B FEREE

Cloudview Terrace Shangajiu Residential and commercial - 70,856 116,014 - 186,870 76
E5E i FEREE

SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor  Xiangtan Residential and commercial - - 118,735 788,457 907,192 100
et R/ B HE FEREE

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Zhumadian ~ Residential and commercial 136,829 - 142,991 485,405 765,225 98
REH R/ BE BEE FEREE

Parkview Mount Xuchang Residential - - 181,377 - 181,377 97
Bk e ftE

Imperial Manor Xuchang Residential - - - 208,250 208,250 97
B8 Hi= €

SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor ~ Pingdingshan  Residential and commercial 88,996 8,737 192,407 126,547 416,687 95
et R/ B ST TEREE

Parkview Manor Pingdingshan Residential - - 102,412 324,978 427,390 90
5=t FIEW £

Parkview Mount Zhaotong Residential - - 224,545 - 224,545 100
Bk i £

Parkview Mount Lincang Residential and commercial - - 125,795 64,436 190,231 80
Big VS FEREE

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Tongchuan  Residential and commercial 93,398 - 227,801 509,308 830,507 98
REt R,/ Bk Al EEREE

Parkview Mount Wenshan Residential and commercial - - 119,112 212,078 331,190 100
Big pll FEREE

Parkview Bay Chengdu Residential and commercial 44,751 - 71,978 - 116,729 100
EREH k2 FEREE
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENGREEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wong Chiu Yeung (Z&R3), aged 57, is one of the founders of the
Group and the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of
the Company. Mr. Wong was appointed as an executive Director on
30 November 2007, as well as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC, Hong Kong and
the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Wong is responsible for formulating
business development strategies for the Group, commercial property
management and financial investment management. Since his
involvement in the development of the Group’s first project in 1996,
Mr. Wong has been involved in all of the projects developed by the
Group thereafter, and has about 27 years of experience in real estate
development. Mr. Wong is the vice chairman of Hong Kong
Association for the Promotion of Peaceful Reunification of China,
guest professor of Nanchang University, vice chairman of the board of
directors of Quanzhou Normal University, chairman of the board of
directors of Nan'an Huagiao Middle School, permanent honourable
chairman of HK Federation of Fujian Associations. Mr. Wong holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from Xiamen
University. Mr. Wong is the father of Mr. Wong Lun, an executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Wong is the sole director of each of
Newup Holdings Limited, East Waves Investments Limited and Keen
Century Investments Limited, which had interests of approximately
39.31%, 5.45% and 5.45% respectively in the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2022 that would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

Chen Yuanlai (BRJt3K), aged 56, is one of the founders of the Group
and the vice chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Chen was
appointed as an executive Director on 12 August 2009 and is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC,
Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Chen is responsible for
formulating business development strategies for the Group. Since his
involvement in the development of the Group’s first project in 1996,
he has been involved in all of the projects developed by the Group
thereafter, and has about 27 years of experience in real estate
development. Mr. Chen also has extensive experience in investment
management and project management through his involvement in all
of the projects developed by the Group. Mr. Chen completed the
Executive Management course in Business Administration of
Commercial Real Estate Development and Funding, a one-year
programme offered by the School of Professional and Continuing
Education of The University of Hong Kong and Fudan University,
Shanghai, in May 2008. Mr. Chen has completed an Executive Master
of Business Administration programme in Xiamen University. Mr.
Chen is the sole director of Rising Trade Holdings Limited, which had
interests of approximately 5.45% in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2022 that would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Cheng Hiu Lok (EREE£%) aged 58, is one of the founders of the
Group and the vice chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr.
Cheng was appointed as an executive Director on 12 August 2009
and is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company
established in the PRC, Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands. Mr.
Cheng is responsible for formulating business development strategies
for the Group. Since his involvement in the development of the
Group’s first project in 1996, he has been involved in all of the
projects developed by the Group thereafter. Mr. Cheng has about 27
years of experience in real estate development. Mr. Cheng also has
extensive experience in investment management, project
management and construction management through his involvement
in the projects developed by the Group. Mr. Cheng completed his
college education at Fujian Normal University in 1987. Mr. Cheng is
the sole director of each of Wealthy Gate Holdings Limited, which had
interests of approximately 5.45% in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2022 that would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAERE

BRITIR © 565% ' AEBREIHAZ—  BEAQ
AESCEEE - MEERZZTZNFENA
T_BEZTARRRNTES  EFALA
AETRAE - B8 RIEEEZB S M
BARIZESE BELBENEASEEKE
RIREE - RACER —NMNAFLEZERAEE
BEEE%  F—EHE2HEASEHEERMNA
BEE  E5CBBH_tTLERMERERL
5o RAENMBRL2EASERERAIER Mk
EEEMRETERIEE ERAR - BRAEER
—EEN\FHATKBEBABEE R (S ERE
EEEBXRERMRN—FHRaREEABEE
EHERERMETIHEERE REEDT
KEFARESHAEEAETIREEELTRE -
BRAEEAEEERBRARTNE—FES  ZA
AR T —F+ - A=+—REAARQRE
BATARANK) 5.45% Mtz - MBERER AR
BB XV EPEE 2 & 30 B RIIR E AR AR A

ERRELE - 5857  AKBMAIHAZ— BAA
AESZEEE - BEERZZTZNFNA
T_BEZTARRRNITES EFALA
AETRAE - B8 REBEZESHKI AN
BARIZES - BEEBEHEASEERE
RIREE - BB —NMNANFLEERAEE
BEEB®%  F—EHE2HEASEHEERNA
BHERB  E5CEEN -+ HEREMERRRK
5o BMAENBRL2EAEEERAIEE Mk
BLEEMREERE HEEERIBEEL
B BEER—NWN\ELFEERBEMAKX
B AL AEELRARARNK—ES
FZATRZE__F+—A=T—H#EEAA
BIE BTN AR 4] 5.45% BUkERS - MIBEE S K&
HEIENISE XV E 52 K30 B AR E BRI AR
AR S e o
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGSNEEAERE

Huang Youquan (ZE{&#&), aged 54, is an executive Director and an
executive president of the Company. Mr. Huang was appointed as an
executive Director on 1 May 2011 and was appointed as the chairman
of the corporate governance committee (the “Corporate Governance
Committee”) with effect from 1 January 2017. He is also the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC and
Hong Kong. Mr. Huang is responsible for the financial and treasury
management of the Group. Mr. Huang is currently a non-executive
director of SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 606) (“SCE CM"), which is a subsidiary of the Company
and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Before joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Huang was the audit
manager and assistant to the head of the Xiamen office of Fujian
Hongshen Accounting Firm. Mr. Huang graduated from the
Department of Mathematics of Xiamen University with a Bachelor’s
degree in Science in 1991. Mr. Huang is a PRC Certified Public
Accountant and a member of the Fujian Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Huang has completed an Executive Master of
Business Administration programme in Xiamen University.

Wong Lun (Z1®), aged 35, is an executive Director and a vice
president of the Company. Mr. Wong was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 March 2017. He is also
the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in the
PRC, Hong Kong, the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.
Mr. Wong is responsible for investor relations and commercial
management of the Group. Mr. Wong is currently the chairman of
the board and an executive director of SCE CM, which is a subsidiary
of the Company and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong joined the Group in September
2010. Mr. Wong graduated from the School of Engineering of
University of Warwick with a Bachelor’s degree of Science in
Engineering and Business Studies in 2010. Mr. Wong holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from China
Europe International Business School. Mr. Wong Lun is the son of Mr.
Wong Chiu Yeung, an executive Director and chairman of the Board
of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ting Leung Huel Stephen (T R#), aged 69, MH, FCCA, FCPA
(Practising), CTA (HK), ACA, FHKIloD, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2010 and is also
the chairman of the audit committee of the Company (the ”Audit
Committee”), and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee. Mr. Ting is an accountant
in public practice and has more than 30 years of experience in this field.
Currently, he is a partner of Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising). Mr. Ting is a non-executive director of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (0116), a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive
director of six other companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (1666), Tongda
Group Holdings Limited (0698), New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited
(0472), Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited (0046), Texhong
International Group Limited (2678) and Dongyue Group Limited (0189).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Lu Hong Te (&2 Bf&), aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2010 and is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee. Mr. Lu obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Industrial and Information Management from
National Cheng Kung University in 1983, and a Master’s degree and a
Doctoral degree in Marketing from the Graduate Institute of Business
Administration of the College of Management of National Taiwan
University in 1985 and 1992, respectively. Mr. Lu is a part time professor
at the Department of Business Administration of Chung Yuan Christian
University in Taiwan, specialising in marketing management and
corporate competitive strategies. He also serves as a visiting professor at
Xiamen Lenivenuity’s EMBA Center. Mr. Lu is an independent non-
executive director of China Lilang Limited (1234) and Cosmo Lady
(China) Holdings Company Limited (2298), the shares of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lu is an independent
director of two companies which are listed on the Taipei Exchange,
namely Firich Enterprises Co., Ltd. (8076) and Lanner Electronics Inc.
(6245), from June 2015 to May 2022, Mr. Lu was an independent
director of Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (1216), which is listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. From April 2007 to
October 2020, Mr. Lu served as an independent non-executive director
of Capxon International Electronic Company Limited (stock code before
the withdrawal of listing: 0469), the withdrawal of the listing of whose
shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange became effective on 23
October 2020.
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Dai Yiyi (Bi7°—), aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2010 and is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Dai is a
full-time professor of the Executive Master of Business Administration
programme of the School of Management of Xiamen University and
the chairman of the board of the Jin Yuan Research Institute of
Xiamen University. Mr. Dai also serves as an adjunct professor for real
estate CEO programmes hosted by Tsinghua University and Peking
University. Mr. Dai is the vice dean of the School of Management of
Xiamen University between January 2008 and December 2015. Mr.
Dai is an independent non-executive director of Cosmo Lady (China)
Holdings Company Limited (2298) and Guangdong-Hong Kong
Greater Bay Area Holdings Limited (1396), which are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, an independent director of Fujian
Septwolves Industry Co., Ltd. (002029) which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and an independent director of two
companies which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, namely
Xiamen ITG Corp., Ltd. (600755) and Xiamen Bank Co., Ltd. (601187).
From May 2016 to May 2022, Mr. Dai was an independent director of
Xiamen C&D Inc. (600153), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr. Dai graduated from Xiamen University with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1989, and received a Doctoral
degree in Economics from Xiamen University in 1999. Mr. Dai was
awarded a certificate as a PRC Certified Property Valuer in 1997.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Wang Meng (E£#), aged 36, is an executive president of the
Company. He is responsible for strategies development and marketing
management and management of land acquisition of the Group.
Before joining the Group in March 2015, Mr. Wang was the
marketing director of Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. Mr. Wang graduated
from North China University of Technology with a Bachelor’s degree
in Arts in 2009. Mr. Wang holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Peking University.

Tang Xiaojuan (Bf&%8), aged 50, is a vice president of the
Company. She is responsible for managing daily operation of the
office of president, information technology management and internal
audit and compliance management of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group in August 2002, Ms. Tang served as the office manager of
Xiamen Yong Hong Ji Real Estate Development Company Limited. Ms.
Tang graduated from the Department of International Trade and
Economics in Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1994. Ms. Tang has completed an
Executive Master of Business Administration programme in Xiamen
University.

Peng Fei (87), aged 40, is an assistant president of the Company
and is responsible for the management of the Southeast Region of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group in October 2007, Mr. Peng
served as a marketing manager of Xiamen Strategic Property Agency
Limited. Mr. Peng graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology in
Business Administration in 2016. Mr. Peng has completed an
Executive Master of Business Administration programme in Xiamen
University.

Wang Yue (E#8), aged 47, was appointed as an assistant president
of the Company on 1 July 2020. He is responsible for cost
management, purchasing management and construction
management of the Group. Before joining the Group in May 2002,
Mr. Wang was a project manager in China Construction Second
Engineering Bureau Ltd. Mr. Wang graduated from the Department
of Civil Engineering of Tongji University with a Bachelor’s degree in
Engineering in 2007. Mr. Wang has completed an Executive Master of
Business Administration programme in Xiamen University.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
REEEERARAT I — T _FEFR

N

(M0

MEEAR

o0

E& 3655 AAFRHTEE AEREEE
BEER I EER T MITREEIE - £54&
ER-_E—AF=ANBEALEE @ 2 BITH
HEBR AR EHMAE - THAERZZTN
FEREEMNMLATTERS BXBE424 - F
EAEBBLE R AESREEABIBEEELT

By -

BWE - 505% 0 ARFEIRE BEAXKER
B EREERREFEREEIE - 5L
R-ZETZ-F\AMBAEE - 2 EEEM
KREFHERBEBERATPAELIME - FK
ITR—NANMFEENTEREABBREE
NESER  BREBESELEM - FRLETK
EFfAESHEREAETIHERBELRE -

WM 405% 0 ARAIPIEAER - BEAKER
MRRERTE ZAER_ZETLF+AM
BAEE  ZHBEEFMTBMEZSHNKIES
[RAREHZE - ZHEENR_T—RFEXR
ERBETABTIHERRR -ZAEDTHE
PIRBESRERAEIRERBELRIE -

TR 475 R _TF+A—HEZTAE
RATIPERRY  AEAEERKAER - KiE
EERTIEREEI - TA4ER-_TZT_FH
AMBASHE  vABEFREEE_TER
ERARIAELIE - TAERSSLFEE
REBARBLIAIRER  EISS2+24 - F
EECTREMAZSREEAETLHERR
TERIZ ©



BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

Zhang Wei (3R{&), aged 39, was appointed as an assistant president
of the Company on 1 April 2021. He is responsible for the
management of Northern Region of the Group. Before joining the
Group in January 2017, Mr. Zhang was the chief market analyst and
the regional investment director of CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. Mr.
Zhang graduated from the Department of Law of Shanghai Maritime
University with a Bachelor’s degree in Economic Law in 2005. Mr.
Zhang is currently pursuing an Executive Master of Business
Administration programme at China Europe International Business
School.

Li Siu Po (Z4), aged 54, is the financial controller and company
secretary of the Company. He is responsible for the financial
reporting, equity and debt financing and company secretarial work of
the Group. Before joining the Group in January 2008, Mr. Li was a
manager of one of the international CPA firms. Mr. Li graduated from
the Department of Accounting in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy in 1994. Mr. Liis a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Li has extensive experience in financial management and auditing.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Li Siu Po (Z4§), a member of senior management of the Group, is
the financial controller and company secretary of the Company. The
biography of Mr. Li is set forth above.
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TRERME

The Company has been committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance so as to enhance the operational efficiency of
the Company. The Company believes that such commitment is
beneficial to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company and the
Board had been in compliance with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code effective during the year (the “CG
Code”) set out in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, save as
disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities transactions
by directors.

The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all
the Directors confirmed that they have strictly complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year under
review.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The members of the Board of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Yuanlai

Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok

Mr. Huang Youquan

Mr. Wong Lun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen

Mr. Lu Hong Te

Mr. Dai Yiyi
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Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Biography of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. Mr. Wong Chiu
Yeung is the father of Mr. Wong Lun, both of whom are executive
Directors. Save as disclosed above, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships between Board
members.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, one of the independent non-executive
Directors, has considerable experience in accounting and financial
management, which is in line with the requirement of Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules which states that “at least one of the independent
non-executive directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise”.

In accordance with the provision C.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in respect
of any possible legal action against them.

In accordance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee shall have a policy concerning diversity of Board members.
In formulating its nomination policy, the Company has created
measurable targets in the following areas, including expertise,
experience, knowledge, professional skills, education background,
independence, age, etc. In doing so, the Company can ensure its
Directors reach the eligible level in terms of their expertise, industrial
experience, education background, independence, age and other
factors, which enable them to make corresponding contributions to
the Board whenever necessary and practicable. The Company and the
Nomination Committee periodically review the nomination policy and
are open to adopt further measurable objectives in the future based
on the business needs of the Company and to keep pace with the
prevailing regulatory requirements and good corporate governance
practice. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Nomination
Committee” of this corporate governance report regarding details of
the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) adopted by
the Board and progress on achieving the measurable objectives to
implement the Board Diversity Policy.
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In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, for each financial
year, the company secretary of an issuer must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. During the year, the Company
confirmed that the company secretary of the Company, Mr. Li Siu Po,
had participated in proper training programmes for not less than 15
hours to ensure his expertise is in line with all the requirements as
applicable to him.

In accordance with the provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, all the
Directors have complied with the requirement of the CG Code
through attending trainings and/or reading materials relevant to the
Company’s business or to director’s duties and responsibilities.

Name of Directors

RIEETRAEIMERT - EEEMRE
B BETANRRWERZNTDRI5/NE
HMMEBAEREI - £ ARRERATWE
FLRFEC2 MDA S @ -
FEIRE BB ANBTS P 2SR B RERRE ©

RBTRIECIAGRE  MEESR2 8K
BEERR BEREEFEMBEERE - F
N BEESEEEBLESEIR HHEER
RAEBRETRAMATAEBNERUTE
STRIARTE ©

Trainings on Corporate
Governance, Regulatory
Development and
Other Relevant Topics
TEER EERRER

BEEHRE H{h i8R EEZHI
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =HGEE v
Mr. Chen Yuanlai BRI R % A& 4
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok Bl LL 5 & v
Mr. Huang Youquan =W A v
Mr. Wong Lun it v
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TRESAE v
Mr. Lu Hong Te =REEE v
Mr. Dai Yiyi C2) vt v

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board is responsible to all shareholders for supervising and
overseeing all major matters of the Company, including the
formulation and approval of overall management and operation
strategies, reviewing the internal control and risk management
systems, reviewing financial performance, considering dividend policy
and monitoring the performance of the senior management, so as to
achieve high efficiency in relevant business of the Company. The
senior management is responsible for the daily management and
specific operation of the Group.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

Pursuant to the provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the board of issuers
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
has held five Board meetings, and passed two written resolutions. It is
considered that the Directors were well acknowledged to the
operation of the Group for the year under review. The attendance of
each Director for the Board meetings and general meeting of the
Company is contained in the following table:
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Number of Number of
Attendances/ Attendance/
Number of Written  Total Number of
Board Meetings Resolutions  General Meeting
HERE HERE
EEEE3XH EEREBR RERREEH
Executive Directors: HITESE :

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =HG LA 5/5 2/2 01
Mr. Chen Yuanlai PRT AR SEAE 4/4° 212 0/1
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok R 4 o A 4/4 2/2 01
Mr. Huang Youquan HWRE L E 4/4 2/2 11
Mr. Wong Lun =L 4/41 2/2 11

Independent non-executive BV #HITESE :

Directors:

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen T B #&%c 4 5/5 2/2 11
Mr. Lu Hong Te BREAeE L 5/5 2/2 0/1
Mr. Dai Yiyi I — &4 5/5 2/2 0/1

1 Except for chairman of the Company, Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung, all executive
Directors were exempted from attending the Board meeting held on 30
August 2022 in which the composition, duties and responsibilities of the
executive Directors were discussed.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year under review, Mr.
Wong Chiu Yeung performed his duties as both the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company. The Board believes that
serving by the same individual as chairman and chief executive officer
is beneficial to the consistency and efficiency in execution of business
plans and decision-making of the Company.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION DEED

The Company entered into a non-competition deed (the “Non-
competition Deed”) with Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung on 6 January 2010
pursuant to which Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung has undertaken to the
Company not to compete with any business of the Group and shall
use his best endeavors to procure his affiliates not to engage in, assist
or support a third party in the operation of, or participate or be
interested in any property development business in the PRC.
Furthermore, Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung has undertaken to the Company
(for itself and for the benefit of the Group) that during the term of
the Non-competition Deed to procure any investment or commercial
opportunity relating to property development business in the PRC that
he or any of his affiliates identifies or proposes or that is offered or
presented to them by a third party to first refer such opportunity to
the Company in accordance with terms of the Non-competition Deed.

The Company has received a confirmation from Mr. Wong Chiu
Yeung for his compliance with the terms of the Non-competition
Deed during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
this report. All the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the matters relating to enforcement of the Non-competition Deed and
consider that the terms of the Non-competition Deed have been
complied with by Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have been instrumental in
ensuring independent views and input are available to the Board. The
Board has received the written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, confirming that he has met the
independence requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent under these independence requirements.

The independent non-executive Directors play an important role in
applying their independent analysis and professional judgments to
provide a professional and fair view to the decisions of the Board. This
is not only beneficial to the warranty of the scientific element of the
decision, but also enhancing the protection of interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors’ Service Contracts” in
the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report for the term of
appointment of independent non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
its Remuneration Committee on 6 January 2010. Under Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules, the remuneration committee of issuers must appoint
an independent non-executive director as the chairman, and the
majority of the members shall be independent non-executive directors.
With effect from 1 April 2012, the Remuneration Committee,
comprising of Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (an executive Director) and Mr.
Ting Leung Huel Stephen (an independent non-executive Director), is
chaired by Mr. Dai Yiyi (an independent non-executive Director).

The prime duties of the Remuneration Committee are:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

o to assess performance of executive Directors and approve the
terms of the service contracts of the executive Directors;
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. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors; and

o to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to discuss the 2021 management bonus and 2022 salary
under the service contracts for executive Directors. Details of the
attendance by members of the Remuneration Committee are set out
as below:
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Number of
Attendance/ Total
Number of Meeting
HERE EREH

Mr. Dai Yiyi B — LA
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =G E
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREBEA

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
the Nomination Committee on 6 January 2010. Under Rule 3.27A of
the Listing Rules, the majority of the nomination committee of issuers
must be independent non-executive directors, and the chairman of
the board or an independent non-executive director must be
appointed as the chairman of this committee. With effect from 1 April
2012, the Nomination Committee, comprising independent non-
executive Directors Mr. Lu Hong Te and Mr. Dai Yiyi, is chaired by Mr.
Wong Chiu Yeung, chairman of the Board and an executive Director.

The prime duties of the Nomination Committee are:

o to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board based on, amongst others, the Board Diversity Policy
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
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o to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

o to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors,
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
chief executive officer and the policy concerning the diversity of
Board members.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to discuss the composition of the Board and the terms of
reference, the diversity policies for the Board, and other issues. Details
of the attendance by members of the Nomination Committee are set
out as below:
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Number of

Attendance/Total

Number of Meeting

HERE EREH

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =G TE 1
Mr. Lu Hong Te BB EEAE 11
Mr. Dai Yiyi BN —%E 11

The Company and the Nomination Committee periodically review the
nomination policy and monitor the progress on achieving the
following measurable objectives (the “Measurable Objectives”) which
have been set for implementing diversity on the composition of Board.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, under the Board Diversity
Policy, the Board has adopted and the Company has fully achieved
the following Measurable Objectives:

(@ To ensure at least two members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualification;

(b) To ensure at least 35% of the members of the Board have more
than 10 years of experience in real estate development;

()  To ensure the appropriate proportion of the independent non-
executive Directors to the executive Directors in order to
maintain the independence of the Board. In particular, at least
35% of the members of the Board shall be independent non-
executive Directors;
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(d) To ensure at least 60% of the members of the Board shall have
attained Bachelor’s degree or higher level of education; and

(e) To ensure the age distribution of the members of the Board is
such that the Board comprised people from at least three
decades.

The Company recognises the importance of gender diversity and
recruits employees at all levels based on merits and regardless of
gender in order to ensure there is a pipeline of male and female
potential successors to the Board and the senior management. The
Company will ensure at least one female Director will be appointed by
31 December 2024.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
the Audit Committee on 6 January 2010. Under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the audit committee of issuers must comprise all non-
executive directors. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, with Mr. Ting Leung Huel
Stephen as the chairman, Mr. Lu Hong Te and Mr. Dai Yiyi as
members.

The prime duties of the Audit Committee are:

o responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and other terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, interim report and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and

o oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and review the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two

TEERRE
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meetings to review the 2021 annual report and the 2022 interim FARG T - —FFEREN T __FF
report of the Company. Details of the attendance by members of the ,HH;&&%;’ETT%FEJ BEXENEBZEZEST LR
Audit Committee are set out as below: AR E BRI T
Number of
Attendances/Total
Number of Meetings
HERE, EEA%
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen T REBEA 2/2
Mr. Lu Hong Te =2REEE 2/2
Mr. Dai Yiyi BN — 4 2/2
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE TrEERZES

Pursuant to the provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company
established the Corporate Governance Committee on 1 April 2012 to
better implement and review the policies and practices on corporate
governance. Mr. Huang Youquan, an executive Director, was
appointed as chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee and
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen and Mr. Lu Hong Te, both independent
non-executive Directors, were appointed as members of the Corporate
Governance Committee.

The prime duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and to make recommendations to the
Board;

o to review and approve the annual corporate governance report
and related disclosures in the annual and interim reports of the
Company and monitor and ensure compliance with relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules or the rules of any other
stock exchange in respect of which the securities of the
Company are listed or quoted, or other laws, regulations, rules
and codes as may be applicable to the Company;

o to make sure that appropriate monitoring systems are in place
to ensure compliance against the relevant internal controls
systems, processes and policies, and in particular to monitor the
implementation of the Company’s plans to maintain high
compliance with its own risk management standards;
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o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code from
time to time adopted by the Company and the disclosure in the
corporate governance report to be contained in the Company's
annual reports.

s RBRIUKEREZFRGREREABSHNEI
REEEXEER X

s THRIAARETERMANERER
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During the year under review, the Corporate Governance Committee  [EIEEFR @ NEERLZESHM 7 — X 2H
met once to discuss the adoption of the CG Code. Details of the i ARA MR EEATEIANBEN - Sk E
attendance by members of the Corporate Governance Committee are R EEAZE ez ERNLFEBERMT
set out as below:
Number of
Attendance/Total
Number of Meeting
HERY SREH
Mr. Huang Yougquan mWELE 171
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREBEA 171
Mr. Lu Hong Te Ep =t 11
AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION =B AN &
For the year under review, the fees paid to the auditor of the EEEER @ HE RS RIESTRIE T AL

Company, Ernst & Young, in respect of the audit services and non-
audit services provided to the Group amounted to approximately
RMB7,954,000 and approximately RMB4,250,000, respectively. Non-
audit services mainly consisted of bond issuance, advisory and other
reporting services.

The Audit Committee is responsible to recommend to the Board on
matters related to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the auditor. The Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as the external auditor of the Group for the year
ending 31 December 2023, subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, and
confirm that the financial statements give a true view of the financial
position and results of the Group as at the date and for the year of
the date ended, and are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of the external
auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young, about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 100 to 109 of this annual
report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is fully responsible for maintaining proper and effective
internal controls and for regularly reviewing the operational efficiency
of the financial, operational, compliance, risk controls, human
resources and other aspects of the system in order to safeguard the
independence of the respective duties and powers of the Group
which in turn can protect the investment of shareholders and the
assets of the Company.

The Internal Audit and Compliance Department of the Company,
being the Company'’s internal audit function, is responsible for regular
review and audit of the finance and operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the purpose of ensuring the internal controls are in
place and functioning properly as intended. For weaknesses of
internal controls and accounting procedures of the Group which the
external auditor have identified and reported to the Company, the
Company would pay full attention to the recommendations made by
the external auditor and make appropriate improvements.

Besides, the Company has also appointed Ernst & Young (China)
Advisory Limited to review the internal controls of the selected
processes of the selected entities of the Group. The 2022 internal
control assessment report revealed that no material control weakness
was identified.
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During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
their effectiveness and concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group were adequate and effective
during the year.

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. In practice,
employees of the Group who become aware of any events and/or
matters which he/she considers potentially inside information, will
report to the designated personnel of the Company who, if
considered appropriate, will pass such information to the Board for
the purpose of considering and deciding whether or not such
information constitutes inside information and disclosure of which
shall be made immediately.

The aforementioned risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During the year, by a special resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 24 June 2022, the articles of association was
amended and a new set of amended and restated articles of
association was adopted to (i) allowing general meetings to be held as
an electronic meeting (also referred to as virtual meeting) or a hybrid
meeting; (i) allowing flexibility in fixing the record date for the
purpose of declaration and distribution of dividends; (iii) bringing the
Articles of Association in line with amendments to the Listing Rules
and applicable laws of the Cayman Islands; and (iv) making certain
minor housekeeping amendments to the articles of association for the
purpose of clarifying existing practice and making consequential
amendments in line with the amendments to the articles of
association.

The amended and restated articles of association is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
COMMUNICATION POLICY

Establishing a good relationship with investors plays a vital role in
enhancing the operational efficiency of the Company and in
protecting interests of the shareholders. The Company insists a
transparent, honest and timely disclosure of related information on
the business development of the Company through various channels
to ensure that the shareholders and investors have an adequate
understanding of the operations of the Company.

The Company’s website at www.sce-re.com provides information
such as e-mail address, correspondence address, telephone numbers,
etc. for making inquiries to the Company in order to maintain
effective communication with its shareholders and investors. In
addition, interim and annual reports, circulars and notices of the
Company will be despatched to shareholders in compliance with the
Listing Rules and the same will also be published on the website of
the Company and that of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

During the year, the Company has received numerous visits from
investors and arranged investors and analysts to visit the Group's
property sites at various locations. The Company has also presented
to them the development strategies and business operation status of
the Company. The Company also participated in various investor
conferences and non-deal roadshows to enhance the industry
awareness of the Company. The management believes actively
seeking face-to-face communication with shareholders and investors
is the best way to enhance their confidence in the Company.
Particulars of the investors’ meetings during the year are set out in the
following table:

AL 1/‘—[‘-\\ =+
fl= E?ﬁ%#ﬁﬁ?

BREZBERMCRSBER

HEEERET RIFORRIER  HIERRREENR
K RERRERAEEENER - ARFE
FER  HEMWABSBREMBHREAFE
BERNBHER  UEREBRREREEH R
RIEFB RANRA

XA B 48 vk www.sce-re.com 32 i R R A &) &
AMER L B BEFRBEAS
NERREIREERERNRREITE R 5B
i o oh - ARARERRRTEAFPHARE
ERE BEREBES  UFEEMREI - m
RN E AR B B A X FT AU A o

FA - ARAERFERSHUROREERG - &
BHREE RS TEN2BARENSHHIRE
W A FIN AR R R E R RS R R EERB -
BRTRZ RS MREEGRRIERZHE © 12
BEAHUARFANREE - EEERE - BR
FRERRIMEEERHENER SR
PIHRABELHRIFIE - FRZNKREES
M FBERIIN TR -

Date Description Place
=p: RE I B
31 March 2022 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
—E-—F=A=+—H R H IR mE
1 April 2022 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
—E-_—FWA—H IR FE gk
6 April 2022 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
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Date Description Place
B8 AFS 3 B
10-13 May 2022 BofA Securities 2022 APAC Financial, Real Estate Equity  Virtual
and Credit Conference
“T_HFRRA+TAET=H ERFBH02TACE - BivEERREERE mE
14 June 2022 CGS-CIMB 7th Annual HK/China Property & Property Virtual
Management Virtual Conference
—E__FXATEA B EECEPBEME METERES mE
21 June 2022 HSBC 6th Annual Asia Credit Conference Virtual
—E__FXAZt+—H EEERETMEEFE B,k
22 June 2022 Citi Asia Pacific Property Conference 2022 Virtual
—EHFRXAZ+ZH TEET A 2022 HWEFE L
23 June 2022 Haitong Securities Annual Conference 2022 Virtual
—T-FXA=Z+=R BB SR 2022 FERBE R
28 June 2022 UBS APAC Property Conference 2022 Virtual
—T-FXAZ+NR iR 2022 55 K E i 18 mE
31 August 2022 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
—E__FA\A=+—H R G R m
1 September 2022 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
—EZFhA—H R FIE mE
The Company’s annual general meeting of shareholders is a good AR FREFPEAS L EHS HE
opportunity for communication between the Board and shareholders  t7mte - R e B E A€ EE KB ngﬁﬂ_ﬂﬁﬁ%
of the Company. Notice of annual general meeting and related | P RIMIB TS X ERE - FOEE BT
documents will be sent to the shareholders pursuant to the  pragyt B A 54935 )% -

requirements of the Listing Rules, and will be published on the

website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and that of the Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the shareholders’
communications policy and is satisfied that it is effective for the Board
to understand the views and opinion of the shareholders through the

available channels.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

1.1

The following procedures for shareholders (the
“Shareholders”, each a “Shareholder”) of the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM")
of the Company are prepared in accordance with Article
58 of the articles of association of the Company:

(1) One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”)
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition (the “Requisition”), to require an
EGM to be called by the Directors for the transaction
of any business specified therein.

(2)  Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company via
email at the email address of the Company at
ir@sce-re.com.

(3) The EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such Requisition.

(4)  If the Board fail to proceed to convene such meeting
within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of such
Requisition, the Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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2. Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1 Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
details of which are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

2.2 Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect
of the Company via email at the email address of the
Company at ir@sce-re.com.

2.3 Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for the
prompt response from the Company if it deems
appropriate.

3. Procedures and contact details for putting

forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

3.1 To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of
his/her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its
detailed contact information via email at the email address
of the Company at ir@sce-re.com.

3.2 The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will
be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar
and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar that
the request is made by a Shareholder and such request is
proper and in order, the Board will determine in its sole
discretion whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the notice
of meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

3.3 The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 20 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting;

(2)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in
an EGM;

(3) Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an EGM other than by way of a
special resolution of the Company.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in property development, commercial
management, property management, land development and long-
term rental apartments business in the PRC during the year. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1
to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the subsections headed “Market Review”, “Business
Review”, “Financial Review"” ,”Environmental Policies and
Performance”, “Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations”
and “Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers” in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and the
section headed “Chairman’s Statement — Outlook” of this annual
report , which form part of the contents of the business review of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 as contained in this
Report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 110 to 278.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of factors
including our earnings and financial condition, operating
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions that our
Directors may deem relevant and will be subject to the approval of
our shareholders. There is no assurance that dividends of any amount
will be declared or distributed in any given year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities, perpetual
capital instruments and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated as appropriate, is set out on pages 279 to 280.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 14 and
15 to the financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of the properties under development of the Group during the
year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Details of the completed properties held for sale of the Group during
the year are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Between 4 January 2022 and 28 February 2022, the Company had
made partial repurchases in a total principal amount of
US$154,000,000 of the senior notes due on 10 March 2022 with an
aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 and a coupon rate of
5.875% (the “Repurchased Notes”), representing 30.8% of the
aggregate principal amount of the senior notes due on 10 March
2022 originally issued. The Repurchased Notes have been cancelled in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the senior notes due on
10 March 2022.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB3,184,866,000.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately RMB7,958,000.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, combined sales to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's
total revenue for the year. Combined purchases from the Group'’s five
largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Chen Yuanlai
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok
Mr. Huang Youquan
Mr. Wong Lun

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
Mr. Lu Hong Te
Mr. Dai Yiyi

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
at each annual general meeting, one third of the directors for the
time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third) will retire from office
by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. The
directors to retire in every year will be those who have been longest in
office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who became or were last re-elected directors on the same
day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. There are no provisions relating to
retirement of directors upon reaching any age limit.
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Accordingly, Mr. Chen Yuanlai, Mr. Wong Lun and Mr. Dai Yiyi will
retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from all the three
independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this report
still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 50 to 57 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung, Mr. Chen Yuanlai and Mr. Cheng Hiu
Lok, being executive Directors, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 5
February 2010. Mr. Huang Youquan, being an executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term from 1
May 2011 to 4 February 2013. Mr. Wong Lun, being an executive
Director, has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term from 1 March 2017 to 29 February 2020. Each of their service
contracts is renewable automatically upon the expiry of the then
current term of appointment, subject to termination by either party
giving not less than three months’ written notice.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr. Ting
Leung Huel Stephen, Mr. Lu Hong Te and Mr. Dai Yiyi, being
independent non-executive Directors for an initial term of three years
commencing from 6 January 2010. Upon expiry of the initial term, the
Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr. Ting
Leung Huel Stephen, Mr. Lu Hong Te and Mr. Dai Yiyi, for their
appointment as independent non-executive Directors for a term of
three years commencing from 6 January 2013 to 5 January 2016,
which is renewable automatically thereafter for successive term of one
year each commencing from the next day after the expiry of the then
current term of appointment, subject to termination by either party
giving not less than two months’ written notice and the retirement by
rotation requirement in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company and the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee oversees the overall remuneration
policy and structure of the Group. The Group provides employees
with competitive remuneration and benefits. The remuneration policy
is reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and
contribution of the employees and the industry remuneration level.

The authority of the Board of Directors to determine directors’ fees
are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings. The
emoluments payable to the Directors are determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the transactions set out in note 44 to the financial statements
and the transaction specified in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transaction” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this
section, no Director nor a connected entity of a director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, the holding company of the Company,
or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, there was or is permitted indemnity provision (within the
meaning in Section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company being in
force.

The Company has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for certain
legal actions brought against its directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS EZEE= N FETH A ERERMD »

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, A A IR B (& R Y 2 BOK

UNDERLYING SHARES, AND DEBENTURES =)

At 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the AZE__F+__A=+—"H EFERFTET

Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, LBZ/\EE(\\$ T&ﬁm ,p/fl(m%ﬁ %‘f&
=g/

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated  Ef
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and {7 - ﬁﬁaﬂx@&{f%ﬁq:! }fgﬁﬁﬂ?&)‘é %&H,EJ
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required  E{&HIE 352 EAR A FA TR ENELMESD
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as SR IBFIZXEST AIZEB AN AN 7] R & 7B B 2 P Ay
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock  #EzmMAB T :

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares (the “Shares”) of the Company: NARATEBIZ (RG] B9FAE

Interest in Shares

R 17
Percentage
Total of the
Interest of Number of Company'’s
Beneficial Controlled Shares Held Issued Share
Name of Director ESpP Owner Corporation or Interested Capital

FrisdfER  MAAQFCRT
ERAA SEGEEERS ZBRHBE  RANEDL

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (“Mr. Wong") E#8F5 % & ([Z54£ ) - 2,120,500,000  2,120,500,000 50.21%
(Note 1) (BifzE1)

Mr. Chen Yuanlai ("Mr. Chen”) BRI REE ([FREH]) 20,000,000 230,230,000 250,230,000 5.93%
(Note 2) (FizE2)

Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok (“Mr. Cheng")  EBEEZest 4 ([Hp404 |) - 230,230,000 230,230,000 5.45%
(Note 3) (Fifz£3)
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:
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These 2,120,500,000 Shares comprised 1,660,040,000 Shares registered in
the name of Newup Holdings Limited (“Newup”), 230,230,000 Shares
registered in the name of East Waves Investments Limited (“East Waves")
and 230,230,000 Shares registered in the name of Keen Century
Investments Limited (“Keen Century”). Mr. Wong held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of each of Newup, East Waves and Keen Century and
was deemed to be interested in the aggregate of 2,120,500,000 Shares
held by Newup, East Waves and Keen Century pursuant to the SFO.

These 230,230,000 Shares were registered in the name of Rising Trade
Holdings Limited (“Rising Trade”). Mr. Chen held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Rising Trade and was deemed to be interested in the
230,230,000 Shares held by Rising Trade pursuant to the SFO.

These 230,230,000 Shares were registered in the name of Wealthy Gate
Holdings Limited (“Wealthy Gate”). Mr. Cheng held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Wealthy Gate and was deemed to be interested in
the 230,230,000 Shares held by Wealthy Gate pursuant to the SFO.

Long positions in share options of the Company:

faET -

MiEE2

FiEE3 -

Number of Share
Options Directly

EEEWE

#2,120,500,000 A% f% 17 2 3& LA #T A HE IR B R
AR([F1F ]) %3550/ 1,660,040,000 % i%
7 ARBREERAT([EE)BHEZIH
230,230,000 Az A% tn R IA IR E B R A 7 ([ 2
1 |) % 5% & 52 89 230,230,000 R AR 15 © & 5 4
BEFA HERBHENZIEBEITRA
IEARIR R 5 R B S &GI8 B A S B A
HEREMIFERA5T2,120,500,000 KD °

#%230,230,000 kB A B BIEIRER AR ([E
BEBREZER REEFEEENEIE T
BRA - Bt REES R AEEIEREAEEE
B #A 1 230,230,000 X% °

5%230,230,000 & i D A B EERR AR AR ([ =
EDNAREERL - BAEEBRETENZ B BIT
A AiREES RAREIERERES
EH B #) 230,230,000 AR

AIFEAE AT A

Percentage
of the Company'’s

Name of Director EEHR Beneficially Owned Issued Share Capital
BEEERES HAERTEBIT
ZEBREZE RAENE DL
Mr. Huang Youquan =R A 16,000,000 0.38%
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Long positions in ordinary shares of SCE CM:

Interest in shares

IR 43 R 22
Percentage of
Interest of Total Number SCE CM'’s
Controlled of Shares Held Issued Share
Name of Director Beneficial Owner Corporation or Interested Capital
EHEREE
FREE 2 ERITREN
EEHE ERBEEA FEHEEER idvip 4= Aotk
Mr. Wong - 1,248,490,946 1,248,490,946 60.17%
=i (Note) (Fff&E)
Note: P

These 1,248,490,946 shares were registered in the name of Happy Scene Global
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Affluent Way International Limited, which was
in turn wholly-owned by the Company. As at the date of this report, the Company
was owned as to 50.21% by Mr. Wong through companies wholly-owned by him.
Mr. Wong was therefore deemed to be interested in the shares in SCE CM held by
Happy Scene Global Limited pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any of the Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children, nor were there any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
REEEERARAT I — T _FEFR

%55 1,248,490,946 IR BN E S IRIRER QA1 E
T ZARHAARARNBERERERARZERS - K
AREBH ARRHAEREBBEEERENRRE
BHB50.21% © FILRIEEFH KA EKOIHE AL
LESRBERARIIFANPHEAERND P HAER -

BR EXFTHEN RZEZ=F+—A=1+—
B AARBEEEKEBITHABELERA
AR E MR EE MR - BRI G R EEE
PHEEMIREES R EE KIS 352 (KRR T
ATFENELME D HAREIZESTRIZERAN
RRAT REBE IO E R RKE ©

SRBEERD SEEERER

FABEREMNESHELRBIARKNETFLE
HE BB EARR RS TEMEA BRI
ERERE BN R - WETRRETREMNE
FAER « NAE] - HIER AR SERHME AR
BAREN PN AVA: A E S i e RO
A RNEBESA BN N EF L -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 April 2018 (the
“2018 Scheme") for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. The participants of the 2018 Scheme include any directors
(including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) and employees of any member
of the Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
customers, suppliers, agents, business partners, joint venture business
partners, service providers of any member of the Group.

The 2018 scheme became effective on 23 April 2018 and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of
10 years up to 22 April 2028.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2018 Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at 23 April 2018, being the
adoption date of the 2018 Scheme, i.e. 382,384,000 shares
(representing approximately 9.05% of the total number of issued
shares as at the date of approval of this annual report), unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval from shareholders to refresh the
10% limit, provided, inter alia, that the maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2018 Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the number
of shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options granted to each eligible participant in
the 2018 Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue for the time being. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval at a general meeting. Share options granted to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within five
business days from the date of delivery of the offer letter, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, which period may commence from the date of the offer
of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of the grant of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company'’s shares as quoted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Further details of the 2018 Scheme as to the value of the share
options granted are disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements.
The values of share options calculated using the binomial model are
subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to the subjective
nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the
expected future performance input to the model, and certain inherent
limitations of the model itself. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to
the variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair
value of an option.

At the time of grant of the share options, the Company may specify
any minimum period(s) for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.
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During the year, details of movements in the share options under the

2018 Scheme were as follows:

EEEWE

WAFER - 1B — /A BT
RERBFIBLT -

Weighted Average
Outstanding Closing Price
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed at Exercise Immediately
Category and at 1 January during during during during 31 December Price hefore the Date(s)
Name of Grantee 2022 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2022 per Share  Date of Grant Exercise Period of Exercise
RZBZZE i Jmbet:3 RERRRE
-A-8 tZB=+-A &R ARNME
REABARER HRGE ERRH QTR EmH EREN HATE ERIEE RHAM 18 FamE
Directors
g%
Mr. Huang Youguan 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July 20200 -
11 December 2028
BiEEE 8% 2305 TECRELA-RE
+-A+zA 2 \Ft-At-H
Sub-total 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000
Nt
Employees of 135,000,000 - - - - 135,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July2019to -
the Group 11 December 2028
ASEET 18T ZE-)\E ZZ-N\EtA-BE
T-A+=R ZE\FtZAT-R
135,000,000 - - - - 135,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July 20200 -
11 December 2028
L8ET ZE-)0E “RRELR-BE
tZAtZH ZECNETZAT-H
Sub-total 270,000,000 - - - - 270,000,000
’J\E'
Total 286,000,000 - - - = 286,000,000

&5t

During 2018, the Company granted 382,000,000 share options under

the 2018 Scheme to the Group’s employees (including Directors). As
at 31 December 2022, the Company had 286,000,000 share options
(31 December 2021: 286,000,000 share options) outstanding under
the 2018 Scheme, which represented approximately 6.77% of the

total number of issued shares as at the date of approval of this annual

report.

ZE-N\F ARARBEZZT-NFFEIRL
382,000,000 fE iz # T AN B B T (BIEE
F)o RZE-—_F+-_A=+—0H  xQA
»ZF — \F 5 &l 5 286,000,000 ( = &
——F+=HA=+—H : 286,000,000 % i i%
BE) MARITE 2 BEARAE - (AR AFHALEZ A
B BEITIRD BE R 6.77% °
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries nor contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business whether or not for provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during or at the end of
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company, which
were not contract of service with any Director or any person engaged
in full time employment of the Company, were entered into or existed
during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) in the
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:
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=

HE

Long positions: A :
Number of Percentage of
Capacity and Shares the Company’s
Nature of Held or Issued Share
Name Interest Interested Capital
HHR FrEEsR HARA BB BT
£ EmME BERGOEE RAMAE DL
Newup (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,660,040,000 39.31%
A (M) E=AA
East Waves (Note 1) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
= (fEE) EmEAA
Keen Century (Note 1) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
st (FfEE 1) EnEA A
Rising Trade (Note 2) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
E2E (fifaz2) E=AA
Wealthy Gate (Note 3) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
=& (fFE3) BEmEAA
Note 1: Each of Newup, East Waves and Keen Century was wholly-owned and  [isF1: 15 « B REH S RELED SR RITH

Note 2:

Note 3:

controlled by Mr. Wong; accordingly, Mr. Wong was deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Newup, East Waves and Keen Century
pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Wong was the sole director of Newup, East
Waves and Keen Century.

Rising Trade was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Chen; accordingly,
Mr. Chen was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Rising Trade
pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Chen was the sole director of Rising Trade.

Wealthy Gate was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Cheng;
accordingly, Mr. Cheng was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Wealthy Gate pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Cheng was the sole director of
Wealthy Gate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other

than a Director or chief executive of the Company, whose interests

are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares, and Debentures”

above,

had registered an interest or short position in the Shares and

underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following connected transactions
that are not exempt from the annual reporting requirement in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

On 9 September 2022, Affluent Way International Limited (a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (¥4 B Bl R & BR A 7]) as
vendor and Thriving Elite Ventures Limited (2% £ &l 4% & B A 7)) as
purchaser (the “Purchaser”) entered into a share transfer agreement
(the “Share Transfer Agreement”) in respect of the sale and purchase
of 70% of the issued share capital of Funlive Holdings Limited (77 &
AR A A]) (the “Disposal Company” or “Funlive Holdings”, and
together with its subsidiaries, the “Disposal Group” or the “Funlive
Group”) for a consideration of RMB56,000,000 (the “Disposal”). As
at the date of the Share Transfer Agreement, the Purchaser was
ultimately beneficially owned as to 82% by Mr. Wong, the chairman
of the Board, an executive Director, and a controlling Shareholder
holding approximately 50.21% of the total number of issued shares
in the Company. Accordingly, the Purchaser was an associate of Mr.
Wong and a connected person of the Company, and the Disposal
constituted a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Completion of the Disposal (the “Completion”) under the
Share Transfer Agreement took place on 16 September 2022, upon
which the Company ceased to have any equity interest in the Disposal
Company and the Disposal Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Company.

The Disposal Group represented non-core and ancillary businesses of
the Group that had been non-performing over an extended period of
time. The Disposal was made with a view to concentrating the
Group's focus and resources on its principal businesses and enriching
and improving the Group’s working capital and liquidity as a property
developer, such that deployment of both management and financial
resources of the Group can be achieved.

Save for the aforementioned connected transactions, the Group had
the related party transactions disclosed in note 44 to the financial
statements, some of which are connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as
specified, and such transactions are fully exempt from the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions constituted continuing connected

transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022,
which are subject to the reporting and annual review requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Simultaneously upon signing of the Share Transfer Agreement, on 9

September 2022, the Group and the Funlive Group entered into the

following agreements (the “CCT Agreements”, and each a “CCT
Agreement”) each for the term commencing on the date of

Completion, i.e. 16 September 2022, and ending on 31 December
2024 (both dates inclusive), such that the Group and the Funlive
Group could continue to enjoy the services of each other immediately
following Completion and afterwards:

(a

the Advisory and Operational Service Framework Agreement, i.e.
the framework agreement entered into between Funlive
Holdings (for itself and as trustee for the benefits of its
subsidiaries from time to time) as supplier and the Company (for
itself and as trustee for the benefits of its subsidiaries from time
to time) as customer in relation to the provision of advisory and
operational services by the Funlive Group to the Group. It was
expected that the aggregate amount of the service fees payable
by the Group to the Funlive Group under the Advisory and
Operational Service Framework Agreement would not exceed
RMB4,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022,
RMB25,000,000 for the year ending 31 December 2023 and
RMB39,000,000 for the year ending 31 December 2024,

the Tenancy Agreement, i.e. the tenancy agreement entered
into between Shanghai Junbang Trading Co., Ltd. ( bG8 3
2B R A a]) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) as lessor (“Shanghai Junbang”) and Shanghai Funlive
Apartment Management Limited ( E/8 5B ABERE AR A F])
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Funlive Holdings) as
lessee (“Shanghai Funlive”) in relation to the lease of certain
premises by Shanghai Junbang to Shanghai Funlive for use as
office premises. It was expected that the annual amount of
rental payable by Shanghai Funlive to Shanghai Junbang under
the Tenancy Agreement would not exceed RMB700,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022, RMB2,200,000 for the year
ending 31 December 2023 and RMB2,200,000 for the year
ending 31 December 2024; and
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(c)  the Property Management Framework Agreement, i.e. the
framework agreement entered into between the Company (for
itself and as trustee for the benefits of its subsidiaries from time
to time) as supplier and Funlive Holdings (for itself and as
trustee for the benefits of its subsidiaries from time to time) as
customer in relation to the provision of property management
services by the Group to the Funlive Group. It was expected that
the aggregate amount of the service fees payable by the Funlive
Group to the Group under the Property Management
Framework Agreement would not exceed RMB400,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022, RMB2,000,000 for the year
ending 31 December 2023 and RMB2,600,000 for the year
ending 31 December 2024.

The Funlive Group is principally engaged in asset investments advisory,
apartments development management and lease operations
management in the PRC. While these are not at the core of the
Group's businesses, the Funlive Group has been offering substantive
support for the Group’s principal businesses in areas such as
apartments development, as the pre-development advisory and
development management services, marketing management services
and operational management services provided by the Funlive Group
have facilitated the effective planning and execution of the Group’s
apartment projects. The entering into of the Advisory and Operational
Service Framework Agreement allows the Group to have
uninterrupted access to the advisory and operational services of the
Funlive Group following completion of the Disposal, thereby
continuing to take advantage of the Funlive Group’s competitive
strength in the industry and local market experience and expertise to
guarantee effectual implementation of the Group’s apartments
development strategies and plans.
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On the other hand, the Funlive Group had been headquartered and
conducting its office operations in premises owned by the Group. In
addition, given the differences in business focus, the Funlive Group
had relied on the property management services provided by the
Group in respect of its office premises and apartments operated by
Funlive Group. By continuing to provide the Funlive Group with
necessary support under the Tenancy Agreement and the Property
Management Framework Agreement, the Group could not only
generate additional revenue in the form of rental income and service
fees, but also avoid significant changes in or disruptions to the
business operations of the Funlive Group to enable continuous and
efficacious collaboration between the Group and the Funlive Group
following completion of the Disposal.

Upon Completion, the Funlive Group becomes subsidiaries of the
Purchaser, which was then ultimately beneficially owned as to 82%
by Mr. Wong, the chairman of the Board, an executive Director, and a
controlling Shareholder holding approximately 50.21% of the total
number of issued shares in the Company. Accordingly, the Funlive
Group becomes associates of Mr. Wong and connected persons of
the Company, and the transactions contemplated under the CCT
Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions conducted under the CCT
Agreements during the year ended 31 December 2022 and confirm
that such transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the CCT Agreements on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

CONFIRMATIONS FROM THE COMPANY'S
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Group has
engaged its auditor to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the HKICPA. The Board of the Company confirms that the auditor
has issued an unqualified letter to the Board containing the findings
and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions conducted by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 and confirming that nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe the continuing connected transactions
conducted by the Group under the CCT Agreements during the year
ended 31 December 2022:

(@  have not been approved by the Board;
(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing

policies of the Group (in respect of transactions involving
provision of services by the Group);
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() were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the relevant annual caps.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been delivered by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 6
September 2019, pursuant to an agreement (the “2019 Facility
Agreement”) dated 6 September 2019 entered into by and among,
inter alia, the Company as borrower, certain of its subsidiaries as
original guarantors, and a syndicate of banks, the banks have agreed
to grant to the Company a HK$516,000,000 and US$180,000,000
dual tranche term loan facility (the “2019 Facility”) to refinance
existing financial indebtedness of the Group and finance the general
corporate funding requirements of the Group.
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The 2019 Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation is made
under the 2019 Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3 January
2020, by an agreement dated 2 January 2020 (the “2020 January
Facility Agreement”) entered into by and among, inter alia, Sleek Time
Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower,
and a syndicate of banks, the banks have agreed to grant to the
borrower a term loan facility in an aggregate of the Hong Kong dollar
equivalent of RMB560,000,000 (the “2020 January Facility”).

The 2020 January Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation is made
under the 2020 January Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by the
Company and the Sleek Time Limited’s other shareholders on a
several basis.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 July 2020,
by an agreement dated 8 July 2020 (the “2020 July Facility
Agreement”) entered into by and among, inter alia, Best Access
International Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as borrower, and a bank, the bank has agreed to grant to the
borrower a term loan facility in an aggregate of the Hong Kong dollar
or United States dollar equivalent of up to RMB400,000,000 (the
“2020 July Facility”) to, amongst others, finance the repayment of
shareholders’ loan owed by the borrower’s indirect holding company.

The 2020 July Facility is for a term of three years commencing from
the date on which the first utilisation is made under the 2020 July
Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by the Company and Best
Access International Limited’s other shareholder on a several basis.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
November 2020, by an agreement dated 26 November 2020 (the
“2020 November Facility Agreement”) entered into by and between
Bohai International Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as borrower and Hang Seng Bank Limited as lender,
the lender has agreed to grant to the borrower a term loan facility in
an aggregate of US$50,000,000 (or its Hong Kong dollars equivalent)
and which may, subject to the approval of the lender in its sole and
absolute discretion, be increased by an aggregate amount of up to
US$40,000,000 upon the request of the borrower in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the 2020 November Facility Agreement
(the “2020 November Facility”).

The 2020 November Facility is for a term of three years and six
months commencing from the date on which the first utilisation is
made under the 2020 November Facility Agreement, and is
guaranteed by the Company and the Bohai International Investment
Limited’s wholly-owned subsidiary.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 March
2021,
dated 22 March 2021 entered into by and among, inter alia, the

pursuant to an agreement (the “2021 Facility Agreement”)

Company as borrower, certain of its subsidiaries as original
guarantors, and a syndicate of banks, the banks have agreed to grant
to the Company a HK$351,000,000 and US$342,500,000 dual
tranche term loan facility (the “2021 Facility”) to refinance existing
financial indebtedness of the Group and fund payment of any fees,
costs and expenses payable by the Group in connection with the 2021
Facility Agreement and other related documents.

The 2021 Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation is made
under the 2021 Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Each of the 2019 Facility Agreement, the 2020 January Facility
Agreement, the 2020 July Facility Agreement, the 2020 November
Facility Agreement and the 2021 Facility Agreement contain a
requirement that Mr. Wong, a controlling shareholder of the
Company and an executive Director, and his family members (together
with Mr. Wong, the “Wong Family”), (a) must remain as the single
largest shareholder of the Company; (b) must hold legally and
beneficially and directly or indirectly 35% (under the 2020 July Facility
Agreement, the 2020 November Facility Agreement and the 2021
Facility Agreement only) or 40% (under the rest of the agreements) or
more of all classes of the Company’s voting share capital and/or must
directly or indirectly control (as defined in the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers) the Company; and (c) Mr. Wong or a
member of the Wong Family must remain as the chairman of the
Board of the Company throughout the respective life of the 2019
Facility, the 2020 January Facility, the 2020 July Facility, the 2020
November Facility and the 2021 Facility. A breach of such
requirements will constitute an event of default or (as the case may
be) mandatory prepayment event under the 2019 Facility Agreement,
the 2020 January Facility Agreement, the 2020 July Facility
Agreement, the 2020 November Facility Agreement and the 2021
Facility Agreement, and as a result, the 2019 Facility, the 2020
January Facility, the 2020 July Facility, the 2020 November Facility and
the 2021 Facility will be liable to be declared immediately due and
payable.

As at the approval date of this report, Mr. Wong, through companies
wholly-owned by him, holds approximately 50.21% of the voting
share capital of the Company.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Please refer to the section headed “Chairman’s Statement —
Outlook” for an indication of the likely future development in the
Group's business.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Wong Chiu Yeung
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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EY::

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China SCE
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 110 to 278, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
REEEERARAT I — T _FEFR

BHHREBEZERERATNEZERR
(REISHEZMA LA BFRAA])

==
=
AN

BB RAVENE110EEE 278 BHNAF
SEZERERAR(TERA)) REHEB R A
(EEEH ) NGREMBRE - i VBRER
BRENR-_ZE-—F+-A=+—BAHEREHH
MAREBEZALFENGABEREME
AREER  GEARSZPIREGERESRE
= URIZEMBHREN T - REEESFRK
RIEE -

BMRAE  ZEHGREUNBRRERBEEAE:T
MmAag ((BEEMAE ) BHNE BT BHR
HEA([BBVBEMELEA ] EEmMPEHR
BT S&EER-_FT_F+-HA=1T—H0H
REMBIMRAREBEZB IEFENGRE MR
RBRERGEHSTRE - WEEREB LD FEHIH
WERAREZ Al -

B R ER

BEMERBEBBSAMAGRMNBT BT
A (T &EFET LR ) ETE - RAIEZLF?
AT AENEETCSEARSESRHEN TS
ISR AL B R PR — PRI - 1R
BEEG M ASBMNEX S EIEEFA
(T=pR1)) > HABILR BEKE - YEETT
AP R B BIES(E - RAIAEE - B
ERHEREERE AL AR MINET
BRIRMERE -

i

+



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HEESASEE

BHhREEZERERAFTZERR
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RRETEREETPEONMELN

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

BREMEDAENMGE

The Group has various investment properties in Mainland
China. Such investment properties are measured at fair value
and the aggregate carrying amount of these investment
properties was approximately RMB39.2 billion as at 31
December 2022.
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Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management to determine the fair value of the investment
properties. To support management’s determination of the fair
value, the Group engaged external valuers to perform
valuations on the investment properties at the end of the
reporting period.
ERENETREMENRAER - RIEHEAMET RFIE -
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The accounting policies and disclosures for the estimation of
the fair value of investment properties are included in notes 3,
4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
REMELAAENGFTNEFBRREBEBRE BREEGES UK
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We evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuers. We also involved our
internal valuation specialists to assist us to assess the
methodologies and assumptions adopted in the
valuation for estimating the fair value of the investment
properties, or compared prices of recent transactions of
comparable properties to benchmark the fair value of
the investment properties held by the Group on a
sampling basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BRESBE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RREFBNSHEET TR OMERN

Net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale

MBPYERSELHECERYENTERFE

The Group had properties under development and completed
properties held for sale of approximately RMB102.9 billion and
approximately RMB4.8 billion, respectively, as at 31 December
2022, which represented 53.0% and 2.5% of the Group's total
assets, respectively. In addition, provision for write down to net
realisable value of approximately RMB495 million on properties
under development and approximately RMB495 million on
completed properties held for sale, were recognised by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value
of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale included the following:
B EREREDPYELFELEDERYE
Z A EI R E BRI B

e Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
internal control and process of the assessment of
the net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for
sale;
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To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BRENSBE

BHhREEZERERAFTZERR
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RREFBNSHEET TR OMESN

Net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale (Continued)

MBPYERBELHECERYENTERFE(E)

The carrying amounts of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The determination of net
realisable value of the properties under development and
completed properties held for sale involved critical accounting
estimates on the selling price, costs to make the sale, and for
properties under development, the costs to completion. Given
the significant balance of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale and the involvement of
critical accounting estimates, assessment of net realisable value
of properties under development and completed properties
held for sale is considered as a key audit matter.
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Disclosures in relation to the estimation of net realisable value
of properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are included in notes 3, 4, 18 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Evaluating the property construction cycle with
particular focus on, but not limited to, reviewing
the cost budgeting for estimated costs to
completion; and
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Evaluating management’s assessment about the
estimated selling price less the estimated costs to
make the sale and the estimated costs to
completion by checking the recent market
transaction prices of properties with comparable
locations and conditions, where applicable;
comparing with the average historical costs to
make the sales by the Group; and comparing the
latest estimated costs to completion to the budget
approved by management and examining the
supporting documents such as construction
contracts, internal correspondences and approvals.
‘@EE%TE%F&E&%#%%%%&%
BR5ER(ER) B SEEENTIHELE
%ﬁ$&ﬁmf K& ﬁ%ﬁ%%l@$ﬁﬁ
BEMENTAEETHLER  WiREZAMY - f
WMEEAR  REBERIEX  FHERE G
FHEER A HE KA R fbE T TR AR RS -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHEHRE

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Tsang Chiu Hang.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

/\'='"

rAa Hin 2 mEU eIk

Year ended 31 December 2022 Eiz;%_?;::

Frt-HA=t—BIFE

2022 2021
—E-= B —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B aE AR®T T ARETT
REVENUE W 6 26,705,112 37,737,447
Cost of sales 5 & BN (22,284,779)  (29,563,825)
Gross profit EA 4,420,333 8,173,622
Other income and gains H Al A R as 6 820,387 769,663
Changes in fair value of investment SEYENTEE
properties, net FRR 15 (25,422) 223,071
Selling and marketing expenses SHE REHAX (1,239,106) (1,039,303)
Administrative expenses TBR (1,781,374) (2,056,594)
Other expenses HmAx - (149,251)
Finance costs B % & A 7 (921,124) (825,919)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAL T3 %185 ) K B8
Joint ventures SN /NE] (434,972) 570,209
Associates Huﬁ%’& Gl (19,294) 70,427
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE A E R 8 819,428 5,735,925
Income tax expense IR 11 (1,020,120) (2,067,114)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FrRF(E8) (200,692) 3,668,811
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE HipZEWA(EE) :
INCOME/(LOSS):
Other comprehensive income/(loss) A errERREN EE
that may be reclassified to BEOEMEEERA
profit or loss in subsequent periods: (B8) :
Share of other comprehensive N e
income/(loss) of joint ventures 2EWA(EE) 7,865 (3,368)
Share of other comprehensive FE(RESE = A A H A
income of associates 2EKA - 26
Exchange differences on translation MEEINETFRINE X ZE
of foreign operations (1,630,309) 494,563
Exchange fluctuation reserve released HENE R A EFRE
upon disposal of subsidiaries ER N E ] (31.372) -
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) REERERHEN»EE
that may be reclassified to profit or Té! s EMEERA S (EE)
loss in subsequent periods FEE (1,653,816) 491,221
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FREMZERA(BE)
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (1,653,816) 491,221
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FREEWRA(BER)BE
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (1,854,508) 4,160,032
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

kHEAEmEmE@E

F+-A=t—HBIFE

M ALS 32
%ﬂ'\l:u B fm

Year ended 31 December 2022 &

F_F_—

2022 2021
—E-CF - —F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR%ET R AREETFIT
Profit/(loss) attributable to: THZIBEMG R, (EBE)
Owners of the parent B AREAR A 24,544 3,070,022
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE 2 (225,236) 598,789
(200,692) 3,668,811
Total comprehensive income/(loss) THZBEGEZEEA(EE) :
attributable to: 4R
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZZ=IN (1,550,790) 3,537,055
Non-controlling interests FEIERS RE RS (303,718) 622,977
(1,854,508) 4,160,032
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B A RZERERSEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EEESRER
OF THE PARENT 13
Basic A RMBAR%  RVMBARK
0.6 cents?  72.7 cents o
Diluted e RMB AR  RMB AR
0.6 centsm  72.2 cents>
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

R E BRI R

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt aE AR%T R ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property and equipment L EYE L 14 775,742 839,847
Investment properties LEME 15 39,216,242 34,050,031
Intangible asset | EE 17 2,653 2,819
Properties under development BEERBYE 18 10,169,792 9,437,268
Contract in progress HEEIREAR 19 129,132 349,184
Investments in joint ventures ’EA./:\ ERNAMIRE 20 7,247,429 8,864,225
Investments in associates AR AR E 21 1,251,635 1,155,530
Prepayments and other assets A REREMEE 24 814,465 906,061
Deferred tax assets REFIEE E 32 1,173,522 1,068,631
Total non-current assets FMBEERE 60,780,612 56,673,596
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development BREPYE 18 92,717,968 90,011,728
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEE SR 22 4,797,777 8,135,339
Trade receivables B 5 R RIA 23 466,350 537,961
Prepayments, other receivables and FARFRIE - BB URIA &
other assets Hmm&E 24 13,315,135 10,934,736
Financial assets at fair value through BARENEREEHTA
profit or loss B e & E 26 431,973 1,294,023
Due from related parties FEUR BE 2 5 5K IE 25 3,914,425 5,041,561
Prepaid income tax SEENE R 2,523,770 2,378,173
Restricted cash TIR&|IRE 27 3,866,093 4,273,708
Pledged deposits EHEAER 27 2,031,012 54,574
Cash and cash equivalents HERESZEEY 27 9,118,953 15,677,587
Total current assets MENEEHRER 133,183,456 138,339,390
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-—F —E_—4F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5E ARET AREETIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and bills payables B ENFEREE 28 10,821,534 14,782,300
Other payables and accruals H b pE 0B K fEETE B 29 9,186,882 11,233,481
Contract liabilities SRAaE 29 82,443,359 64,441,542
Interest-bearing bank and FTESRITREME

other borrowings 30 10,742,959 8,689,342
Senior notes and domestic bonds BEERKIENES 31 3,959,846 6,618,778
Due to related parties FEfHRRE 5 208 25 2,583,308 2,612,018
Tax payable FEfFEIE 3,913,001 4,482,246
Total current liabilities mENE BB 123,650,889 112,859,707
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEETEE 9,532,567 25,479,683
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BMEERRBEE

LIABILITIES 70,313,179 82,153,279
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Interest-bearing bank and FTESRITREMER

other borrowings 30 16,252,153 20,833,380
Senior notes and domestic bonds BEERNKIENES 31 13,202,190 14,056,834
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 17,729 281,029
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIARE 32 4,137,252 4,205,661
Provision for major overhauls NI 33 78,614 69,264
Total non-current liabilities EREEELEE 33,687,938 39,446,168
Net assets BESE 36,625,241 42,707,111

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022

PREEMEZERERAR /I T —FFRH

113



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B = ARBTRE ARBTET

EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to owners of BATHEE ABERES
the parent

Issued capital BETRA 34 365,138 365,064

Reserves ] 36 19,345,551 21,421,296
19,710,689 21,786,360

Non-controlling interests FEE R 16,914,552 20,920,751

Total equity i e 36,625,241 42,707,111

Wong Chiu Yeung Huang Youquan

=S EiE

Director Director

e EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

BERHBEHR

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - &+ - F=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRESAER
Share Statutory Property Share Exchange Non-
Issued premium Capital surplus Merger  revaluation Other option Hedging  fluctuation Retained controling Total
capital account resene resene resenve resene resenes resene resenve resene profits Total interests equity
BEfT Tt R nE ik 3] FER
e BEE  AABRE  BBER  ANBR  ERERE  EtER R HeEE  RBRE B 8 EE Ea
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARMTT ARBTL ARMTT ARBTn ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETr ARMTT ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETR
(note 34) (note 36(b)  (note 36(c)  (note 36(c) (note 36(e))
(Fiz34) (s 360))  (PsE36(c)  (PfEE 361c)) (3£ 36(0))
At 1 January 2021 RZ2=-%-A-R 365,064 287304 (1589695 1,584,585 30 82812 13,0% 92,670 (24.811) 513584 19693704 20998403 18154211 39,152,614
Profit for the year FRET - B - - = = = = = - 3070022 3070022 598789 3668811
Other comprehensive incomelfloss) ~ £REB2ERA/(H18) :
for the year:
Share of other comprehensive EEASATL Y
Joss of joint ventures 2EFR = = = = = = (3.368) = = = = (3.368) = 3.368)
Share of other comprehensive EERERRERD
income of associates 2ERA = = = = - - 2% - - - - 2% - 2%
Exchange differences on translation &5 ERH
of foreign operations EXZE - - - - - - - - - 4035 - 4037 2,188 494563
Total comprehensive incomeflloss) ~ ER2EUA/(BB)
for the year g - - = = = = (3342) = = 470375 3070022 3,537,055 622977 4,160,032
Capital reduction of subsidiaries HBARZREHS - - - - - - - - - - - - (179255 (179,255)
Capital contribution from FERBRARER
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 4538950 4538950
Dividend paid tonon-controllng ~ SeTHBAFZEER
shareholders of subsidiaries REnke - - - - - - - - - - - - (78,144) (78,144)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 4 3% - - (1687679 - - - - - - - - (1687679 (3188281) (4,875,960
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HENBAT (HiE30) - - - - - - - - - - - - (874400)  (874,400)
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary ~ BRME-EHBAR
(note 38) (H38) - - - - - - - - - - - - 1924693 1924693
2020 final dividend “ECTERERS o (287,304) - - - - - - - - (352679)  (639,983) = (639,983)
2021 interim dividend “E--ERERS - - - - - - - - - - (a430) (421,436 - (421,436)
Transfer to statutory suplus resene ~ BBEATRHER - - - 1868 - - - - - - (8628 - - -
At 31 December 2021 R-E--F+-A=1-H 365,064 = 3271304 1813213¢ 30% 82,872* 9,754* 92,670 (44811 983959* 21760983* 21786360 20920751 42,707,111
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GARREDE

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZT - —F+_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARREAES
Share Statutory Property Share Exchange Non-
Issued  premium Capital surplus Merger revaluation Other option  Hedging fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account  reserve reserve reserve  reserve  reserves reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BET R EE nE BRE EX 2R
e BER EAEGE  RHRE  AHEE  EREE  HbHEE fE HERE  RBEE REEA @t ’E ERE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETRZ ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTRZ ARMTR ARWTR ARMTR ARETR
(note 34) (note 36(b) (note 36(c)) (note 36(d)) (note 36(e))
(Rfst34) (i3E36(b)) (HHEE36(0) (MF3E36(d)) (3t 36(e))
At 1 January 2022 W=%2--%-8-A 365,064 -+ (3277374)% 1,813213* 30* 82,872 9,754* 92670 (44,811)*  983,959* 21,760,983* 21,786,360 20,920,751 42,707,111
Profitoss) for the year FpEfl/(B8) - - - - - - - - - - M54 454 (2523) (200692
Other comprehensive incomef{loss) EREH2ERA/
for the year: (B#R) :
Share of other comprehensive EEARDFE D
income of joint ventures 2EBA - - - - - - 7,865 - - - - 7,865 - 7,865
Exchange differences on translation REBERR
of foreign operations EiER = = = = = = = = - (1,551.827) - (1551827)  (78,482) (1,630,309)
Exchange fluctuation reserve released P A AIE BB e
upon disposal of subsidiaries BN REEE - - - - - - - - - (313n) - (313N - (3131
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ERZERA/(BR)
for the year ] = = = = = = 7,865 = - (1,583,199 24544 (1,550,790)  (303,718) (1,854,508)
Capital reduction of subsidiaries WB A BEARS - - - - - - - - - - - - (1,925581) (1,925581)
Capital contribution from FRRBRERER
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 429 4292
Dividends paid to non-controlling FHBARGEER
shareholders of subsidiaries REmks - - - - - - - - - - - - (187477)  (187477)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U8 3 3% - - (318862 - - - - - - - - (318862) (1,616292) (1,935,154)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HERBAR (39 - - - - - - - - - - - - (s0721)  (80,721)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) KRBT (Fx38) - - - - - - - - - = = = 2321 72321
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary BRKE-RHELR
(note 38) (Fi#38) = = = = = = = = = = = = 30977 30977
2021 final dividend —E--ERERS - (572) - - - - - - - - (206,093)  (206,665) - (206,665)
Issue of shares for scrip dividend IRKSEARG 74 572 - - - - - - - - - 646 - 646
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve HREETRRER - - - 84,667 - - - - - - (84,667) - - -
At 31 December 2022 RZ%R=%
+ZA=t-H 365,138 -* (3,596,236)* 1,897,880* 30* 82,872% 17,619* 92,670 (44811)* (599,240)* 21,494,767* 19,710,689 16,914,552 36,625,241
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBREOESREMBRARPTARE
RMB19,345,551,000 (2021: RMB21,421,296,000) in the consolidated 19,345,551,000t( = & = — F: AR ¥
statement of financial position. 21,421,296,000 7T ) K4R A it ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

SEETRER

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - ~F+_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—_E__ —=EFE—

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fE ARBTR ARETT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of:
Joint ventures
Associates

Interest income

Gain on disposal of items of
property and equipment, net

Gain on bargain purchase

Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries,

net
Gain on disposal of associates
Fair value losses/(gains), net:
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Remeasurement of investments in
joint ventures
Loss/(gain) on disposal of investment
properties, net
Loss on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Depreciation of property and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Changes in fair value of investment

RETHESRE
B 54 A A 819,428 5,735,925
FTYSIBEH FHEE
Mi5E R 7 921,124 825,919
T2 S B R F REE
BERNT 434,972 (570,209)
/N 19,294 (70,427)
FEMA (141,979) (221,340)
HEYERRHIEE
Was F R 6 (1,343) (36,394)
FEEREN S 6, 38 (38,578) -
HEKHBARMEE
(Uezs) %58 8, 39 (415,139) 149,251
SRS AT AR 6 (4,745) =

RAEEE (W) F5E
BAREEEHED)
FFABZMNERMEE 8 55,995 97,481
EFFTERNAGEQNRRIERE
6 (69,221) (71,269)
HEREWEEE (k)
it 6,8 442,020 (35,966)
HERAR B2 AHED)
FTABENSRIEER

518 8 = 20,809
YERRETE 8, 14 70,896 55,128
FREEENITE 8, 14 58,451 67,062

REMER A EEEFE

properties, net 15 25,422 (223,071)
Amortisation of an intangible asset BB EEHE 8,17 166 167
Write down to net realisable value of HEREBRZKDE

completed properties BEZE R #RFE

held for sale 8 495,045 234,884
Write down to net realisable value of EEDYEREZ N FIRFEE

properties under development 8 494,930 342,910

3,166,738 6,300,860
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 & E — T - —F+—-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—ZE_— T —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B5E ARET R ARETTT

Increase in properties under development 2% fh 1) 3£ 1 1) (9,912,704)  (47,950,758)
Increase in contract in progress EEZIRAREM 19 (109,332) (3,666)
Decrease in completed properties FEH & B SRR D

held for sale 20,183,573 28,805,002
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B S W FIER (3L h) 65,436 (305,018)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, afERIE - Hab el R IE K&

other receivables and other assets Hap&EEmRL, (3 n) (1,638,527) 3,672,629
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills B o ERNFRIEREEE N,

payables ORiA) (4,148,189) 3,153,125
Decrease in other payables and accruals £ fth & {5t 5108 & fE =+ & B (1,793,207) (3,747,439)
Increase in contract liabilities A REEEE 11,652,876 8,007,655
Increase in provision for major overhauls, A& &L H1F 28

net 33 5,838 5,542
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #&ZLEAME/(FTHE)RE 17,472,502 (2,062,068)
Interest received BFE 141,979 221,340
PRC corporate income tax paid BT B EMER (846,790) (991,889)
PRC land appreciation tax paid 25 A B 4 I (E R (338,487) (856,581)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating &2 EEIFFS,/ (FrA)HEE

activities e FEE 16,429,204 (3,689,198)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - ~F+_A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS
AERETRER

2022 2021
—ZE__ B —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B & ARET R ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHRTRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of BEEWMENLEES
property and equipment (131,797) (90,316)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEMERRBEIEE FBRIR
property and equipment 11,066 47,481
Additions to investment properties NI E W (2,595,241) (3,895,329)
Proceeds from disposal of T EREYENSEIE
investment properties 805,205 339,279
Deposits received/(refund) for REBEERNB AR
proposed disposal of subsidiaries UWER(GRE) B ET & (367,110) 851,280
Acquisition of subsidiaries g 1) =PNG 38 72,286 =
Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries 15 [3) U BB B /B 2 ) 38 437,916 298,543
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT 39 585,780 =
Partial disposal of subsidiaries i HEMB AR 39 - 345,277
Dividend from joint ventures B2 N AR E 262,139 292,998
Capital reduction of joint ventures BENA Z KA - 620,121
Capital reduction of associates HwM’“ Al 2 R AR > = 193,293
Dividend from associates A RIHAR B = 118,200
Repayments from joint ventures SR NCI PS8 /NI B |
and associates B 10,620 890,589
Purchases of financial assets at REZAAEFE8EE
fair value through profit or loss SFABENEREE = (700,802)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEZ AN E=BEEZEEHT A
at fair value through profit or loss BEmemEEMSRIE 835,817 88,688
Decrease in restricted cash XBE%UIE%/UZ’J\ 407,615 31,685
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 2 &I FZR A, (3 0) (1,976,438) 624,709
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with R E|H 5 5775’\f1l)51 Z
original maturity over three months FEHEZURLD, (1) (962,500) 1,224,000
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BEEEME/ (TR RERE
activities FER (2,604,642) 1,279,696
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
an\ IEI@/)“JE%

Year ended 31 December 2022 #E T - —F+ - A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—ZE_— —E - —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B5E AR¥ T ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid BAF A (3,242,856) (3,297,732)
Proceeds from issuance of senior BTEAZERENES
notes and domestic bonds P15 508 768,250 4,226,727
Issuance costs of senior notes and {g%f‘ﬁmﬁ&iﬁm%#?éﬁlﬁi
domestic bonds = (40,722)
Redemption of senior notes and BRELZERENMENES
domestic bonds (5,521,308) (3,876,439)
New bank and other borrowings SR IT R EMER 11,142,125 26,093,551
Repayment of bank and other borrowings 1EER1T R EMER (16,077,298) (19,565,586)
Repayment of proceeds from BEEFME RIS RIA
securitisation arrangement (1,272,202) -
Capital contribution from FEVERR AR 3R & AN J BA
non-controlling shareholders 4,292 4,538,950
Capital reduction of subsidiaries B8 A Rz R AR A (1,925,581) (179,255)
Advances from/(repayment to) SEERR AR R BTN, (BB F)
non-controlling shareholders (2,102,288) 2,041,390
Principal portion of lease payments SRHEERE I (76,781) (64,221)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests  UgB& JEIZ AR AE =5 (1,935,154) (4,875,960)
Decrease in amounts due to FE 1< B8 s&E 77 SRIE RV FRE
related parties, net (621,530) (2,734,174)
Dividends paid X ATARE (206,019) (1,061,419)
Dividends paid to non-controlling AR B A R SRR AR AR R A AR B
shareholders of subsidiaries (187,477) (78,144)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing ME RS (FTA)RE
activities 2R (21,253,827) 1,126,966
NET DECREASE IN CASH RERRSEB/BYRD FHE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (7,429,265) (1,282,536)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ~ F#IR & RIESEEY
of year 15,677,587 17,191,066
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EXRE &) L F5E
net (91,869) (230,943)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERRERBEESLEY
AT END OF YEAR 8,156,453 15,677,587
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRESEEYERDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in REMBEARRERATYZIRE &
the consolidated statement of HEEEBY
financial position 27 9,118,953 15,677,587
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B BARIBHAZR=@AZ
original maturity over three months R IRE B
when acquired (962,500) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ZZD%?{:} HERBEXRMTHIES K
in the consolidated statement of 2EEBY
cash flows 8,156,453 15,677,587
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NOTES TO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R AR B

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RRREEER
China SCE Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is hEEEIERAER AT (AAR])ERM
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company SHEGMKMY AERERER AT o K
with limited liability. The registered office of the Company is A &) B 5 8 #% = B2 i 7 Cricket Square,
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The addresses of the Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands e 7&
principal place of business of the Company in the People’s DR EARLEME((REH]) REH
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong are SCE Tower, MErELLEMBE NS R ARE EE
No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road, Honggiao Business District, MU G5 R B R 1688 F 2 5 A &
Shanghai, China; and Room 2801, Hysan Place, 500 Hennessy B K =2 Ko 7 78 o i /2 % B 55 38 500 5% %
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, respectively. 1EE5 2801 = °
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the FAN AR RERBAR (GFE [ AE
“Group") were principally engaged in property development, B TEERENEWEERE  WER
property investment, property management, land development & YEEE - THFEENRIEEER -
and project management in the PRC during the year.
In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of EERE NARBNRRIER AR EH
the Company is Newup Holdings Limited, which is incorporated SERERAT)  ZABREBR LR
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"). S(RERZHS ) FMKTL -
Information about subsidiaries Vg NGIR= ¢
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 R-E-_—&F+-_A=+—HEBEALE
December 2022 are as follows: EXZMBARFBEHINWT
Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
FMERL/ ERTRAR KARES
£ A RE XY RAFE BEEAL FTEEH
Direct Indirect
B# B
Affluent Way International Limited ** BVI Us$1 100 - Investment holding
HREERERAA ERRLES 1£7 REZR
SCE Intelligent Commercial Cayman Islands HK$20,750,000 - 60  Investment holding
Management Holdings Limited
("SCECM")
hREEREREERARAR HEHS 20,750,000 %7¢ REAER
(ThEmEE])
South China Group (H.K.) Limited ** Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment holding
PESE(FB)BRAR” &E 100787T REAZR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2022, are as follows: (Continued)

NaNEBER &)

B B A R & (A1)

R-ZBE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HBHEBELAE
EEXEZHBEARFBEEHIOT « (&)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
EREKL/ ERITRAR KATRELS
L SR E L BRAGFE EEEML TEER
Direct Indirect
B# EfEd
Xiamen Zhongjun Industrial Co., Ltd.**#  PRC/Mainland China HK$1,670,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
("Xiamen Zhongjun") trading of construction
materials
EFREEBERAR HE/HEARE 1,670,000,000387 RARRE
(TEPIHREE]) EEREMR
Shanghai Zhongjun Property Co., Ltd.**  PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
trading of construction
materials
LEPRERERAA E/hEAR AR 100,000,0007C REZERR
EZREMH
Beijing Zhongjun Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100 Property investment
Management Co., Ltd. **"#
S RPSHEEERARAR /B AR AR 100,000,000 70 NERS
Fujian Zhongjun Industrial Co., Ltd.**  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 - 100 Investment holding, property
development and
property investment
BETRELERAR hE/mEAR AR 1,000,000,000 7T RESR  WEER
EnERE
South Fujian Gold Coast Resort PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000,000 - 45°  Property development and
Co., Ltd. Shishi**# property investment
RETREESERERN i/ HEARE AR % 400,000,000 NERRIMERE
BRAR **
Shanghai Junbo Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
LEREENEREERAR /B AR AR 1,000,0007 NEERIDERE
Shanghai Junming Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,052,841,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.***# property investment
PEREREMERBERAR +  HE/HERE AR 1,052,841,000 T NEERRNERE
Nan'an Junhong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd*#
RARHLEHEREARAR /B AR 150,000,000 70 NERR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R 2 B R

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

NalREBEER #)

B A R & (A7)

R-E-_—F+_-_HA=+—HBHEBEAE

BEXEMBARFERIIMOT - (&)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
BV BRTRAR DA
£ SR &L RAGEE EEAML TEER
Direct Indirect
E# i}
Hangzhou Junjin Industrial PRC/Mainland China RMB363,787,500 - 100  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
MMEBEERRARAR /B A AR 363,787,500 7T NEBRRNERE
Shanghai Zhongjun Chuangfu PRC/Mainland China RMB1,800,000,000 - 61  Property investment
Real Estate Co., Ltd. ***#
LEBTRAERHEBRAR > hE/HEAE AR 1,800,000,0007C NERE
Suzhou Junyuan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB21,085,900 - 100 Property development
Development Co. Ltd.*#
FMRREHEREBRAT E/HEAE AR 21,085,9007C NEER
Chongging Junhuigongchuang Real PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000,000 - 47®  Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd.**
("Chongging Junhuigongchuang”)
ERREHRIEHEREARAR  hE/HEAE AR 800,000,000 NEER
(BEEERE])
Qingdao Zhong Yutai Property PRC/Mainland China RMB52,241,100 - 96 Property development
Co., Ltd.**
BRERARERRRAR hE/hEAR ARB52,241,1007 NEER
Tianjin Junyang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB729,943,350 - 95 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
RERBEHEREERRA E/hEAR ARH729,943,350 T NERR
Tianjin Bijun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 48°  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
REEBRHERTERAR e/ hEAR AR H30,000,000 7T WELR
Suzhou Junda Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,247,387,740 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*#
FMERER D EREBRAR /B A ARM1,247,387,740 7T NEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

NaNEBER &)

B B A R & (A1)

R-ZBE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HBHEBELAE

BEXEMBARFERIIMOT - (&)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR/ BRTRAR N
L SRR EFEE BRAGFE ERADMW TEER
Direct Indirect
B# EfEd
Xuzhou Junxing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,437,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
("Xuzhou Junxing")
BNEEEMERSARAT  HE/FEAR AB1,437,000 0007 NEBR
(M)
Shangrao Junmao Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB61,110,650 - 96  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*#
TETEREAERSARAA Y BE/HEAE AEH61,1106507 S
Chongaing Sanchengyihui PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 = 50°  Property development
Enterprise Co., Ltd.**
("Chongging Sanchengyihui")
ER-HHREEXARAR /B AR 1,000,000,0007C NELR
(IEB=HE))
Xiamen Junming Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.***#
EFBREMERZARAA  FB/FEAR AR#3,000,000,0007C ES
Xiamen Taiming Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB5,500,000,000 - 65  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
("Xiamen Taiming")
EFREEHEREERAR hE/REAE AR 5,500,000,000 7T NEER
((EFI%E])
Zhumadian Junxin Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,208,060 - 98  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
SEEREFHERTERAR < hE/HEAE AR 10,208,060 NEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R 2 B R

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

NalREBEER #)

B A R & (A7)

R-E-_—F+_-_HA=+—HBHEBEAE
EEXEZHEBARFBEIHIOT « (&)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
BV BRTRAR DA
£ SR &L RAGEE EEAML TEER
Direct Indirect
E# i}
Binzhou Junbo Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB350,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*# property investment
BN ER R EREERAR /B A AR 350,000,000 NEBRRNERE
Hangzhou Junyi Real Estate Co., Ltd.**  PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property development and
property investment
MM BEEBRAR E/EARE AR 10,000,0007 NEERRNZRE
Hefei Junwo Real Estate Development ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 80 Property development and
Co., Ltd.** property investment
AREEARHEREERAR * /R AR AR H 50,000,000 7T NEBRERMERE
Nantong Junze Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 51 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*# property investment
HRRERHEREARAR /B A AR 20,000,007 NEBRRNERE
Yongchun Junrui Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
KERREHEREERAR HE/EARE AR 50,000,0007 NRERRNZRE
Fuzhou Junyue Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,126,582 - 99 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
MG EHEREBRAT GEVEEVN: ARH10,126,5827¢ NEERROFERE
Shanghai Junting Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,300,000,000 - 70 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
("Shanghai Junting”)
LEREEHERERRAR /B A AR 1,300,000,0007C NEEREMERE
((EBE=])
Beijing Junyang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 75 Property development
Development Co., Ltd**
(“Beijing Junyang")
ERBGEREREERAR /B A AR 100,000,000 ¢ NEER

([em&E )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

Registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law
Registered as wholly-foreign-owned entities under the PRC law
Registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC law

The English names of these companies in the PRC represent the best
effort made by the management of the Company to directly translate
their Chinese names only for the purpose of these financial
statements as no official English names have been registered.

At 31 December 2022, the equity interests of these companies were
pledged to secure certain bank and other borrowings of
RMB8,461,842,000 (2021: RMB9,913,958,000) granted to the Group
(note 30(b)).

As at 31 December 2022, the equity interests of these companies
were pledged under share mortgage to the holders of the senior
notes of US$500,000,000 at a coupon rate of 7.25% due in April
2023 (the “Senior Notes due in April 2023"); the senior notes of
US$500,000,000 at a coupon rate of 7.375% due in April 2024 (the
“Senior Notes due in April 2024"), the senior notes of
US$500,000,000 at a coupon rate of 7% due in May 2025 (the
“Senior Notes due in May 2025") ; the senior notes of
US$350,000,000 at a coupon rate of 6% due in February 2026 (the
“Senior Notes due in February 2026") and the senior notes of
US$450,000,000 at a coupon rate of 5.95% due in September 2024
(the “Senior Notes due in September 2024") (note 31).

Certain companies are accounted for the subsidiaries of the Group
based on the factors explained in note 4 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000") except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders

of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.1 IRBEAE

ZEWBHRRIOBEELSEAMAE
([BEEFMAE]) RMNFTBHBR
SEA(FEMBHRELL ) (BEME
EEMBREEN FAGHTENTE
BEHEL ] RRE) BEAREIR
AIRBAERRRGINEER T MRS o
BRIREMERZEAAEFERLEZ B
ABRENEREERAAEFTEIN &
FMBBRRIIBELRARE - = E
AN ZFEMBBERIIUARE(TA
REDZ25 mETMELBEHNER
AEREANTUE(TARETT]) -

REMBRREEARARARENEB A A
HE_ZE_—_+_A=1+—RHILEE
WIS HE - WBRARAKRRREENR
MEZEHNER(BEEABEER) - &
REBEAZAZAELEREHRERH
BHAEEH - BEEBEHEREHRMY
(AR TASER AR N EEIREY
KEREDNRTFEN) 2% EE W
I+ BDER{S 22 4 o

—RME BRAZBEREEEHE
B o AR ERAEERRBALINEE
HRRZHBEREBHBLENOER - Bl
AEERFHEERTRAHREHRDN
BOAREER—UHEBEERERL &
7

(a) HERBEHRHMREFEANER
2

(b) EAERRHEAELNEN : &

@ AEENERERMEBERTE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
REEEERARAT I — T _FEFR

2.1 ImEEE (&)

SOEE#E)

M B AR RR A mE M EARE
A YERBEE - BN EFTERRR
RN 1 PG E S =N SE T
BERRAMHAR LHEESHAKRE
EREHERLEERL -

B eS| Bk RS RRR - B
a5 N Hofth 2T UK 25 B % 4ELAK BB 40 BR B IR
AEEHRREE AR IFEBRES - BT
BEEARRHEEERAR #xm I
A XERREREEKBRAZER
ZERMNRETREAN S 2N

i =B MBS R BR SRt = TR A% I 4
REEF-—HAZHEE  AAKEE
EfRENAENRELR - HEAR
BEEEREE (L EREEGIE)
RABRE SRR 5 o

il A &= B K = 3 — R P B 12 A 2 2
- RlERIEERNZMNBLRARZEE
(BREEE)RARE () EAIHERES
ZAREE K (i) N Em ARt ik 2 REtER
EH REROABREZARE - i)
ERIFMREBRE 2 AR E R (i) B iRT
TAREMELZBHRKERE - TAR
Hfth 2 Y o R AR 2 A £R 1B P 41 D
NEHRFERN  BRAKREERHER
RMEELRBEMERNERELEEHD
BRABERRERN -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2% MY

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIESAND 22 @ BB RIEEER &

DISCLOSURES

The Group has fully assessed and adopted, to the extent that is
relevant to the Group, the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
Illustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The nature and impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable
to the Group are described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability.
The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at
the acquisition date. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to business combinations that occurred on or after
1 January 2022. As there were no contingent assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities within the scope of the amendments
arising in the business combination that occurred during the
year, the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to
apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic by 12
months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022,
provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The Group has adopted the amendment on
1 January 2022. However, the Group did not received any
COVID-19-related rent concessions and therefore the
amendment did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in
profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no
sale of items produced prior to the property, plant and
equipment being available for use, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
REEEERARAT I — T _FEFR

2.

FHEERRBEER B
(&)

TR —FNARBHBBMEREE
B 165 (& 5T ) A5 &R A N EZ R
COVID-19ORNRITHEERRREENHES
ERTEAREERSTEETRER
ATREAE12MEA - Bt - ZERA
THEE T AEBERNEE R KA EAR
BEFE T - —FNA=1+HBzx2q]
REBMARNOBESER - AIIREmEIE
RAEBRATERFEANEMES - A%
BER-_ZT-_—F—F—ARMAZE
5] o SR AN B8 A WA (T fAT 2
COVID-19 1M E S EE - Bitt - ZE
FEAREERE SRR FIRIF LA FM[

2.4
= °

BEGFENFE 1658 (EF]) R ILERK
YR - BB EREREORATHNRE
DB E TR M Al AR (B8
B BREPELEN L ERB
BRE R BERLAKZFEER
EREHERNE2RFENERBER
SRELKA AER - AEEEEW
ERZEFEIRN_FT_—F—A—A%
RgAHERNY R BERRBE
B @2 ALERHERNEEND
X BEMRBER ZFEITHAK
B MBI R R IR B E -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was no
modification of the Group’s financial liabilities during the
year, the amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
[llustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract!

Insurance Contracts' >

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 - Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”)% 4
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)’
Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the
2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020
Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was
revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
application of HKFRS 17
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by
the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect
the classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures
by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer
settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply
simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments and
whether existing loan agreements may require revision. Based
on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The
Group is currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to
ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively
to transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences for transactions related to leases. Upon
initial application of these amendments, the Group will
recognise deferred tax for all temporary differences related to
leases at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented. During the year, the Group has performed a detailed
assessment on the impact of amendments to HKAS 12. The
Group has estimated that it will recognise a deferred tax asset
and a deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, and recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to retained profits
at the 1 January 2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in profit or loss. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022

PHEMERERAR —F

I 2

3.

\

TEg

ml‘>

TEEREE ()

EBaotREEE)

BREDBRTHEREARNRSES
B (FBEELEMAR) WA KE S
HET  EHSELBV(HBESELE
fz#RRI) & A] Ys B & BRE A RR T & R A
BERRE T AR - CHEEERN
RERE T SRARARED -

HABRESETREELEN (KBEE
EERIAERY) B ER 1D T 5% B AL O BR 0 75
BEHE AEBEMLEXBHKER
BiEE - BAHEXERBENEESET
AZEBHREE - E%BFRTHEN
Rz E*Eifﬁﬁtﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬂ’\]ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ&
ReELBUMRENEETTE

DAEFE

AEERESREMREZRANEFTEER
%%%&?@fﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬂ\%

SNERMEE - ANE/MBLEER
AERABEAFRZ P HEEEMKE
MERIERREMMHER - 2
B ENREBERHEEEXEEAR
MRXZREEXBBETEMER(EEE

EMBBATN) XEBEMBEITME
He TERRAEBEMSGAASNEET]

EAZTE BEXRBNAREDR
RRMBLEEREEXABEEERS
IR ERENSITERE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
properties under development, completed properties held for
sale, contract in progress, deferred tax assets, financial assets
and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022

PHEMERERAR —F

I 2

3.

\

TEg

mQ

TEEREE ()

FERMEERE

HENSBREREBREXBRAEELE
THEEREAR(ERTYE  FELE
BEEKYE EEIRAR  BELEKRE
BE SREERREWEERIN)  RIE
MFAREENAKREEHE - BENATI
OeBEREEXRELBEUNERE
BEREAABEROENRNARSER
%) YA EEMERE - BRIFEHE
EYEELERARE EBYNEME
EXBEEHANERESRA - ERIBRT
TW@ R EEMBRNRSELEN
B AR ELABMNRE
%*@%@ﬂﬁEWMJ%ﬂﬁ@M@
H & 8BH — 20 A AES BN — B
EfEEDB HE - BRIKHECHRERE
BeELEN I/ WBRSELEM
A -

RMEBEBEREEREEBSLHTKE
SERN T AR - R EREER
Bt ARBESRERA RMRER IS T
HHEEEHEMEESTRBROBRR
AR RITRELRE - BEEBBIIRE
E%ﬁﬁAﬁAmﬁaﬁﬁéﬁm%f
BsHAXIEBEEA -

REBREMREFERTATFRETL
FIEERNREBRNEFESRD
%ﬁﬁ%%%'%@ﬁﬁTW@i%°
BEERNEE (BERIN REREE
HERNEEZAE E B B b
HERED - EREROBEIFHN
RFEEBEFELENEEEDRERE
A I AREE (BRI & iR -
BEEE BN EL B AR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property and equipment to its residual

value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates

used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land under Over the lease terms
finance leases

Buildings Over the lease terms

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20%

19% to 25%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Transportation equipment 10% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Changes in the values of revalued property and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the property revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

Over the remaining term of the lease
two to 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term of the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land
held as properties under development, they are subsequently
measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value in
accordance with the Group’s policy for properties under
development.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an
apportionment of total land and construction costs attributable
to the unsold properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sales proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or
by management estimates based on prevailing market
conditions.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land
held as completed properties held for sale, they are
subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in accordance with the Group’s policy for completed
properties held for sale.

Service concession arrangement

The Group has entered into a service concession arrangement
with a government body in Quanzhou, the PRC, for the
operation and management of certain sports and recreation
facilities. The transactions related to such service concession
arrangement are accounted for by the Group as follows:

Consideration paid by the Group

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to the
extent that the Group receives a right to charge users of the
public services. The intangible asset (operating concession) is
accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for
“Intangible asset (other than goodwill)” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Service concession arrangement (Continued)
Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in
accordance with the policy for “Revenue recognition” below.

Contractual obligations to restore the sports and
recreation facilities to a specified level of serviceability

The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as a
condition of its licence. The obligations are (a) to maintain the
sports and recreation facilities it operates to a specified level of
serviceability and (b) to restore the sports and recreation
facilities to a specified condition before they are handed over to
the grantor at the end of the service concession arrangement.
These contractual obligations to maintain or restore the sports
and recreation facilities, except for the upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out
for “Provisions” below.

Intangible asset (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an intangible asset
recognised in profit or loss in the period is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant intangible asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible asset (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Operating concession

Operating concession represents the right to operate certain
sports and recreation facilities and is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over
the period of the operating concession granted to the Group of
30 years.

Investment properties

Investment properties include both completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction.

Completed investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Investment properties under construction or development for
future use as investment properties are classified as investment
properties under construction. Such properties under
construction are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs, and stated at fair value, subsequent to initial recognition,
at the end of the reporting period when the fair value can be
determined reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
completed investment properties and investment properties
under construction are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of a completed
investment property or an investment property under
construction are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
"Property and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property and equipment and depreciation” above.

When the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance with the
Group's policy for “Investment properties”.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and lease of
low value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(@) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

(®)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s current portion of lease liabilities were
included in other payables and accruals whereas the non-
current portion of lease liabilities were separately disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of properties (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Lease in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. When the Group is an
intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a finance lease or
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition
exemption, the Group classifies the sublease as an operating
lease.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial assets at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchase or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income in
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment

under the general approach and they are classified within the

following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade

receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified

approach as detailed below.

Stage 1T —

Stage2 —

Stage3 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the
Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
accruals, amounts due to related parties, interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and senior notes and domestic bonds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and domestic bonds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Senior notes

Senior notes issued by the Company that contain both liability
and early redemption option (which is not closely related to the
host contract) are classified separately into respective items on
initial recognition. At the date of issue, both the liability and
early redemption option components are recognised at fair
value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the senior
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The early redemption option is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior notes are
allocated to the liability and early redemption components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the early redemption option are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the senior notes using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how the Group will assess whether the hedging
relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements
(including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and
how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship
qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following
effectiveness requirements:

° There is “an economic relationship” between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument.

o The effect of credit risk does not “dominate the value
changes” that result from that economic relationship.

° The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as
that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that
the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge
that quantity of hedged item.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Hedges of a net investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a
hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the
net investment, are accounted for in a similar way to cash flow
hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to
the effective portion of the hedge are recognised in other
comprehensive income while any gains or losses relating to the
ineffective portion are recognised in profit or loss. On disposal
of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains
or losses recorded in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(@)  Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at the
point in time when the purchasers obtained the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property and
the Group has present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

(b)  Rendering of services

Revenue from the provision of property management and
project management service is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

(c)  Land development

Revenue from land development is recognised at a point
in time, when the customer obtains control of the assets
upon the completion of the related construction work and
the Group has present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income and facilities rental income is recognised on a
time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

170 China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
REEEERARAT I — T _FEFR

\

T2

ml‘>

TEEREE ()

WESHER (&)
REEEARMNKE (&)
@ HEHe

MEHRERENEXRREERTY
ENERBERIEEMBARLA
SERANFHEN - AR
REBZ R -

(b) TEHIRE

1R 9D OB B R RIS A
TR MM A SRR -
A% R I RN FEA S BIR it
By Fl2 o

() LA

THRENRENERRRETIE
ERREEFPIRGEEZEFIERA
KERANTHEN - IRE AR
REZBEHER -

Htp R EE W s

YA B 3R e & WA DA B ] L 71
ERHEFHARER -

T RFED 15 Bk M 2 i ] B A0 B A SRR
HEANSTHBRERRBA -

Hitr A

FEWAARSTEE - A BRI EX
RIEAREV TENBAFHAAMS
KRB AFREZEREERTFE
BT IR RFERR o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to a customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfer the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfer control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as properties under
development and property and equipment, costs incurred to
fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all
of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that
will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)

performance obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract costs (Continued)

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Land development contract

The Group has entered into a land development contract (the
“Land Development Contract”) with the local government of
Nan’an City (the “Nan’an Government”), the PRC, to carry out
the construction and preparation works in respect of land
infrastructure and ancillary public facilities on certain land
parcels in Nan‘an City.

Pursuant to the Supplemental Contract (as defined in note 19),
upon completion of the necessary construction and preparation
works of each land parcel, the Nan’an Government will pay the
Group the construction and other related cost plus a margin.
Such amount will be paid by the Nan‘an Government upon the
related land parcels to be sold by the Nan'an Government
through public auction.

Revenue from the Land Development Contract is recognised at
a point in time when the Nan’an Government obtains control of
the assets and the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably, which occurs upon the
completion of related construction and preparation works as
well as the sales of the relevant land parcel. The timing of sales
of each land parcel by the Nan’an Government is uncertain and
out of the control of the Group.

Costs incurred by the Group in connection with the Land
Development Contract comprise the aggregate costs of
construction, materials and supplies, capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowing funds during the period of development
and other costs directly attributable to such Land Development
Contract and are classified as “Contract in progress” before the
relevant land parcels are sold.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Land development contract (Continued)

Contract in progress is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the
Group'’s revenue derived from the construction and preparation
work carry out less costs to completion and the costs to be
incurred in realising the revenue based on prevailing market
conditions.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (”Equity-Settled
Transactions”).

The cost of Equity-Settled Transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 35 to the financial statements.

The cost of Equity-Settled Transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the Pension Scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the Pension
Scheme is to pay the ongoing contributions under the Pension
Scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Pension
Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme and the Pension Scheme, the Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed and no contribution may be forfeited and used by
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been
approved by the shareholders.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Group's presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") while RMB is used as
the presentation currency of the financial statements of the
Company for the purpose of aligning with the presentation
currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the
Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These are
recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount
is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on these monetary items
are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates operating outside the PRC are currencies other
than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of non-PRC entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of non-PRC entities which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is
made by management on determining whether a property is
designated as an investment property or a property held for
sale. The Group considers its intention for holding the properties
at the early development stage of the related properties. During
the course of construction, the related properties under
construction are accounted for as properties under development
included in current assets if the properties are intended for sale
after its completion, whereas, the properties are accounted for
as investment properties under construction included in
investment properties if the properties are intended to be held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion
of the properties, the properties held for sale are transferred to
completed properties held for sale and are stated at cost, while
the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation are transferred to completed investment properties.
Investment properties, both under construction and completed,
are subject to revaluation at the end of each reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Valuation of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed properties held
for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of each unit in each phase of development is
determined using the weighted average method. The estimated
net realisable value is the estimated selling price less selling
expenses and the estimated cost of completion (if any), which
are estimated based on the best available information.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may
result in a provision for properties under development and
completed properties held for sale. Such provision requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, the carrying value and
provision for properties in the periods in which such estimate is
changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Allocation of construction cost on properties under
development

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Costs directly related to the
development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to each phase are allocated to each
phase based on the saleable floor area of each phase as a
percentage of the total saleable floor area of the entire project.
The cost of the unit sold is determined by the floor area in
square metres sold during the year multiplied by the average
cost per square metre of that particular phase of the project.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Whether the presumption that investment properties
stated at fair value are recovered through sale is rebutted
in determining deferred tax

The Group has investment properties located in the PRC which
are measured at fair value. Investment property is property held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. In considering
whether the presumption in HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes that an
investment property measured at fair value will be recovered
through sale is rebutted in determining deferred tax, the Group
has developed certain criteria in making that judgement, such
as whether an investment property is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time or through sale. The presumption is rebutted only in the
circumstance that there is sufficient evidence such as historical
transaction, future development plan and management’s
intention to demonstrate that the investment property is held
with the objective to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits over time, rather than through sale. Continuous
assessments on the presumption will be made by management
at each reporting date.

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less
than majority of voting rights

The Group considers that it controls certain entities, even
though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights of these
entities, because the Group is entitled to appoint a majority of
directors in the board of directors and accordingly, the Group is
able to control and direct the financing and operating activities
of these entities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction, were
revalued at each reporting date during the year based on the
appraised market value provided by independent professional
valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimation, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of property
development, property investment, property management, land
development and project management. For management
purposes, the property development and property investment
businesses are monitored as one operating segment on a
project basis to allocate resources and assess performance. For
financial reporting purposes, the property management
segment, land development segment and project management
segment are combined with the property development and
investment segment as its reported revenue, reported results
and assets are less than 10% of the consolidated revenue,
consolidated profit and consolidated assets of the Group.

The Group’s revenue from external customers from each
product or service is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R 2 B R

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KREHILER &)

(Continued)

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived solely AEBEBREBIBEFHBRAEREER
from its operations in the PRC, and the non-current assets of PEIMETR  mASBERENBDIER
the Group are substantially located in the PRC. BEETINNPE -

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December BE-_ T - #+-_A=+—HK-Z

2021, no revenue from transactions with a single external

—F+T-A=+—HILFERN " HE

customer was accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total BB — NI E AT B E A B AL R
revenue. SEBUKARI10% A L o
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. e~ HAUWA Kiias
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REBHUWZEDITIOT :
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—1F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETIT
Revenue from contracts with customers R B % 54 @Mk ZE
Sales of properties YISEHE 24,739,180 36,154,258
Property management fees MEEEE 989,751 895,682
Land development income T F B 201,893 =
Project management income 15 B BRI A 260,618 234,225
Revenue from other sources HAth SRR R A Uk 2%
Gross rental income from investment W15 & W) 245 & T E FTICER Y
property operating leases: M WAL :
Variable lease payments that do not THUARIE B FI R/
depend on an index or a rate AEHEEKIE 14,888 6.859

Other lease payments, including
fixed payments

BT BFENH AR R
498,782 446,423

26,705,112 37,737,447
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Yz« A Rz )
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFSEHWE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) WESIFER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BT - —fFf-—H=+—HiF
FE
Property Land Project
Sales of management development management
properties fees income income Total
NEHE NEERE IHBRKA HEEEEKA ]

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR

Timing of revenue recognition: IR

Goods transferred at a pointintime ~ EX—EH%EENE R 24,739,180 - 201,893 - 24,94,073
Services transferred over time BEREZNRE - 989,751 - 260,618 1,250,369
Total revenue from contracts REEPARME
with customers k] 24,739,180 989,751 201,893 260,618 26,191,442
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hr—F——F+—F=+—HF
FE
Property Land Project
Salesof  management  development  management
properties fees income income Total
MEHE WEEEE LFEBRA BEEEKA k]

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTL ARETR ARETR

Timing of revenue recognition:  EMMEE :

Goods transferred at a pointintime X —EHSEENER 36,154,258 - - - 36,154,258
Services transferred over time EGEC L) = 895,682 = 234205 1,129,907
Total revenue from contracts REEPARME

with customers k) 36,154,258 895,682 - 234,225 37,284,165
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

6. Wzs - EMUg A KRBz )

4

REFFERWKEE)

() WEDFER(E)

2022 2021
—=—_— —EF-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETT
Revenue recognised that was TAREHEISRAEN
included in contract liabilities EHRARE
at the beginning of the
reporting period:
Sales of properties VIS 20,445,904 27,153,070

(ii) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied when the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property is
obtained by the purchaser.

Land development income

The performance obligation is satisfied when the land
development is completed.

Property management fees and project management
income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and short-term advances are normally
required before rendering the services. Management
service contracts are for periods of one year or less, and
are billed based on the time incurred.

(i) BHEE

ARAEERAOE ENERB
T

BRHEEDRERRBERINE
BB BR A RESORTE TR R 5T
}ﬁ o]

TIFTERA

BHEER L0 FA S TR ETT -
YREIEERIRE EHEWA

B R B (ERE TR (L ARTS AO B R 2 A -
FERERGATET ZSRKIEHRRBR -
EERBAR/S—FHATHE -
RIBIREERETE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6.
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (Continued)

Property management fees and project management
income (Continued)

The amount of unsatisfied performance obligation
principally comprises the balance of contract liabilities,
which are expected to be recognised in one to three years
as of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

N

|

Wam - A A R s )

REFFERWE®)

(i) BHEEGFE)

VREHEERIRAEEKA (B)

BHE_T-_—_F+=ZA=+—HK
T —F+ZA=+—H #xX
J@ﬁﬁ‘]@%ﬁf&ﬁ%ﬁigﬁ%éﬁ

BEAEHR BB —ZE=FKNE

R e
2022 2021
—=:=-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

i 5 AR®TRE ARKBTE

Other income and gains H g A & Wz
Bank interest income RITH B WA 118,906 146,264
Consultancy service income B8 S AR A% LA 19,057 207,314
Interest income on amounts due FEUA &R R FIBR T S U A

from joint ventures 23,073 75,076
Forfeiture income on deposits received 8 YtiZ 4 KU A 32,990 30,707
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE KRR HEEB WS F5E

property and equipment, net 1,343 36,394
Fair value gain on remeasurement of ~ E¥fzT 8N AL QA

investments in joint ventures K& 2 A ERE 69,221 71,269
Gain on bargain purchase EERERN S 38 38,578 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR AW 39 415,139 -
Gain on disposal of associates B A R A e 4,745 -
Gain on disposal of investment HERBEYEN W=

properties - 35,966
Foreign exchange differences, net PE N =% - 29,573
Government grants BT B 54,964 36,343
Others EA 42,371 100,757

820,387 769,663
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FINANCE COSTS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R 2 B R

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

7. MBER

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: PEBRASMAT :
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Interest on bank and other borrowings, MITREMER - BERER
senior notes and domestic bonds BREFFE 3,357,323 3,327,947
Interest on lease liabilities (note 16(b)) HEAENFE (FIE16(b) 20,162 25,512
Increase in a discounted amount of [ B RS0 7 4 T S A O K (S R4
provision for major overhauls arising PrIREERE (FI5E33)
from the passage of time (note 33) 3,512 3,103
Total interest expense on financial liabilities FEIZ At BT AIBZEI L R B &
not at fair value through profit or loss T B 4a %8 3,380,997 3,356,562
Less: Interest capitalised B BRI FILE (2,459,873) (2,530,643)
921,124 825,919
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EE

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

8. BFi

N/

Al s Al

AEENRBAEFE MR GEA)T

(crediting): 5| & 18 :
2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Lz AR¥T T ARETT
Cost of properties sold D EYEK A 21,173,548 28,805,002
Cost of services provided BR R KA 1,111,065 758,656
Depreciation of property and YRS E
equipment 14 70,896 55,128
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEENITE 14, 16(b) 58,451 67,062
Amortisation of an intangible asset* & E#E S * 17 166 167
Provision for major overhauls NEFEE 33 6,236 5,967
Lease payments not included inthe ~ FHEFE(TREHEEE
measurement of lease liabilities fH1E) 16(b) 5,089 4,943
Direct operating expenses (including ~ EEMR SR EMEMEER
repairs and maintenance) arising BEEEERAY
from rental-generating investment (BiERERRE)
properties 130 247
Auditor’s remuneration ZEHT 2 7,954 7,884
Employee benefit expenses (including 1€ E@F|AX (BEEEME
directors’ remuneration (note 9)): (FFzE9)) :
Salaries and other staff costs TEREAME T 927,537 1,428,678
Pension scheme contributions** RIS T EIHE R > 194,992 244,710
Less: Amount capitalised B BRI S (312,260) (431,362)
810,269 1,242,026
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R 2 B R

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 8. FRTLAD&M ()
2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt ek AR%T ARBT T

Foreign exchange differences, net b = R FHER 70,271 (29,573)
Fair value loss on financial assets RANBEEBEEEZEA

at fair value through profit or BareREENAR

loss, net BEEFHERFR 55,995 97,481
Loss on disposal of financial HERAABEFEREE

assets at fair value through FTABENSRIEER

profit or loss EE - 20,809
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries, H&EMEARAEE, (U

net TR 39 (415,139) 149,251 ***
Loss/(gain) on disposal of investment  HEREMENER,(Uz)

properties, net JFEE 442,020 (35,966)
Write down to net realisable value of  #F{EHE D ER M ERES

completed properties held for sale A] B8R E 495,045 234,884
Write down to net realisable value of 3%/ fh 4 3 R (B Z= 7] S 38 )% (E

properties under development 494,930 342,910
= The amortisation of an intangible asset for the year was included in 2 FARPEERFT NG BER A M E

“Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

*x There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

This item was included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated

E R R A [SHERA] A

= AKEESEEIIE A AIRE K

PRI A HFUKFE -

* kK

ZHBRFAFALGRE B REMEEY
SmRA[EARANI AT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EFM<
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the FR BB LETRE  FEQTHEMNE
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong 383(1)a@) * (b) (O k)R Ar (HEE
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure ERFER) ROIE B EAE S
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as ST :
follows:
2022 2021
—=:=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETFT
Fees we 867 822
Other emoluments: Hitn < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NEYA TS 6,394 6,460
Discretionary performance FEEBERBIEA
related bonuses - 7,659
Pension scheme contributions RIRAEFIET B 5K 200 101
6,594 14,220
7,461 15,042
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7355 ¥ B

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EFH

&)

(@) Independent non-executive directors

(a) BYFHITES

Salaries, Discretionary
allowances  performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions Total
e RER FENE RE&R BIET
ik BUAE BETA  BREEX st EIBER @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETR ARMTz ARETT AR¥Tr AR®TR
2022 —E-C
Independent non-executive B FFHITES :
directors:
Mr. Ting Leung TRERAE
Huel Stephen 289 - - - - 289
Mr. Lu Hong Te BBELE 289 - - - - 289
Mr. Dai Yiyi 1) i 289 - - - - 289
867 - - - - 867
Salaries,  Discretionary
allowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
e 2HR EL il i el SRR
e Ehlg Rk BRERX sHEIHR a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  AREFT ARETT  AR%ETR  ARBT:
2021 —B--F
Independent non-executive B FFHITEE ¢
directors:
Mr. Ting Leung TRIBRHE
Huel Stephen 274 - - - - 274
Mr. Lu Hong Te BBELE 274 - - - - 274
Mr. Dai Yiyi E1Y) e 274 - - - - 274
822 - - - - 822
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’" REMUNERATION (continued) 9. ESEME=w
(b) Executive directors (b) E1TES
Salaries, Discretionary

allowances  performance Equity-settled Pension

and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions Total

& BER RERE RE&E BIRER
e BNAs REEL  BREMX R @zt

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR  ARBTR ARETR ARMTR AR®Tn  ARETR

2022 - S -
Executive directors: HrEs:
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =554
("Mr. Wong") (34 - 1,279 - = 15 1,29
Mr. Chen Yuanlai BTARLE - 1,040 = - 15 1,055

Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok g

A

=2 - 1,040 - - 15 1,055

Mr. Huang Youquan ~ E{RiEL A& - 1,797 - - 140 1,937
Mr. Wong Lun BERELE - 1,238 - - 15 1,253
- 6,394 - - 200 6,594
Salaries,  Discretionary
allowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
=4 E3 il i ] RN
ik il BB ERERY sHIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTT ARETR ARETR  ARET:
2021 —EC--F
Executive directors: WTES
Mr. Wong BEA = 1,517 2,276 - 15 3,808
Mr. Chen Yuanlai BRI R4 - 1,233 1,439 - 15 2,687
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok L2 gt - 1233 1439 - 15 2,687
Mr.Huang Youquan — =HUERE - 1,302 1330 = 41 2,673
Mr. Wong Lun i - 1,175 1,175 - 15 2,365
- 6,460 7,659 - 101 14,220
There was no arrangement under which a director waived FRN - BEEEWEXRBRES
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year AT HE(—E——F : &) o
(2021: Nil).
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
(2021: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
four (2021: one) non-director, highest paid employee for the
year are as follows:

10. AZ &S D

B 75 ¥R < Y

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

AT

N

FR - AUGERSHFALTF R (ZF=_—
FOR)RARAES - 2HFHFE
BN EXME - SR TR (ZE %
—&)FEFRRHMEBNFMFEN
T

2022 2021

—E-_F e e

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBEREYHZE 6,347 3,270
Discretionary performance related bonuses 345 #5728 BY 15 fE 4T 825 =
Pension scheme contributions R R T B3R 498 15
7,670 3,285

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

e BRIA T HEEHIEES RIFTHAR
HERHFEENHBEHINOT :

Number of employees

EEZHE
2022 2021
—s—-= S ——tE
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T = 2,500,000 7570 4 =
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 7T = 4,500,000 /8 7T - 1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

11. INCOME TAX 1. MR X
Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been R B A b Y R RR R i R YRR I IR AN R B
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the cities in which the B ARKEMERTARRAE - f
Group’s subsidiaries operate. No provision for Hong Kong MAREBRNF RN BT BES(F0)E
profits tax has been made as the Group did not generate any BERN  WEBEEBNEEEL R
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2021: B ZE_—F &)
Nil).
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TRE ARBTET

Current charge for the year: FANEAE ¢

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") R ZEPTEHE ([ EATTSH ) 1,217,326 2,125,003

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT") AR B+ b 3 (E A ([ g E R ) 99,356 364,116
Over-provision in prior years, net: BEFEREREFE

Mainland China RS A = (173,108)

1,316,682 2,316,011

Deferred tax credited for the year (note 32) Azt AELERIAE (BizE32) (296,562) (248,897)
Total tax charge for the year FAT AR B8 1,020,120 2,067,114
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11.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory/applicable rates for the jurisdictions in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

11. BMIEFEZ @)

RIFA R E R H KR B 8 2 B P e 7]
ERROETE,BRAREGTERB AR

MEBERNREMX GRBERREFE

to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: M ERS HEEMT -
2022 2021
—E=-= == =
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T R ARETTT
Profit before tax KR B Bl A 819,428 5,735,925
At the statutory/applicable rates of BB RAERAATE,# B
different jurisdictions MERTE 204,857 1,433,981
Lower tax rates for specific cities BERTRERER X (120,245) (84,843)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of AR AT AR R E BTSN
previous periods - (173,108)
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of %38+ B BVIEIEFR 18
previous periods 170,364 -
Profits and losses attributable to joint RN & /N a5
ventures and associates 518 113,566 (160,159)
Income not subject to tax AR A (181,004) (94,450)
Expenses not deductible for tax DATHIF A F 2 649,745 682,579
Tax effect on unrealised profits arising HEBEAQAIE E’]?Z%Fiﬁ’\]
from transactions within the Group SRR BE 108,320 68,562
LAT T I (E R 99,356 364,116
Tax effect of LAT deductible for PRC CIT A FE A B 1D PSR F00R -4
BERNHREZE (24,839) (91,029)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% BASERFAE 2B A A
on the distributable profits of A A B R EE E 0 F 10%
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries -7 = 121,465
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BRAEBERRERTENHIER T 1,020,120 2,067,114

The share of tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2022
attributable to joint ventures amounted to RMB86,632,000
(2021: RMB338,412,000). The share of tax credit for the year
ended 31 December 2022 attributable to associates amounted
to RMB1,423,000 (2021: tax charge of RMB30,545,000). Both
are included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and
associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

BE_Z-_—"F#+_-_RA=+—HIFE
EhEaRARIMEEHERSAARKE
86,632,000t( =& = —F: AR
338,412,0007T) c E T —_F =
A=1+—BIEFEELEHE R RIMNEN
HEHE R A ARK1,4230000(=F
——%F: MIBRAX /AR 30,545,000
7o) o MEHEFAGREER REMEE
W kB [ BIEE & QA REEE QA
AR EIR] AT o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EE

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

12. DIVIDENDS 12. B& B
2022 2021
—=:=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Interim — Nil FRHER B — &
(2021: HK12 cents per ordinary share) T —F: gGREER
12 5) - 421,436
Proposed final — Nil BRRERE — &
(2021: HK6 cents per ordinary share) T —F BREBR
BEE6 D) - 206,665
- 628,101
The directors do not recommend the payment of any final EEREBEIEREBEE_T-__F+_H4
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022. =+ —BIEFENERRARE -
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. AR EARERTE AR

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
4,222,437,098 (2021: 4,222,133,380) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amount presented for the year ended 31 December 2022 in
respect of a dilution as the impact of share options outstanding
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share
amount presented.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
attributable to owners of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year ended 31 December 2021, as
used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7355 ¥ B

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. SRRl EBEREREE AR

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE Eﬂﬁgﬂ (&)
PARENT (Continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are FREANRESEZFNTIREAT&E
based on: =i
2022 2021
—_ZT—— === s
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Earnings BEF|
Profit attributable to owners of the parent  F{EstEGIRER N EERF] 2
used in the basic and diluted earnings ISYNSIE PPN eyl
per share calculations 24,544 3,070,022
Number of shares
R & E
2022 2021
—B-—F —E-—F
Shares R 42
Weighted average number of ordinary R EERERBNZFA
shares in issue during the year used in 23T @A 2 INRE 5 &)
the basic earnings per share calculation 4,222,437,098 4,222,133,380
Effect of dilution — weighted average HEYE — TR METHE
number of ordinary shares:
Share options AR = 27,511,460
Weighted average number of ordinary RETESREERT 2 FA
shares in issue during the year used in BT L AR T8
the diluted earnings per share calculation 4,222,437,098 4,249,644,840
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% M &k
Property and equipment Right-of-use assets
NERRE EREEE
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold and office  Transportation Leasehold

buildings improvements  equipment  equipment Subtotal land Buildings Subtotal Total
B
HE £ER

THRER NEEE  BOERR ERIA At BELH 3 gt &3t

RMBO0O ~ RMBOOO  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBO0D  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBI00
ARRBTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARBTZ  ARRTR  ARMFR  ARETR

31 December 2022 —g--E+-BEt-H
At 1 January 2022: RZE=ZF-f-R:

Cost A 352,181 95,615 250,553 116,015 814,364 250,459 26,113 496,572 1,310,936

Accumulated depreciation ZitE (29,239) (48,649) (114,135) (106,147) (298,170) (17,532) (155,387) (172,919) (471,089)

Net carying value EEFE 322,942 46,966 136418 9,868 516,194 23291 90,726 323,653 839,847
At 1 January 2022, RZFZZ5-F-A

net of accumulated depreciation NB2:E 32,98 46,966 136,418 9,868 516,194 22921 90,726 323,653 839,847
Additions RE 376 51,275 79,706 440 131,797 - 539 539 132,336
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary RRKE-FHELR

(note 38) (FzE38) 3 - - - 3 - - - 3
Acquisition of subsidlaries (note 38)  WEHIBAR (f:38) - - 280 - 280 - = = 280
Depreciation it (14,158) (15,971) (37,205) (3,562) (70,896) (5,009) (53,442) (58,451) (129,347)
Disposals LE (441) (5,358) (2,602) (1322) (9723 - - - (9723)
Disposal of subsidiaies (note 39) HEMBAR (Hi30) = (26,782) (30,355) (547) (57,684) - - - (57,684)
At 31 December 2022, W-F-—%+-A=1+-H

net of accumulated depreciation B 23tHE 308,752 50,130 146,242 4871 510,001 27918 31,823 265,741 715,742
At 31 December 2022: R-B-—E+-A=t-0:

Cost K& 352,833 103,062 271,332 103,519 836,746 250,459 246,652 497,111 1,333,857

Accumulated depreciation ZitE (44,081) (52,932) (131,090) (98,642) (326,745) (22,541) (208,829) (231,370) (558,115)

Net carying value FEFE 308,752 50,130 146,242 4871 510,001 27918 37,823 265,741 775,742
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

B 75 ¥R < Y

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

14. VENEZE @)

Property and equipment Right-of-use assets
HEYEL fREAE
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold and office  Transportation Leasehold
buildings  improvements equipment equipment Subtotal fand Buildings Subtotal Total
il
HE RER
TiREF nExE  HAERE EHIA 5t RELH BF Nt @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETz ARBTr ARETn ARBTR  ARETR
31 December 2021 —8--F+-p=t-R
At 1 January 2021: RIBZ-5-f-B:
Cost B 360,905 82,260 194,237 118,211 755,673 250,459 191,199 441,658 1,197,331
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (27,360) (40,336) (93,506) (102,927) (264,129) (12,523) (93,334) (105,857) (369,986)
Net carrying value EEFE 333,545 41,94 100,731 15,344 491,544 237,936 97,865 335,801 827,345
At 1 January 2021, R=2--%-f-A
net of accumulated depreciation B 2:E 333,545 41,924 100,731 15,344 491,544 237,936 97,865 335,801 827,345
Additions AE 541 20,593 68,344 838 90316 = 54914 54914 145,230
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary RRKE-FHEAR
(note 38) (BiE38) = = 206 549 755 = - - 755
Depreciation & (9,655) (8418) (31,09) (5959) (55,128) (5,009) (62,03) (67,062) (122,190)
Disposals e (1,489) (1133 (1,561) (904) (11,087) - - - (11,087)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEMBAR(EE39) - - (206) - (206) - - - (206)
At 31 December 2021, R=F--%+-A=1+-A
net of accumulated depreciation bl g o 32,94 46,966 136,418 9,868 516,194 23927 90,726 323653 839,847
At 31 December 2021: RZE--F+-A=1-A:
Cost A 352,181 95,615 250,553 116,015 814,364 250459 246,113 496,572 1,310,936
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (29.239) (48,649) (114,135) (106,147) (298,170) (17,532) (155,387) (172919 (471,089)
Net carying value REFE 302942 46,966 136418 9,868 516,19 232927 90,726 323,653 839,847

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB498,070,000 (2021: RMB512,512,000) were pledged to
banks to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to
the Group (note 42).

The Group has lease contracts of land and buildings used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
the leased land from the PRC Government with lease periods of
40 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Leases of office buildings
generally have lease terms between two and 20 years.

RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 ' x&H
FREIEA £ A AR 498,070,000 7t (=
T ——4: AR#¥512,512,00070) %
TFHELHREFEHT TRITUARG
By AEENE TRITREMER (M
42) °

AEERAAREEN L RETHE
AR - RIEZF LW EEERRK - @ E
B W iR E i (FHHI R 40E 504 )
RIEEH — RN - WEIEAEETTH
K - MABHE-—RBEH /22205 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. IREY

Under
Completed construction Total
[=5:-309 i st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 R—ZE-——%—f—H
REFE 22,981,619 6,347,600 29,329,219
Additions NE 10,839 3,884,490 3,895,329
Disposals HE (303,313) = (303,313)
Transfer from properties under AERTWEEA
development - 2,248,287 2,248,287
Transfer from properties held for sale  FE{EHER ERMEE A 302,438 = 302,438
Transfer 4 3,755,863 (3,755,863) -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) ﬁ’%ﬂﬁ 7] (fzE£39) = (1,645,000) (1,645,000)
Net gains/(loss) from a AVINEL Hﬁlm/ Ei8) %
fair value adjustment (599,515) 822,586 223,071
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 R=—Z-—F+_-A=+—Hx
and 1 January 2022 R F-A-HEREFE 26,147,931 7,902,100 34,050,031
Additions NE 304,554 2,290,687 2,595,241
Disposals HE (1,247,225) - (1,247,225)
Transfer from properties under HERTIEEA
development - 1,424,348 1,424,348
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) W BRI B2 B (PHFE38) = 2,643,000 2,643,000
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HERB AR (FEE39) (223,731) - (223,731)
Net gains/(loss) from a NAER Hﬁlﬁ/ (E18) 558
fair value adjustment (853,287) 827,865 (25,422)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 R-Z-—F+_-A=+—H
BREFE 24,128,242 15,088,000 39,216,242
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All of the Group’'s investment properties are situated in
Mainland China.

The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2022 based on valuations performed by Cushman &
Wakefield Limited, independent professionally qualified valuer,
at RMB39,216,242,000 (2021: RMB34,050,031,000).

At 31 December 2022, the Group's investment properties with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB12,847,267,000 (2021:
RMB10,714,425,000) were pledged to secure certain bank and
other borrowings granted to the Group (note 42).

The Group's completed investment properties are leased to third
parties and companies controlled by Mr. Wong and his family
members (together with Mr. Wong, the “Wong Family”) under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 16.

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

15. IREYVZE (#)

REE AR E MR BIARE -

REBOREMERBBEIEXEER
HEMBERITARAARZTE =
+ A=+t BEHHEAARK
39,216,242,000TC (=B = —4 : AR#
34,050,031,000 7T) °

R_ZE-——F+-_A=+—8 ' x&E
BREEA £ ARE 12,847,267,000 7T (=
T ——4F : AR¥10,714,425,000 ) 59
BEMED R UEER T AEBEH
ATRITREMER(HE42) o

AEENEERREDEORELEHE
WBETE=DRBELEREFEKE (&
RERENTEEXEKEK])FMES 2R 7] -
E—HHBEHEHNME 16 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EE

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, the fair value measurements of all investment properties
of the Group were categorised within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy and details of their movements are disclosed above.

In the opinion of the directors, for all investment properties that
are measured at fair value, the properties have been used in
their highest and best use.

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement of the
Group’s investment properties:

15.

KEYE #)
NRERBR

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-HA=+—Bk=F
S+ A=+—HILFE &xEH
FIBREMENAABIFEIREAR
BERFE=FH MESHFBER LBE

=

EXZRR - MANARAEFENKREY
% BRmERNESESREEER -

RTRBIFAREREMENRE

e

Fair value measurement
using significant
unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
RRAEX
R ES PNy
RAREFTE
(B=8)
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETTT
Recurring fair value measurement for: RTINS ENLEEARERE
Office and commercial properties PWRIEREEYE 36,901,494 31,443,731
Residential properties FEM= 64,700 594,000
Car parking spaces ZE5 2,250,048 2,012,300
39,216,242 34,050,031

During the year, there were no transfer of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into
or out of Level 3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2% MY

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. WE WS (#)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NREBRE)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the T AREMERRBEERERGEE
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: FTEHAERE
Range
Significant unobservable #iE
Valuation techniques inputs 2022 2021
fhatiE EXTUBERANE ¥ ET_—F
Office and Investment method Estimated rental value per 30-647 30-640
commercial and direct comparison square metre and
properties method (refer to below)  per month (RMB)
WRER REEREZLER FEAARREAGFESEE
[EEZZES (RTx) (AR®TT)
Capitalisation rate 3%—-6% 2.5%-6%
B R
Price per square metre (RMB) 7,000- 7,000-
BEAARER(ARKT) 38,000 35,000
Residential properties  Direct comparison method Price per square metre (RMB) 67,000~ 50,000-
EEME (refer to below) 106,000 59,000
BEELEBUE FYHRER(ARET)
(RTx)
Car parking spaces Investment method Estimated rental value per 300-1,600 300-1,600
(S and direct comparison car parking space and
method (refer to below)  per month (RMB)
REENBEELEE BREGECREAGESER
(BT (AR¥TT)
Capitalisation rate 3.5%-4.5% 3.5%-4.5%
BERfp®
Price per car parking space (RMB) 50,000- 70,000-
FEGEMLER(ARET) 256,000 256,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The valuations of completed investment properties and
investment properties under construction were based on either
the investment method by capitalisation of net rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with allowance for the
reversionary rental income potential of the properties or the
direct comparison method by reference to comparable market
transactions.

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value per
square metre or per car parking space or price per square metre
in isolation would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair
value of the investment properties. Significant increases
(decreases) in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in
a significantly lower (higher) fair value of the investment
properties.

Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated
rental value per square metre and the price per square metre is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the
development profit and an opposite change in the capitalisation
rate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2% MY

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

16. LEASES 16. HE
The Group as a lessee rEBEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for properties used in operations. REBHRERANEENDERESR -
Leases of properties generally have lease terms between two VB E— MBI R2ESF ©

and five years.

(a) Lease liabilities (a) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under HEBE(BEREMENKER
other payables and accruals) and the movements during FtERBETHNHEEERE) K@
the year are as follows: BERFAZSHINT
2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETT
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—AMEREE 343,177 352,484
New leases HHE 539 54,914
Accretion of interest recognised FARERNFEE K
during the year 20,162 25,512
Payments NEN (96,943) (89,733)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HE B A 7] (fsE39) (240,185) -
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+Z—RA=+—HB8RHE
(note 29) (PFf=E29) 26,750 343,177
Analysed into: DT
Current portion mEnEB 9,021 62,148
Non-current portion JERENER (D 17,729 281,029
26,750 343,177
2022 2021
—E=—_ B —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETT
Analysed into: DT
Within one year —F R 9,021 62,148
In the second year F—F 7.236 46,360
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FRF
(BREEEMF) 10,493 234,669
26,750 343,177
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEABENRE B DT ETI R
47 to the financial statements. M 47 -
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5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

16. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

16.

HE )
KEBIERRBA (4)

(b) PEZHIALEESANSEN

leases are as follows: N
2022 2021
—E=-= -1
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E ARET R ARETTT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 7 20,162 25,512
Depreciation charge of TRAEEENERX
right-of-use assets 8 58,451 67,062
Expense relating to short-term B HHE MR
leases (included in administrative (Bt AFTEE )
expenses) 8 5,089 4,943
Total amount recognised in RIERERNE S
profit or loss 83,702 97,517

(c) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 40(c)
to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting
of various office properties, commercial properties and car
parking spaces in Mainland China under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB513,670,000 (2021: RMB453,282,000), details of which
are included in note 6 to the financial statements.
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() HEMRSRHABIHNIIFHRE
Bt 5% 40(c) ©

REEER/HAA

AEBRBEERNTHEHEEREY
% (M{3E15) - BIETEES BEAED R
NEYE BEMEREES - BHEK
H—BIPERBLIHREBIEZS - W
EREBEERMATHARAS - A5H
FABBONBSURABARE
513,670,000 L( —= T = —F : AR
453,282,0007T) © # 1B FI A B 1 ik
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16. LEASES (Continued)

17.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7355 ¥ B

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

16. & &)

The Group as a lessor (Continued) AEBEAEEA B
At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease RIMEHR » NEBE R KRR EIBIET
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non- AR SN AT IR ERE SN
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows: FI7REATE ¢
2022 2021
-2 —T-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Within one year

—FR 142,823 99,866

INTANGIBLE ASSET

Operating concession

17. BEEE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Cost at 1 January, R—A—HZKRAK

net of accumulated amortisation Ik 2ty 2,819 2,986
Amortisation provided during the year F TR (FIFE8)

(note 8) (166) (167)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 2,653 2,819
At 31 December: R+—A=+—8:

Cost B AN 4,861 4,861

Accumulated amortisation ESe % (2,208) (2,042)

Net carrying amount BT FE 2,653 2,819
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued)

Operating concession (Continued)

On 28 March 2006, Quanzhou Straits Sports Centre Co., Ltd.
(“Straits Sports Centre”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into an operating right concession agreement (the “Operating
Right Agreement”) with the Quanzhou Sports Bureau (the
“Sports Bureau”), a local government body in Quanzhou, the
PRC, at a cash consideration of RMB5,000,000. Pursuant to the
Operating Right Agreement, Straits Sports Centre is granted
with an operating concession (the “Operating Concession”) to
operate and manage certain sports and recreation facilities (the
“Facilities”) in Quanzhou for a period of 30 years (the
“Operating Period”).

This service concession arrangement involves the Group as
operator (i) paying a specified amount as consideration to
obtain the Operating Concession of the Facilities; (ii) operating
and maintaining the Facilities at a specified level of serviceability
on behalf of the Sports Bureau for the Operating Period; and (iii)
receiving a right to charge users using the Facilities. The Group
is entitled to operate and manage the Facilities, and is entitled
to all the income associated with the operation of the Facilities.
However, the relevant government bodies as grantors will
control and regulate the scope of services provided and the
prices charged by the Group during the Operating Period, retain
ownership, and be entitled to any residual interest in the
Facilities at the end of the Operating Period.

The cost of the Operating Concession is being amortised over
the Operating Period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

18. WRAME

2022 2021
=== —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Properties under development expected T8 B 5 T 71 BRRR 5% B Y 25 R R

to be completed: M

Within normal operating cycle included FIEREERBAIERESEE

under current assets

92,717,968 90,011,728

Beyond normal operating cycle included HRiB I E R ARSI 1

under non-current assets IEmBEE

10,169,792 9,437,268

102,887,760 99,448,996

Properties under development expected TEHASE A IE & L@ R EA AR

to be completed within normal operating S8 A BEE AR ) 2E -

cycle and recovered:
Within one year —FR
After one year —&i&

83,579,334 51,530,123
9,138,634 38,481,605

92,717,968 90,011,728

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s properties under
development, including the relevant land use rights, with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB49,683,439,000 (2021:
RMB23,837,954,000), were pledged to secure certain bank and
other borrowings granted to the Group (note 42).

Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the PRC Government with lease periods of 40 to 70
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms
of these land leases.

RZZE-——F+-_A=+—8 ' A&H
7 BR T {E & £ A R ¥ 49,683,439,000 7T
—ET-—%F : AR¥23,837,954,0007T)
WETERPWE(RERELHER
) EEF - LERBETASENE TR
TTREAMER (F5E42) ©

REZSLHEE R - M BEBFR
BHEHETH(HHRI0E70F)AEE
H—IRMERR - AW IEAEEITROR o
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Br RS SRR M AL

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

19. CONTRACT IN PROGRESS

19. EEIREERE

2022 2021

—=:=-= —E-—F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

P 5E ARET T ARETIT

At 1 January n—A—H 349,184 345,518
Additions %40 264,678 3,666
Charged to profit or loss MEFRER (155,346) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 39 (329,384) =
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—8 129,132 349,184

On 18 August 2009, the Group entered into the Land
Development Contract with the Nan‘an Government to carry
out the construction and preparation works in respect of land
infrastructure and ancillary public facilities over certain land
parcels in Nan’an City. Pursuant to the Land Development
Contract, although the Group does not have the ownership title
or land use right to such land parcels, when the land parcels are
sold by the Nan’an Government through public auction, the
Group is entitled to the sales proceeds arising from such land
sales.

Contract in progress represents costs incurred by the Group in
connection with the construction and preparation work of the
relevant land parcels under the Land Development Contract and
comprises relocation and demolition work, costs of construction,
materials and supplies, capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of development and other
costs directly attributable to the Land Development Contract.

On 22 February 2016, the Group entered into a supplemental
Land Development Contract (the “Supplemental Contract”)
with the Nan’an Government, pursuant to which certain terms
and conditions of the Land Development Contract were revised.
In accordance with the Supplemental Contract, the Group
continues to carry out the construction and preparation work in
respect of land infrastructure and ancillary public facilities over
certain land parcels in Nan’an City. The Nan’an Government will
pay the Group the construction and other related costs plus a
margin. Such amount will be determined and paid by the
Nan’an Government upon the related land parcels to be sold by
the Nan’an Government through public auction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

20. REERNAINIRE

2022 2021
=== —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Share of net assets DIGEEFH
Due from joint ventures JEW & &R RIFRIE
Due to joint ventures FEfI& & R AIFRIA

6,415,749 8,296,346
843,593 579,792
(11,913) (11,913)

7,247,429 8,864,225

The amounts due from/(to) joint ventures are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. In accordance with the
terms of the joint venture agreements, all joint venture partners
are required to provide loan capital to the joint ventures in
proportion to their shareholdings under equal terms. Repayment
of any amount of the loan capital requires unanimous approval
from the joint venture partners subject to the sufficiency of
assets and retained profits of the joint ventures. Accordingly,
the loan capital forms an integral part of the Group’s equity
investments in the joint ventures.

FEY/(FERT) & & R R FUIE S
REREBEREER - RESERRHH
MR - FrE & &R EIRARNER &
HILfIIR M ERE ARG LR L RR
MEEMEREEATEZMBALERH
M—BRABARRRZLELRAESR
BRERHEBERADENE - Bt » &
LERENGRRAEEHZLEER
RIS E R — 81D -
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) ~ 20. FAE &R RIAIE & (1)

Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are as follows: REFBERELDNTMEBWOT -

Percentage
Place of of beneficial
Particulars of incorporation/ interest
issued and registration attributable  Principal
Name paid-up capital and business to the Group  activities
BRTR AR, KEBRERL

it BRESHEE TR E KR FRAsh FEEH

Sure Source International Limited US$118,018,100 BVI 50 Investment
("Sure Source") holding

IERERR AR A A 118,018,100 T RERUES 50 HRERK
(ThER1)

Hangzhou Juli Enterprise RMB100,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 32 Investment
Management Co., Ltd.** holding
("Hangzhou Juli")

MNBEBCEERER AR AE#100,000,0007T HE /B AR 32 REAEK
(MMERE])

Quanzhou Nuocheng Property Co., Ltd.*# RMB1,960,800 PRC/Mainland China N/AD Investment
("Quanzhou Nuocheng”) holding

RINEREEBRAR ARH 1,960,800 7 i/ EARE TERY REER
(TRMH])

Hangzhou Junxing Property Co., Ltd.** RMB175,560,000 PRC/Mainland China 30 Property
("Hangzhou Junxing”) development

MMERERBRAR AR ¥ 175,560,000 70 hE /B KR 30 MEERE
(TmEe])

@ Registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law * BRIEFRENEEIMAEREEAF]

8 The English names of these companies in the PRC represent the best g ZEPE A RNHE XL BERAARER

effort made by the management of the Company to directly translate
their Chinese names as no official English names have been
registered.

M As a result of gaining an effective control by the Group over
Quanzhou Nuocheng, it became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group. Further details of this transaction are set out in notes 20(b)
and 38 to these financial statements.

The above investments are held indirectly by subsidiaries of the
Company.
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NOTES TO

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cContinued)

Notes:

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information in
respect of Hangzhou Juli and its subsidiary (collectively, “Hangzhou Juli
Group”), Sure Source and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Sure Source Group”)
and Hangzhou Junxing, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements:

(a) Summarised financial information in respect of Hangzhou Juli Group,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R 2 B R

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
20. REERAFINEE @)

Bi%E
TRINEBREEAAEBERA LA RNN
MNBEREMBAR (GREIMMNBEELEE])
JIER R EL BT S A B (558 [ RSB 1) R 58
I 5 E R A AE ST BUR ENER =R
R BB TSR 2R AR BRI (E 4 B -

(@ AERMMBEEE - IRRSEE RN

Sure Source Group and Hangzhou Junxing E B 75 & Rl
2022
—EBE-_—F
Hangzhou Sure
Juli Source Hangzhou
Group Group Junxing
MNBEEE JEREE N B B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T AR¥TR
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEZEEY 13,935 24,757 260,237
Other current assets HEmeEE 1,390,528 424,603 1,926,567
Current assets TRENE B 1,404,463 449,360 2,186,804
Non-current assets B EE 57 2,050,023 17,375
Other current liabilities H{th B & & (1,136,046) (784,249)  (1,484,513)
Current liabilities mENAE (1,136,046) (784,249) (1,484,513)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE - (483,059) (350,000)
Net assets BESFE 268,474 1,232,075 369,666
Reconciliation to the Group’s directly held BEREBNZEZEATIN
interest in the joint venture: BEFARERHER
Proportion of the Group's ownership AREEFFREARDH 32% 50% 30%
Share of net assets DG EEFHE 85,912 616,038 110,900
Carrying amount of the investment ZRERERmEE 85,912 616,038 110,900
Revenue s 616,081 27,093 2,093,605
Bank interest income |RITHEHA = 64 =
Depreciation e (5,230) (8,298) (3,311)
Tax credit/(expense) HmEEe, (XE) (38,967) 45,742 (137.812)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF(BE) 115,023 (131,497) 413,434
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEIEA - 4,195 -
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

Quanzhou Nuocheng Group in 2022, Quanzhou Nuocheng

. \ oy — S .
20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) ~ 20. JAE & A RIHIIRE ()

Notes: (Continued) izt : (&)

(b)  Summarised financial information in respect of Hangzhou Juli Group, (b)y BEAMNEEER: BREERZEMNE
Sure Source Group and Quanzhou Nuocheng and its subsidiary BREMBAR(GEIRMNEHREE D)
(collectively, “Quanzhou Nuocheng Group”) BB 75 B R

2021
—E-—F
Quanzhou
Hangzhou Juli Sure Source Nuocheng
Group Group Group
MMNEEEE JERE = FMNFEHEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETTT ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents B REEZEY 258,160 41,994 509,910
Other current assets HithmEEE 2,528,843 32,599 3,932,400
Current assets mENEE 2,787,003 74,593 4,442,310
Non-current assets ERENEE 106 2,203,019 1,821,394
Other current liabilities Himeask (1,813,658) (330,891) (3,596,445)
Current liabilities mEaE (1,813,658) (330,891) (3,596,445)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE (320,000) (673,244) (1,495,000
Net assets BEHE 653,451 1,273,477 1,172,259
Reconcdiliation to the Group's directly held HEASBNZAERARIR
interest in the joint venture: HEREAER 2 HR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBMEEE DL 32% 50% 50%
Share of net assets DIEBEFE 209,104 636,739 590,374
Carrying amount of the investment ZRENEEE 209,104 636,739 590,374
Revenue 25 3,022,177 1,570 -
Bank interest income SRITHIBMA 3,504 202 1,885
Depreciation E (50) = =
Tax credit/(expense) BIEHE R, () (188,218) (47,610) 7,561
Profit/(loss) for the year FRNmF,/ (EE) 564,140 142,540 (22,785)
Other comprehensive income H2mEHA = 2,544 -
Note: As a result of gaining an effective control by the Group over MiEE : AR AEER S FHRINE

BB EIS A BUEHI4E - RMFEH

Group became a wholly-owned subsidiary during the year. SERAFEEXRREEMNBER
Accordingly, summarised financial information of Quanzhou Al B RMNEREEHE=FT
Nuocheng Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 is not T+ A=t+—HLEFENH
presented in the financial statements. T & R O AR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cContinued)

B 75 ¥R < Y

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

20. RE=ENEINIRE &)

Notes: (Continued) MizE - (&)
(0 The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of () TRIRAEB N IEEREARNE L QA
the Group's joint ventures that are not individually material: AET W TR E RS
2022 2021
—E-CF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Share of the joint ventures' profit/(loss) HMEEERBNFEN=F, (ER)
for the year, net R (530,063) 329,889
Share of the joint ventures’ other PMEEERRNEMEE
comprehensive income/(loss) WA (E18) 5,769 (4,640)
Share of the joint ventures’ total DIEAERARNRERA(EE)
comprehensive income/(loss) 1A% (524,294) 325,249
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEEREERRINREREERE
investments in the joint ventures 6,434,579 7,428,008
AR AR N S 8
21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 21, REEE RAINRE
2022 2021
—E-—F —EB-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Share of net assets DIhEE SRR 1,134,084 1,155,530
Due from associates JE Wi B 8 A R 5RIE 117,551 -
1,251,635 1,155,530

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. In accordance with the terms of the
shareholder agreements, all shareholders of the associates are
required to provide loan capital to the associates in proportion
to their shareholdings under equal terms. Repayment of any
amount of the loan capital requires unanimous approval from
the shareholders subject to the sufficiency of assets and retained
profits of the associates. Accordingly, the loan capital forms an
integral part of the Group's equity investments in the associates.

FEURE & R B AR EEN - BRI
ERERE - REBRBZHRR - B
Bk 2 X B 9 AR 2 4248 R 16 3R S H £
R{ERENGZLEBERT - MFE
PIBEEEANEASEREMARRE
ME—HEBLZRNZLESERFE
BHRAERHEERASENE - Bt
AUBEBEEARAKNSAREHZLBER
AIREIRE B -
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually
material:

B E R RIIRE ()

TRIRAEELIEREA DY LA
AR OB BRR

2022 2021
—EC—CF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTRT AR¥TE

Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) for DEBE A RINEREF] (BIE)

the year (19,294) 70,427
Share of the associates’ other SaN iy /NS o)

comprehensive income Hib 2 mEUBA = 26
Share of the associates’ total DGEE AR EEEA S (EE)

comprehensive income/(loss) Rk (19,294) 70,453

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s  ZN£2 B A B4 A BRI IR A

investments in the associates BRI 4258

1,251,635 1,155,530

22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

All the completed properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

At 31 December 2022, no completed properties held for sale of
the Group (2021: RMB903,840,000) were pledged to secure
certain bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note
42).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trade receivables arise from the sales of properties,
leasing of investment properties and provision of property
management services.

Consideration in respect of the sales of properties is payable by
the purchasers in accordance with the terms of the related sale
and purchase agreements. The Group normally requires its
customers to make payment of monthly/quarterly charges in
advance in relation to the leasing of investment properties and
provision of property management services. The Group generally
grants a rent-free period of three months to the lessees of the
Group's investment properties, extending up to six months for
major customers.

Since the Group's trade receivables are related to a number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. All trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the revenue recognition date and
invoice date, is as follows:

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
23. B 5 EIKFIA

AEENEZHRUGAEXRBHEDE
MEREMERREHMEERR -

FRMEHENKERETRREBE
BEM#ENGERIN - AREEHERE
MENBHEMEERRBEA - —REK
EFPEA/BFRANR  AEE KR
ARENFEABRBART=EANRHE
H FEFPAERERZNEA -

HRASKENE 5 RIGIRE—# 5 B
BEFER BHUBREREESETER -
AEBYARZFERFATMAMER
mn o KEREMIRERERR . AEE
SRENGIRG B -

R|EHR - B 5 RUBGIAN KK DT
(A ARERR R L EZAHFE)MT

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETIT

Current to 90 days ENEAZ 90 H 441,486 484,234
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 15,320 38,079
181 to 365 days 181 H= 365 H 2,933 6,247
Over 365 days 365 BIA £ 6,611 9,401
466,350 537,961

The financial impact of ECLs for trade receivables was
insignificant for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021.

BE_Z-_—F#+-_A=+—HREKZ=Z
——HF+-_A=+—HItFE BEHE
WERHIEEEEENI T EYTE
j(o
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

24.

TR BRIR ~ B WO TR
H&EE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®TE

Prepayments (note) TE {5 5RIE (P 5E) 5,595,241 4,295,767
Deposits birdens 779,766 1,581,832
Other receivables H fth e Uk R IE 7,028,687 5,348,655
Cost of obtaining contracts BEE RAIRA 725,906 614,543

14,129,600 11,840,797
Non-current portion SR BB (814,465) (906,061)
Current portion mENER D 13,315,135 10,934,736

Note: The balance included prepayments for the acquisition of land use
rights in Mainland China amounting to RMB794,707,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB1,081,063,000).

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 25.

An analysis of the balances with related parties is as follows:

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

FEW,FEA AR TS 5RIR

HRSET BRI T ¢

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Due from related parties: PEUNEBE S FRIE ¢
Companies controlled by the Wong Family — B = KKEEHIFA G 307 -
Joint ventures AE RN 3,910,872 4,843,441
Associates e lN 3,246 198,120
3,914,425 5,041,561

Due to related parties: PEASERE T FRIE ¢
Companies controlled by the Wong Family & KR iEZE I A T 15,264 5,380
Joint ventures SR E 1,918,424 2,244,826
Associates /N 649,620 361,812

2,583,308 2,612,018

Except for the amount due from a related party of
RMB540,000,000 which was non-trade in nature, unsecured,
bore interest at 7.5% per annum and repayable on demand in
prior year, all balances are non-trade in nature, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

None of the amounts due from related parties is either past due
or impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default. As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

Bx LA AT 4F E A K % 540,000,000 7T F& U
—EAEAEFARBRAIFESHEE - BIK
- RFEMNETIS%FTBEREREREE
SN FTBEEMARIEAEZE S L « EIK
A BB RAKREREE -

7 4% 8 Uk B 5 5 FOIE @ B SORE o Bt
AN BIEH S B A E R & B X
HENEWRREEB R2T=_F
+ZA=+—BRk=ZZF=Z—%F+=A
=+—H @ ZEBERELTRERMD -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EE

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. W NIUEFTE HEEBEFA

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BN EEE

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T R ARKETT

Listed equity investments, at fair value ETRARE  BARE 53,434 86,475

Other unlisted investments, at fair value FELEHTRE  BARE 378,539 1,207,548

431,973 1,294,023

The above listed and unlisted equity investments were classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as the
Group has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss

through other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2021, the remaining unlisted investments
were wealth management products issued by a bank in
Mainland China. They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

27. RE KR EEBY - IR

R ke EHER

2022 2021

—E=-= —E_—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARKETET

Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTERE R 12,053,558 20,005,869
Time deposits TE HRTF X 2,962,500 —
Less: Restricted cash (notes (a)) W ZBREIER S (s (a)) (3,866,093) (4,273,708)
Pledged deposits (note (b)) BT (MIEE (b)) (31,012) (54,574)
Pledged time deposits (note (c)) EHEAEHFER (M) (2,000,000) -

Cash and cash equivalents (note (d)) e RIREEEY (i) 9,118,953 15,677,587

Notes: Bt e -

(@) Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC and agreement with @  ARIEFEERER REIRITHE - RTT
banks, certain subsidiaries of the Group are required by banks to RRAREE THB AR —E 2R
place certain amounts of guarantee deposits at designated bank FERF AEEIRITHRS - ZIREEAAR

(d)

accounts. The deposits can only be used for purchases of construction
materials and payments of construction fees for the relevant property
projects and other designated purposes.

The bank deposits were pledged to secure general banking facilities
and bills payable granted to the Group (note 42).

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's time deposits of
RMB2,000,000,000 were pledged to banks in respect of the
commercial bills of a business partner for the biddings of land parcels
for future development of the Group. As one of the biddings was
unsuccessful, the pledged deposits of RMB1,000,000,000 were
released by the bank subsequent to the reporting period (note 42).

Balances included certain amounts of pre-sale proceeds of properties
required to place at designated bank accounts as guarantee deposits
for designated purposes as required by local government authorities,
but such deposits were not restricted by the banks. As at 31
December 2022, such deposits amounted to RMB3,479,261,000
(2021: RMB2,273,926,000).

()

BREEE Mﬂ&iﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%lﬁﬁﬁﬁk
ERREMETERE

ZERTEREERARGR FAEEN
—RIRITIEEEE RENRE(HE42)

RZZTE-_—F+-_A=+—H A&E£EH
F & 8177 3 A K ¥ 2,000,000,000 7t 2
WHRRITARGES B HEEES - U
AIEREBREZER A - RREH
% - SRITERER —ERBTKINE R
K 3 17 3 A R #1,000,000,000 7T ( Hf 5
42) °

HRERIERE M BUTREFAETERITER
W%%i%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%?%ﬁ%ﬁ%
CEBREERTZBITRE - R
::¢+ A=+—8 "  ZEGRAEAR
#3,479,261,000L (Z T =—F : AR¥E
2,273,926,0007T) °
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

27.

28.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB14,855,496,000 (2021: RMB19,221,382,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. All
the bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

27.

28.

ReMIIRSEZFEY  XRH
HWeE MEEHER @)

REBEIR  REEUARBSIEHIRE
ERIBOTFEREH LR EHRTRBARE
14,855,496,000 7L (= = —4F : ARK
19,221,382,0007T) - AR TR EHH
RAEMEE AW - BIFEF BRI
HE B IR 1501 ) RCAEE - SIE RFEEE
RE) « AEETE BB T INE ZEFS
HIRITIARE LB AHMER -

RITEFRRESBRITERNELTER
REVH S - EHIERFERZBRA—
NF-—RE=ZBAATE  TERTFEXE
B2 B3R & FRMIE @ WA RG]
EHERAAE 2 M RREFB - FTB R
THFRER N EBRFRAFRIALETH
ERRCERM REERRT

BIRNRIBNREE

RBERR  BEZRNRARRENR
BRIZZERBEMOMNMT

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ TR ARET T

Within 1 year —FRN 10,409,743 14,440,800
Over 1 year —FE P E 411,791 341,500
10,821,534 14,782,300

The trade and bills payables are unsecured and non-interest-
bearing and are normally settled based on the progress of
construction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

20. Efb N ZIENESTER K

CONTRACT LIABILITIES aRAE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E_—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARET T AREETIT
Contract liabilities ERAE (a) 82,443,359 64,441,542
Deposits received BlES 1,817,920 2,176,816
Accruals EEtEA 401,273 680,123
Advances from non-controlling FEIE MR AR B AR
shareholders (b) 1,863,290 3,965,578
Proceeds from securitisation B LB B R IA
arrangement (©) - 1,272,202
Other payables H b e~ 2B (d) 5,095,378 3,076,614
Lease liabilities MEAE 16(a) 26,750 343,177
91,647,970 75,956,052
Non-current portion — lease liabilities JEjREIE (D — FHEAE (17,729) (281,029)
Current portion EENEL D 91,630,241 75,675,023
Represented by: K& :
Contract liabilities ERAE 82,443,359 64,441,542
Current portion of other payables HAb AR R ETERA
and accruals ViEE=5%) 9,186,882 11,233,481
91,630,241 75,675,023
Notes: B
(a) Contract liabilities include advances received from buyers in (a) AREEREEAEBEEMEEBART

connection with the Group's pre-sales of properties. The net increase
in contract liabilities was mainly due to the increase in advances
received from customers in relation to the sales of properties at the
end of the year, offset by the decrease in advances received from
customers upon recognition of revenue in the current year when the
purchasers obtained the physical possession or the legal title of the
relevant properties.

Other than certain advances from non-controlling shareholders of
approximately RMB393,000,000 which are interest-bearing at 8.0%
per annum, the remaining advances are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

FYRERRIE - & RBEFEINIEEH
RERFAR Y 38 & 7 F P R IR
NS T IS E B ME AR
BIRPT AR Y EHERBERE LUK
HURIER A Prif sy o

BETABAIEEBRBRREROARE
393,000,000 7T AL FF & 8.0% 51 & » H
fhBF AR - B RAEREREE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0 The balance represented proceeds received from a financial institution
in the PRC, to which the Group has transferred the right of receipt of
the remaining sales proceeds of certain properties to be delivered by
the Group. Under the assignment arrangement between the Group
and the financial institution, as and when the Group receives the sales
proceeds from customers, the Group would remit any cash flows it
collects on behalf of the financial institution. The balance was repaid
during the year.

zgﬁmg; RIA N JEETE R &

aREE @
Wi« (40)
©  9IEE T E S MR 55 HOR

ﬁﬁﬁK%@EE%yHSZHXZIKEIE%H?XH%'F
W) BRI E PSSR MR o RIBEA
SEMZTREENEERR S AREQ
P UWERSH & RS RIRE - ARRE R EE
EHE AR Z S BB E R EMR SR
B - ZBHFNFREE -

(d) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand. (d) HiENTIBE AR B RBIREKIERE o
30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. s ER HMER
BORROWINGS
2022 2021
—E-CEF —E--&
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
per annum Maturity RMB'000 per annum Maturity RMB'000
HEY) HED)
EFIE(%) HMA  ARETR EFIE (%) A ARETR
Current ik
Bank loans —secured  $R{TE X — BHEA 3.20-8.08 2023 10,089,294 2.68-6.96 2022 4,333,753
Bank loans — unsecured $R{TE 3 — EIKIF - - - 338 2022 174,989
Other loans —secured ~ EfEH —H#HE  9.00-10.00 2023 653,665  8.60-11.00 2022 4,180,600
10,742,959 8,689,342
Non-current ERE
Bank loans — secured  $RITE — B 3.20-8.20 2024-2036 14,653,106 2.68-6.90 2023-2036 20,215,180
Other loans —secured ~ EbEF — A#EHF  9.30-12.00 2024 1,599,047 8.80-9.60 2023 618,200
16,252,153 20,833,380
26,995,112 29,522,722
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7355 ¥ B

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. sTESRIT M EMER @)
BORROWINGS (Continued)

2022 2021
—E-—F —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETE

Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: FEEERITER
Within one year or on demand —FRILE K 10,089,294 4,508,742
In the second year F_F 9,464,508 7,628,816
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=EhF(BREEEME) 3,819,267 10,520,506
Beyond fifth years ERAF 1,369,331 2,065,858
24,742,400 24,723,922
Other borrowings repayable: JEEEEMERR :
Within one year —FR 653,665 4,180,600
In the second year F_F 1,599,047 618,200

2,252,712 4,798,800

26,995,112 29,522,722
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

30.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Certain of the Group's bank and other borrowings are secured by the
Group's bank deposits, property and equipment, investment
properties, properties under development and completed properties
held for sale, details of which are disclosed in note 42 to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings with an aggregate amount of RMB8,461,842,000 (2021:
RMB9,913,958,000) were secured by share charges in respect of the
equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Group, details of which
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

Except for certain bank and other borrowings of RMB1,127,006,000
(2021: RMB1,360,565,000) and RMB4,212,882,000 (2021:
RMB4,175,047,000) as at 31 December 2022 which were
denominated in HK$ and United States dollars (“US$"), respectively,
all of the Group’s bank and other borrowings were denominated in
RMB.

At the end of the reporting period, except for certain bank and other
borrowings of RMB4,099,552,000 (2021: RMB7,422,553,000) with
fixed interest rates, all of the Group’s bank and other borrowings bear
interest at floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank and other borrowings of
RMBS5,339,888,000 (2021: RMB5,535,612,000) were secured by a
specific performance obligation imposed on the Wong Family and
pursuant to which (i) the Wong Family must remain the single largest
shareholder in the Company; (ii) the Wong Family must hold legally
and beneficially and directly or indirectly 35% or 40% or more of all
classes of the Company’s voting share capital and/or must directly or
indirectly control the Company; and (iii) Mr. Wong or a member of
the Wong Family must remain to be the chairman of the Board of the
Company.

There is a non-compliance of a financial covenant of certain bank
loans as at 31 December 2022 and relevant waivers have been
obtained subsequent to the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the relevant requirement of HKFRS, since the waiver
was obtained subsequent to the reporting period, the relevant bank
loans with aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,453,174,000 have
been classified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2022.
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(a)

()

H 55K )

REEME TRITREMERAAREED
RITFR  MERRE BREVE R
PYEERERECERMEERR - B
FARHIE IR B 5 R MR 42 5 -

#*%**¢+*H:+f5 NEEH

ETHROREBEREARYE
8,461,842,00075( ZEZ—F: AR
9,913,958,0007T) AL EE TH B AR
BRR AN i MU RR D VEHEHR - B HR TS
HwARMIFE -

BRZZ-_—_F+-_A=+—HNETE
TREMERARY1,127,006,000 7T (=
T——F: AR¥1,360,565,000) & AR
#4,212,882,000 (=T =—F : AR%
4,175,047,00070) 5 BIAB T R FETT ([
TDIESN  REEMABRITREME
FIEAANRETIE -

RBEHBR - BRETRIEREMGERAR
#4,099,552,000 L (ZE=—F : ARME
7,422,553,000 7T ) LA & FE FI|Z 5T B4 - AR
EBERATERTT REMEFIRZEF X
TR

R-E-_—&F+=-HA=+—80  KAEEDH
SR1T R H M E AR 5,339,888,000 7T
—T-—4: AR#¥5,535612,0007T)
HERKRENETBEOETFER &
It )V EERRE NS BEE RSN AR — &
KER  (NERKRENBEEEREREE
BERMESAAARAAER L ZER
AN35% 8% 40% kA £ K SN B E K
MEEHIARE  Rii)BELEHEER
REAP (I B N EEEETARRES
GEF o

R=ZZT=_=F+=-A=+—08 ' BFET
BERFETEFTMBRZANER - WER
LHEREESHBRE - REBSUH

HEAMBEBESR - AR ERERS
HERERESN  AER =T =_—_F+=
A=+ —H BEEEABARK
2,453,174,000 TR HE A RITE R E 5 5
HARSEE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7355 ¥ B

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS 3. BEEENBERNES

2022 2021
—E-CE 3
Principal  Contractual Principal ~ Contractual
at original interest at original interest
currency rate (%) currengy rate (%)
‘million ~ per annum Maturity RMB'000 'million per annum Maturity RMB'000
HE EIEd
R¥xg TS RERS £
BER (%) HER  ARETR BET (%) JEE ARETR
SeniorNotesduein ~ —S-~#=R%|#
March 2022 BiER = = = - US$S00ET 5875 2022 3158718
Senior Notes duein ~~ —Z-MEMAF|H
April 2024 BrEEs USS500 27 1375 04 349467 USSS00ET 7375 04 3,155465
SeniorNotesduen~~ —E==FWA5|H
April 2023 @ﬁ?ﬁ USS500% 70 1.25 2023 349846 USSS00ETT 7.25 2023 3,148,639
Senior Notes due in SoRERAYH
May 2025 @%?TE USS500% 0 I 2025 3403779 US$S00%TT 7 2025 3,136,224
SeniorNotesduein =S \F-AIH
February 2026 Bz USS350£7T 6 W6 2380307 US§30ET 6 006 2193801
Senior Notes duein ~ —E-MEH A5IH
September 2024 BrZE USSA50 57 595 200 2927949 US§3005TT 595 2004 1,882,705
Domestic Bonds duein ~ R=F =%\ B3| RMB RMB
August 2023 Wﬁm%‘# AR%540 6.5 03 540000  ARE540 65 2003 540,000
Domestic Bonds duein R E =&+ A3|H RMB RVB
July 2024 ﬂ%mﬁ% AR 506 55 204 506019 AR1460 55 204 1,460,000
Domestic Bonds duein ~ R=E-HE+AZH RMB RMB
October 2025 fENES AR#565 55 2025 564669  AK%2,000 55 2005 2,000,000
17,162,036 20,675,612
Non-current portion ~ 3ERENSH (13,202,190) (14,056,834)
Current portion i) 3,959,846 6,618,778

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
REEEERAERAT I — T _FFR



228

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS

31. BARBEMEANES: @)

(Continued)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Repayable: JE1E :
Within one year —E R 3,959,846 6,618,778
In the second year F—F 7.418,104 3,688,639
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=ZRF(BEEEMF) 5,784,086 10,368,195

17,162,036 20,675,612

(a) Senior Notes

The Company, at its option, can redeem all or a portion of
the Senior Notes due in April 2024, the Senior Notes due
in April 2023, the Senior Notes due in May 2025, the
Senior Notes due in February 2026 and the Senior Notes
due in September 2024 (collectively, the “Senior Notes”)
at any time prior to the maturity date at the redemption
prices (principal amount plus applicable premium) plus
accrued and unpaid interest up to the redemption date,
as set forth in the written agreements between the
Company and the trustees of the Senior Notes.

The Senior Notes are secured by pledges over the equity
interests of certain subsidiaries of the Company (note 1).

In January 2022, the Group issued additional senior notes
at a coupon rate of 5.95% per annum due in September
2024 with an aggregate principal amount of
US$150,000,000. The additional senior notes have been
consolidated and formed a single class with the Senior
Notes due in September 2024.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS

(Continued)
(a) Senior Notes (Continued)

The fair values of the early redemption options of the
Senior Notes were not significant and therefore were not
recognised by the Group on inception and at 31
December 2022.

(b) Domestic Bonds

At the end of the second year subsequent to the inception
date in July 2020, Xiamen Zhongjun, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the issuer of the Domestic
Bonds due in July 2024, shall be entitled to adjust the
interest rate and the holders of the Domestic Bonds due
in July 2024 shall be entitled to sell back the bonds to
Xiamen Zhongjun in whole or in part at their principal
amounts. In June 2022, certain holders of the Domestic
Bonds registered to sell back a total of 9,539,810 bonds
at a price of RMB100 each for RMB953,981,000, which
were fully repaid by the Group in July 2022.

At the end of the second year and the fourth year
subsequent to the inception date in October 2020,
Xiamen Zhongjun, as the issuer of the Domestic Bonds
due in October 2025, shall be entitled to adjust the
interest rate and the holders of the Domestic Bonds due
in October 2025 shall be entitled to sell back the bonds to
Xiamen Zhongjun in whole or in part at their principal
amounts. In October 2022, certain holders of the
Domestic Bonds registered to sell back a total of
14,353,310 bonds at a price of RMB100 each for
RMB1,435,331,000, which were fully repaid by the Group
in October 2022.

The aggregate fair value of the Senior Notes and Domestic
Bonds as at the end of the reporting period was
RMB11,120,781,000 (2021: RMB17,515,313,000).

The fair values of the Senior Notes and the Domestic Bonds are
based on price quotations from financial institutions at the
reporting date.

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

31. BARBEMEANESF @)

(a) BERE @)

HREBAZENRERERPENA
REITEKN  AEBRBRET
Ak—_ZF—_—F+_A=+—H0%%

REEDNAE
(b) HARZS

REBAPE_TF+ABKNE
ZEFR ARAEERBARE
P EE (EAR _ZE-_WFt A5
HEENERBETA) BEFAZER
= MR ZEZE -+ AR AR
NEFFHB ABEREPTHEE AR
REEREHRINOES - RF
ZZFERA ETERERNESFEREA
BERARE 100 THERE SR
2 /9,539,8100k EH E TK &
e AKBEER=-_ZE-_—_FtA2
Eh{EE AR ¥ 953,981,000 7T °

R BH T F+ AENE
ZERFENFFR  BEPIREGE
RARRZEZRF 1+ AR HERAG
HETN)BEAZMNE  mR=
THFTARIHBRRENESFRER
ABREREMFBRAERNSER S
HekEHHES - R=ZTE=__F+
A BETHRAGLERFEARERA
RB10THERREEBHA
14,353,310 R EH B TR E R © A
EERPR-_ZE-_—&F+A2IEE
AR#1,435,331,000 7C °

RBEHR BEAEZBERENEENA
AEET A AR 11,120,781,000 7T (=
—4 : AR#¥17,515,313,0007T) °

BEZBERBRNESFHN AR ELRER
STHOEEEE 2 REME
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EE

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

BRI IA

TR EERBREREENEFH I

- %

EERBRE

Revaluation

of properties
EXRT/ES

Notes RMB’000
gz AREETTT

At 1 January 2021 N—_ZE—_—F—H—H 4,352,359
Credited to profit or loss during the year SFAFRER (32,719)
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary R R EE —FEIPT B A ) 38 56,227
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE AR 39 (15,765)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZEBE-_—F+-_A=1+—HK

—E-_—_F—H—H 4,360,102
Credited to profit or loss during the year FFAFERNIB R (7.216)
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary R R E —FIFTE A A 38 15,663
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 )= 38 67,447
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H 4,435,996
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7355 ¥ B

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32. RIEFRTA ()

Deferred tax assets ELEBIEERE
Losses
Unrealised available for
profits offsetting
arising from against future
intra-group Provision taxable
transactions of LAT profits Total
SERH AL
REH TibEER ARERB
RER A B aHZER @t
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Bzt ARBTT ARBTFT ARETFT ARETT
At 1 January 2021 ~“E-—%—f—H 108,859 337,335 542,644 988,838
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary REYE-ERBAR 38 - - 29,326 29,326
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 39 - - (11,270) (11,270)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A/ (8 ERERE
during the year (23,240) (42,159) 281,577 216,178
At 31 December 2021 and R-ZE-_—-F+-A=1+—H
1 January 2022 k-—Z-__%—H—H 85,619 295,176 842,277 1,223,072
Acquisition of subsidiaries U F A ) 38 - - 54,928 54,928
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 39 - - (95,080) (95,080)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A/ (E)ERER
during the year (4,504) - 293,850 289,346
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—F+-A=+—H 81,115 295,176 1,095,975 1,472,266
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

IRAETRIA ()

REIME  ETEEHRBEEEREE
ERGEMBHRRRATAEE - AT
RAEBHEEVRERDNT - (EHTS
HERE

2022 2021
—=E=-= -4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARETET

Net deferred tax assets recognised RGBSR R TR
in the consolidated statement of BRI E E ) F 5
financial position

1,173,522 1,068,631

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE BT AR L 3R A FER
in the consolidated statement of EER A B &SR
financial position

4,137,252 4,205,661

At 31 December 2022, the Group has tax losses
arising in Mainland China of RMB4,402,951,000 (2021:
RMB3,388,155,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group's tax losses in respect of which deferred tax
assets have not been recognised was not significant as at the
end of the reporting period.

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in the PRC. The requirement
became effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.
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32.

33.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB27,046,873,000 at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB23,061,960,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS

As detailed in note 17 to these financial statements, the Group
has contractual obligations to fulfil as a condition of the
Operating Concession under the Operating Right Agreement.
The obligations are (a) to maintain the Facilities it operates to a
specified level of serviceability and (b) to restore the Facilities to
a specified condition before they are handed over to the Sports
Bureau at the end of the Operating Concession. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the sports and
recreation facilities, except for the upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, i.e., at
the best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The future
expenditure on these maintenance and restoration costs is
collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. The estimation
basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where
appropriate.

32.

33.

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
EAETIE ()

RZZTE-_—F+-_A=+—8 " A&
BRI ARz B AR R ARE D&
Mz EETENHEmS - WABERTEIE
EFIE - EFRA - EAI AR ZF
MBARB TIEDIKZAF RZF
ZZF+ZA=+—H ' HRFE MK
BRAlzKRERB LR EEZRE5E (H
RAEREMECRIEEE) AAARE
27,046,873,000 L(—ZE=—F : AR
23,061,960,0007T) ©

7R 2% 7 1) AR BRI B R 8. 30 7

ERAERRAENTE

NIEREE

IENBA RS HRAR I RE 17 Pt - AN 5% B ZR
EEREML  FRERKERGZNE
ARERFIANENGRME - ZRFEER
@QEEELLENZERE - BRTA —
TE AT AR A KT B2 (o) IO AR 2 B4
REF - EBRRERETRT AZA
REEEEREMN - ENEERED
KIRGER MO & RIE T (BREA AR
SMIRBR G EREI7RAE - AR
BERIAEETNERNGE - AR
BERAABTRARTMHRAMNRER
AR AR EHENIEENTE
HIARRBERAXUATHRBER [ KE] -
HEEFBFELRS REEERREL

fEET e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

33. PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS 33. Kig#m @)
(Continued)
The movements in the provision for major overhauls of the FR - ZEREHKNEEBEEESNT :

Facilities for the year are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR¥TE

At 1 January ®n—H—H 69,264 60,619
Additional provisions (note 8) IR (BIEE8) 6,236 5,967
Increase in a discounted amount arising R By 80 7 4 1 /2 A RO ST BR (B 3G
from the passage of time (note 7) (F$=E7) 3,512 3,103
Amount utilised during the year FRNEASHE (398) (425)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 78,614 69,264
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. I&7A
Shares dv)
2022 2021
—E-= B —F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Authorised: ARE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of BAXEEO0.1078TH
HK$0.10 each 10,000,000,000 A% & 378 A 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
4,222,986,126 (2021: 4,222,133,380) FRXHEEO0.105TH
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 4,222,986,126f%k (=T =—% :
4,222,133,380 %) & i % 422,298,613 422,213,338
Equivalent to RMB’000 HENARET T 365,138 365,064
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R < Y

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
34, IRAN ()
B &)

ARBEETRAZEESHEEMT

is as follows:
Number of
shares Issued
in issue capital
21T
R & B ERTRA
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 N-E
and 1 January 2022 —E-—&#+-A=+—HF

—E——

=

4,222,133,380 422,213,338

Issue of shares for scrip dividend (note)

DARBCHC 8 877 AD (B &E)

852,746 85,275

At 31 December 2022 NZE—-—

F+-A=t+—H

4,222,986,126 422,298,613

Note:  On 24 August 2022, 852,746 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in
the Company were issued at HK$0.874 per share as scrip dividend.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in

note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

HeE: RZBE-_—_FN\A-+WHE ' &AQ7
852,746 % B XA E0.108 LK) XL i@
I &R 0.874 BILIARRA B 24T o

BRE

KNG BERETEF RS T BRI
35
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the option scheme adopted by the Company on 23
April 2018 (the “2018 Scheme”), the directors may, at its
absolute discretion, invite any participant to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company. A total of 382,384,000
shares is available for issue under the 2018 Scheme, which
represented 10% of the aggregate of the shares in issue on 23
April 2018, the date of the ordinary resolution passed. Each
participant is entitled to no more than 1% of the total number
of shares in issue in any 12-month period. The options shall
expire, in any event, not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the option subject to the provision for early termination
set out in the 2018 Scheme. The 2018 Scheme remain in force
until 22 April 2028.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the 2018 Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the 2018 Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
REEEERARAT I — T _FEFR
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BEARNAR-_ZE—NFENA=-_+=H
((ZZ—N\F5r8l ) Ry —EE R
g EETEERNEERIMN2HEERE
TEBREUAREARRRRD - —F—N
FEHE| 8174 $£ 382,384,000 A% A% 15
HERARABRMNR=ZZE—N\NFHNHA
—+ EEL& %ZL@EWE%H
IRIDABER) 10% - TR 2 ERE( 12
EABEAR A RENBBE ETRMD
%@%1%0&&ﬁ%&?*%&%%T
SEEAE MR L ERE B BREFT 5
wm ST \FREEFERR
RIEIEFRAIBRIN e ZF— NFEHEIKR
“E-N\FWUA -+ _HRIAX -

BREERE-FT— \Fi e LA
RITEERESREE RBESNEET
FRAR BB EITIRG 30% HEEE - B
FEFRRRARESRKERLE  TAFT

HL2EANTEEMI12{EANERNEBRET
LATTE R T35/ T RGBT E HF NS
BARBEBITHNEBERMNESN1% -

BYARAIES TBTBRABREE
BR R S 1 ST B A B IR R ES
RABBIIERITEETHEERE - 1)t
SN AEM12EAEBEA - #BFARQR]
TERRKBILIERTESREEEM
B2 A MBE AN A R E BT 89 0.1%
S4B E (AR ARG R % B R
B3 ) R 5,000,000 7 7T HY {E ] BE A%
REEEREAS FESKREMELIE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 5
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share option is determinable by the
directors, but should not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of
the share options; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholder’s meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the 2018
Scheme during the year:

35.

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
RERRAERT 3l ()

REBRENZOAMREL B BRLES
BABRARAZNE R 1B THRER
RE‘ER BREHBERENTFEHRHRE
BEET URTERBREZLHE R
FT10FEE BERLE ©

BERENTEERESEE  ETHEE
RAT=FPHNBREE : ()2 FERH
REBERER LD BREREBMERR
BB TIE : () AR RBMD R R
& 24 B8R A 5 B B3P At
B FIRTHE ¢ KA A B HEE

FE RO D B T B R AR A R B
BANE N -t e

FERN - T N\FHEETHRTED
ARSI -

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F
Exercise Number of Exercise ~ Number of
price options price options
TEE BREHE T1RE BRERA
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T
At beginning of year REH) 2.78 286,000 2.78 286,000
Exercised during the year RERTTEE - - - E
At end of year RER 2.78 286,000 2.78 286,000
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BER T2 (@)

RBERR - HARITEBRENTTEE
RATREEAE ST

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2022
Number of
options Exercise price Exercise period
—E——
BREHE 1T1EE 1T1E 8
‘000 HK$
T BT
135,000 2.78 1 July 2019 to 11 December 2028
—NFrtA—BEZE-_N\F+=-A+—H
151,000 2.78 1 July 2020 to 11 December 2028
—ECEFHLA—RAEZE-NF+=A+—H
286,000
2021
Number of
options Exercise price Exercise period
—E-—F
B E 1718 1715
‘000 HK$
T BT
135,000 2.78 1 July 2019 to 11 December 2028
—E-NFEA-REZ-NF+=A+—H
151,000 2.78 1 July 2020 to 11 December 2028
—ECFFELA—HEZZEZ)\F+ZA+—H
286,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted in 2018 was
HK$137,017,000 (equivalent to RMB120,397,000) (ranged
from HK$0.33 to HK$0.38 each), of which the share option
expense was fully recognised in profit or loss in prior years.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under the
2018 Scheme in 2018 was estimated as at the date of grant
using a binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted and the

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

5. BBRLERTEl ()

RZZE—NEAREBRENQA
#$137,017,000% T(#H & N A R %
120,397,0007T) (B M F0.33BTE
0.3887T) - BIRERZE 2EMNARIF
[EEEER

RZE—N\FRE-T— \FirEmK
HESEEBRENAAERK L AS
RAZAAEERLUAE - LT EAR
BB AR M IR AR A - T R R AISIR

following table lists the major inputs used: Fir{s FA /) = 289 A BUE -
2018
—Z=—)\F
Dividend yield (%) R B 2 (%) 7.19
Expected volatility (%) T8 BRI (%) 28.63
Risk-free interest rate (%) A B 61 2R (%) 2.7

Exit rates of the grantees of the options BIE =T — N\F 8 B R

granted under the 2018 Scheme (%) HEAR A B K E (%) 0

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

B HAR 0 S AR 3B R R AT AR R R SR8 B
WRR  TABASERER

AEARERTEFAEKDBREN
H AR -
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

35.

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
286,000,000 (2021: 286,000,000) share options outstanding
under the 2018 Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 286,000,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$28,600,000 (equivalent to RMB25,268,000) and share
premium of HK$766,480,000 (equivalent to RMB677,185,000)
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 286,000,000 share options outstanding under
the 2018 Scheme, which represented approximately 6.77% of
the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 115 and 116 of
the financial statements.

(b) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the

amounts of consideration and the carrying values of non-
controlling interests acquired or disposed of.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve

Transfers from retained profits to the statutory surplus
reserve were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC and were
approved by the respective boards of directors.
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36.

Mg T2 ()

RBERR  RRABEZF—/\Fir 3
™ # 5286,000,000( — & = —
286,000,000) 17 1 AR 17 {58 B AR 4 o £ 7R
REBREEREET  BEITEZER
TEEREKS BARQAR BT
286,000,000 AR BN AR - 0 2 A FE A1
% 7<28,600,0007% (1 & KX A B &
25,268,000 7T ) & % 17 4 B 766,480,000
BT (FHER AR 677,185,000 7T) (K
HREITER) ©

Rt EMEHmREMERR  NAFE
—Z— \5F 5 £ T # & 286,000,000 {7
BARITEEREREE - HERARRINZA
BB EITIRNDA6.77% °

(1
(a) &=£KHE

REEBRFRANFEE M EESH 25
RARFERE1ISEMNE 116 BHER
AEEEFRNA -

(b) EXfEME
BANHRIEPTE S  B IR AR
HOREEREEZMHERE -

(o) EERRFE

B R B N A E B R
RIEFBEARERRFERARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RESERVES (Continued)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

For the entities concerned, the statutory surplus reserve
can be used to cover previous years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into capital in proportion to equity
holders’ existing equity holdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of
their registered capital.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the excess of the
Company’s share of the nominal value of the paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the Company’s
cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries under common
control upon the group reorganisation completed in
December 2007.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value of share
options vested which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy of share-based
payments in note 3 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related share options are exercised, or
transferred to retained profits should the related share
options lapse or be forfeited.

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

36. @& @

(9]

(d)

(e)

EEBEBREE )

RAMERMNS  ATRRFEE
FREEmBEFEER(MA) - 7
AlRIE R A AR AR fl8E
BB - A REIRE MR
TRIREFEMEAREK 25% °

BOt A

BB R R BB E
ARANEFEAEERLEERE
AER(R_FZ2LF+_HA%K)
U B 5 SR I P B 8 B PO A AR
HIEE -

BREME

BREREERERDRTENE RERE
BRENARE  E—TFHBERIH
WRMEIARD BERN KOS
TR AMA - % BAS KA
PR TEREREERMEER
XA B P P e R A B 1R UK B
BERBEH
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 37. Fﬁ RNIEERER 2 IR
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS NG
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- MEE B AR ERNANEE KB AT
controlling interests are set out below: HEEEHY T
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Percentage of equity interest held EERERAERER S
by non-controlling interests:
Chongaing Junhuigongchuang EEIEHA 53% 53%
Chongging Sanchengyihui FE = mE 50% 50%
Hangzhou Zhongjun Real Estate Co., Ltd. iR EE X H R A7 N/A*

("Hangzhou Zhongjun”) (TN EE ) TiE A * 49%
Shanghai Junting LgkE= 30% 30%
Xuzhou Junxing RN Bk N/A*

TER* 54%

Xiamen Taiming EPIZEIS 35% 35%
2022 2021

—E__ -

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to B IR AR REZS HY
non-controlling interests: FRRF(EBE)
Chongging Junhuigongchuang BEKEHLE 47,640 (10,282)
Chongging Sanchengyihui BE = HmE (6,148) (6,491)
Hangzhou Zhongjun Aok - (187)
Shanghai Junting FE%®E (1,560) (8,836)
Xuzhou Junxing RN 5% B - 101,513
Xiamen Taiming EFIZ=% (9,835) =
Accumulated balances of non-controlling  #i& H EAFEIEIRAEZRAY
interests at the reporting dates: EE i
Chongging Junhuigongchuang SEHRELE 440,125 392,485
Chongging Sanchengyihui FE = E 477,295 483,443
Hangzhou Zhongjun UM B N/A*
TER* 1,421,637
Shanghai Junting g 378,948 380,508
Xuzhou Junxing RN B4 N/A*
TEAR* 860,941
Xiamen Taiming BEFZRE 1,914,858 1,924,693
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 37. MAERIFERER L IFE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS A DIENGIE )
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TR TEEHRELA EB =S
information of Chongqing Junhuigongchuang, Chongging fE . EEB=REMFRERNITEER T
Sanchengyihui, Shanghai Junting and Xiamen Taiming. The it o B B I8 T ] A T K 8 AT 3
amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: 7=
Chongging Chongging Shanghai Xiamen
Junhuigongchuang Sanchengyihui Junting Taiming
2022 —B-CF EFREHA EEZ-HZRE LBRZ BEFRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®FR AR®FR ARBF T ARBF T

Revenue Uz 1,869,579 601,723 - -
Other income Hep g A 482 2,299 64 9,059
Total expenses MRS (1,779,370) (616,315) (5,266) (37,159)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREH/(BE) 90,691 (12,293) (5,202) (28,100)
Total comprehensive income/ A2 EW A,/ (E1E)

(loss) for the year ek 90,691 (12,293) (5,202) (28,100)
Current assets REEE 920,008 2,049,558 1,567,630 21,571,273
Non-current assets EREEE 5 24,171 585,836 38,602
Current liabilities mEaE (82,159) (1,119,329) (604,886)  (16,082,624)
Non-current liabilities EREFER - - (285,000) (56,227)
Net cash flows from/(used in) K& E&FT1E,/(FiFA)

operating activities Rene s (275,131) (309,144) (134,368) 340,309
Net cash flows from/(used in) & &&F1S,/ (FiFA)

investing activities Rens$# (292) 32,873 (38,859) 278
Net cash flows from/Aused in) Bi&E&FTE,/(FiB)

financing activities RemeTH 260,672 242,364 81,808 (574,880)
Net decrease in cash and BeMREEEY

cash equivalents A (14,751) (33,907) (91,419) (234,293)
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Chongging Sanchengyihui, Hangzhou Zhongjun,
Xuzhou Junxing and Xiamen Taiming. The amounts disclosed
are before any inter-company eliminations:

\/‘—\—0—

%A

B N FEHE
BB AT

T%
TRIREE = WSE - FiM b - 5

INEEEL N EPIRB MBI E Rt - 5
8 SRR THRMERT A B R SH AT H 55

Chongaing Hangzhou Xuzhou Xiamen

Sanchengyihui Zhongjun Junxing Taiming

2021 —E- EE = HmlE T R B TR 84 2 EPIRS

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFTT AREFTT AREFT AREFT

Revenue g - 13,456 1,145,606 -

Other income =N 2,710 6,077 2,699 =

Total expenses MBS (15,690) (19,914) (960,039) =

Profit/(loss) for the year EREF/(BE) (12,980) (381) 188,266 =
Total comprehensive income/  FRZ2EMA/(FE)

(loss) for the year fEE (12,980) (381) 188,266 -
Current assets REEE 2,529,661 9,698,344 5,368,371 19,819,469
Non-current assets FRBEE 16,651 1,052,633 455 30,081
Current liabilities MEAE (1,579,619) (6,648,198) (3,772,126) (14,294,200)
Non-current liabilities ERBaE - (1,201,478) - (56,227)
Net cash flows from/(used in) KETEAG,/(FTA)

operating activities Bemne s 401,351 (9,423,350) 691,094 =
Net cash flows from/(used in) REESME/(FFE)

investing activities ReneFE 1,461 (29) - -
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEHME/(FTH)

financing activities HeRnEFa (547,266) 9,425,824 (759,430) =
Net increase/(decrease) BeRREEEY

in cash and cash equivalents #,/CRd) # 58 (144,454) 2,445 (68,336) -

In the opinion of the directors, as a result of acquisition of non-
controlling interest of Xuzhou Junxing and Hangzhou Zhongjun by
the Group in 2022, Xuzhou Junxing and Hangzhou Zhongjun are no
longer considered as non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
with material non-controlling interests of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022, and therefore, the summarised financial
information of Xuzhou Junxing and Hangzhou Zhongjun for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is not presented in the financial
statements.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
REEEERARAT I — T _FEFR

* BEERG EFﬁE@F:§::¢W%
RN B B AN o 8% O JEHE A A
—E_—F+-_A=+—RALFE" #N
RERNPERTBRE AR EEEAFE
ERESEC ANEEFEEMBAR - P
BERNGMNEREEMMNAENEE—F
CToE+ A=+ HILFEMBERNE
I BN A TSR -



38. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Year ended 31 December 2022

Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary

On 5 July 2022, the Group reached a resolution (the
“Resolution”) with the joint venture partners of Beijing Junyang,
pursuant to which the Group is entitled to appoint two of the
three directors in the board of directors of Beijing Junyang.

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

38. EBEHF

BE=
JJ:fIEJ;

REYE-BHELR

Beijing Junyang was previously a 75%-owned joint venture, and & ENa]

as a result of the Resolution, the Group obtained control of
Beijing Junyang. Beijing Junyang is principally engaged in the
business of property development in Beijing.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
deemed acquisition of a subsidiary as at the date of acquisition

were as follows:

—#+=A=+-H

R-F-_—_F+AFRAE"

REBENEEBHENMORS
SEARZTILREGESES
ME P RIE - L REBE RS —H75% 8

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2% MY

AEBEIER
Z(R#ZE]) - K

Al RRZE  ASBERFILER
SRS R HiE - L RS EBEIL R
T REFETS -

BRWE-RMEARNKRE B R E
MEERBBEARENT :

—EE=S

Beijing

Junyang

RS

Notes RMB’000

B+ ARBT T

Property and equipment ME N R 14 33
Properties under development BRI 4,922,000
Prepaid income tax TE I 2,761
Other current assets Hibmeh & E 164,147
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEFEY 437,916
Trade and bills payables E I RENFTIERER (3,662)
Contract liabilities aRAE (1,441,254)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T RRITREME R (628,900)
Other current liabilities Hihmea®’ (3,313,470)
Deferred tax liabilities RERRIBEEE 32 (15,663)
Non-controlling interests FEPEPR M R (30,977)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAREFENAHAEFEERE 92,931
Reclassification of investment in a joint venture R—EEERRINEEEN R (92,931)

Gain on deemed acquisition of a subsidiary

CARE € S NG L&
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. X555 #®)
Year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued) BE-—FT-_—_f+=-H=+—H
WL FE )
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) HEWE—EMEAE (&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as ZUBERIR S REONIOT
follows:
RMB’000
ARET
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiE IR & IR & EEY 437,916
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect  FARR AU EE —EIMT B A MR S K
of deemed acquisition of a subsidiary ReEBYRAEE 437,916
The results of the Beijing Junyang acquired during the year had FRMWKENI RS EEHAEE
no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or HE-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HIFE
loss for the year ended 31 December 2022. iAW BB EEATE -
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

(a)

In August 2022, the Group acquired an additional 45%
equity interest in Jieyang Junrui Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. ("Jieyang Junrui”), which was previously a
53.4%-owned joint venture. Upon completion of the
transaction, the Group held 98.4% of equity interest in
Jieyang Junrui and had obtained control over the board of
Jieyang Junrui. Jieyang Junrui engaged in property
development and property investment in Jieyang, the PRC.
The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the
form of cash of RMB9,000,000.

In September 2022, the Group acquired an additional
50% equity interest in Zhangzhou Junfeng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangzhou Junfeng”), which
was previously a 50%-owned joint venture. Upon
completion of the transaction, the Group held 100% of
equity interest in Zhangzhou Junfeng and had obtained
control over the board of Zhangzhou Junfeng. Zhangzhou
Junfeng is engaged in property development in
Zhangzhou, the PRC. The purchase consideration for the
acquisition was in the form of cash of RMB48,430,000.

In November 2022, the Group entered into an agreement
in relation to the acquisition of the additional 99% equity
interest in Pingdingshan Junming Trading Co., Ltd.
(“Pingdingshan Junming”). As such, the Group obtained
additional 39% of equity interest in Pingdingshan Junkang
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Pingdingshan
Junkang”) (collectively, “Pingdingshan Group”), which
was previously a 51%-owned joint venture, and has
obtained control over the board of Pingdingshan Junkang.
Pingdingshan Group are engaged in property
development and property investment in Henan, the PRC.
The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the
form of cash of RMB270,000,000.

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

38. (585 @®)

BE-E-_—-F+tZ=ZA=+—H
346 )

WEEKIE A

(a)

R-ZZT-—FN\A  AEBHBKE
BRI EMERZEERAR (18
(5855 ]) (R A53.4% & &R
a]) B REINAS % BRIERT L 1758 I
RSTXKE  AEBREBEES
#)98.4% I i RIES 1855 IR R E
EEMEGE - BERIEEEAR
BB HETMEER R EREE
BeRAWEBRERR G AR
9,000,000 7T °

RZTZZFNA  AEBERWEE
FEINBREEERZEERA AR ([E
MEEE ) (HEA50% A2 A7)
HIFEINS0% IR BERT S ik - MR
SEKE - NEBFBAEMNEEN
100% BRIE R EREMNBENES
SRR BENBEEEEFTEH
EMEITREBERER - BRKE
REEEF & AR 48,430,000 7T °

RZZEZ—F+— A AEEFK
BIIELEEEEER AR ([FIE
LLIBEDS |)RESN99% I AE R 37 1hes ©
NEER G H S TR
FEHEMZEAR AR FIELE
Bl (@l FELER] (HREA
51% M & & R al) RIFEIN39% AR HE
RESTFIEILSENESS T
o FREILEEEERFTBIIEE
ETMHEERFER - RXNERE
BEe AR 270,000,000 °
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(d) In December 2022, the Group acquired an additional
49% equity interest in Quanzhou Nuocheng Group, which
was previously a 51%-owned joint venture. Upon
completion of the transaction, the Group held 100% of
equity interest in Quanzhou Nuocheng Group and had
obtained control over the board of Quanzhou Nuocheng
Group. Quanzhou Nuocheng Group is engaged in
property development and property investment in Fuzhou,
the PRC. The purchase consideration for the acquisition
was in the form of cash of RMB103,333,000.

The acquisitions of Jieyang Junrui, Zhangzhou Junfeng,
Pingdingshan Group and Quanzhou Nuocheng Group were
completed in 2022 and consequently, Jieyang Junrui,
Zhangzhou Junfeng, Pingdingshan Group and Quanzhou
Nuocheng Group became subsidiaries of the Group.
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BRNFEREER (ERAES1%HE
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# MR ZTHE  AEERBER
| 55 550 55 (81 B 100% P K S R
MEHEENESSHEGE - R
M EEEETEPRBMNETY
ERRRMEREED - = RWE
REAR S ARE103,333,0007T °
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follows:

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. ¥ EH®
Year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued) BE-—_FE-_—F#+=-A=+—H
IEFE &)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) WEHMB AR (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the WM A R U EE B &9 AT Bl & B &
acquisition of subsidiaries as at the date of acquisition were as BEAREWNT :

Quanzhou
Jieyang  Zhangzhou Pingdingshan  Nuocheng
Junrui Junfeng Group Group Total
M
BERR ENRE JELEE R @zt
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
izE ARETR AR®Tz AR®BTr ARETt ARETR
Property and equipment VESEC] 14 84 1 100 95 280
Investment in associates REEZ DN Rl E - - 270,000 - 270,000
Investment properties REmE 15 670,000 - - 1973000 2,643,000
Properties under development BRERNE 1,021,000 - 518,000 3,877,000 5,416,000
Prepaid income tax BEATE 11,225 73 736 161,814 173,848
Deferred tax assets BREHERE 32 - 53,050 1,878 - 54,928
Other current assets Bt RBEE 24,472 30,152 366,768 1028527 1,449,919
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEN 87,776 2,044 17,986 395,243 503,049
Trade and bills payables BHRNFERRE (33,065) (5,387) (7.660) (223,030) (269,142)
Other current liabilities Efr#a s (1,441,282) (36,632)  (211,574)  (6,030,141)  (7,719,629)
Interest-bearing bank and SERAREMER
other borrowings (130,340) - (200,000)  (1,070,000)  (1,400,340)
Deferred tax liabilities ERERERE 32 (44,280) = (807) (22,360) (67,447)
Non-controlling interests FEE RS (2,649) - (68,545) (1,127) (72,321)
Total identifiable net assetsat ~ IRAA A2
fair value HAFEERE 162,941 43,301 686,882 89,021 982,145
Gain on bargain purchase ERED G tolien 6 (65,451) 26,873 - - (38,578)
97,490 70,174 686,882 89,021 943,567
Satisfied by: PANIVES TN
Cash B 9,000 48,430 270,000 103,333 430,763
Reclassification from BERAEATIH
pre-existing investments REEHBAR
in joint ventures to MEARKILE
investments in subsidiaries 88,490 21,744 416,882 (14,312) 512,804
97,490 70,174 686,882 89,021 943,567
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions is as
follows:

38. :

S8 6 o)

BE_FTE__F+=-H=+—H

WFEE#E)

WEEME D (4F)

ZBBRRSRESTAT

Quanzhou
Jieyang  Zhangzhou Pingdingshan Nuocheng
Junrui Junfeng Group Group Total
KN
el g ENKE  TELRE EEid] #st
RMB' 000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB' 000
ARBTE ARBTRT AR®TE AR®TRT AR%T:R
Cash consideration BeKE (9,000) (48,430) (270,000) (103,333) (430,763)
Cash and cash equivalents FiiiER e R
acquired He%E 87,776 2,044 17,986 395,243 503,049
Net inflow/(outflow) of cash and IR IBERTB 2 A&
cash equivalents inrespectof ~ EL RBELZEY)
the acquisition of subsidiaries A/ () F5E 78,776 (46,386) (252,014) 291,910 72,286
The result of Jieyang Junrui, Zhangzhou Junfeng and FAMBIBENBEER  EMNEERT
Pingdingshan Group acquired during the year had no significant BLERZEHASE#HE_T =

impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Since the acquisition, Quanzhou Nuocheng Group
contributed RMB2,789,146,000 to the Group's revenue and
RMB763,554,000 to the Group's profit for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Had the combination of Quanzhou Nuocheng Group taken
place at the beginning of the year ended 31 December 2022,
the revenue and the loss of the Group for the year would have
been RMB26,705,112,000 and RMB221,626,000, respectively.

The gain on bargain purchase is attributable to the market
condition at the time of acquisition and the Group’s ability in
negotiating the agreed terms of the transaction with the
vendors.
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Rtz A R ¥ 2,789,146,000 7T M AN
B'% 5 AR % 763,554,000 7C °

MEMNFEHEBRRHEE S _—F+=
A=+t—BLFERBREH ~&E
REEHNREEREEESIABARE
26,705,112,000 7T &2 A R % 221,626,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary

On 31 December 2021, the Group reached a resolution (the
"’Xiamen Taiming Resolution”) with the joint venture partners of
Xiamen Taiming, pursuant to which the Group is entitled to
appoint four of the seven directors in the board of directors of
Xiamen Taiming. Xiamen Taiming was previously a 65%-owned
joint venture, and as a result of the Xiamen Taiming Resolution,
the Group obtained control over Xiamen Taiming. Xiamen
Taiming is principally engaged in the business of property
development in Xiamen.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
deemed acquisition of a subsidiary as at the date of acquisition
were as follows:

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

 EEEH@®

#Ex_F_—-%+-A=+—H
ILFE

REYE-BHELR

R-B_—%+-_H=+—08 ~&£H

HEMFENEEBHFEMORS (TEFM
%%/%/JF D AEBEERREEPIRS

ExetEEFENETEE - EFFRS
RBRF/—E65%HEERTF  NEFT
FIHSRZR  ARERETEMFBEHE
B BEFEGEEEEREMETHESR
RER -

R RIUEE — R B A R U RS B B AT 3
REERBEAELT

Xiamen

Taiming

EFIZ=E

Notes RMB'000
i AR¥ETT

Property and equipment L EYNE ] 14 755
Properties under development ERERPYIE 11,762,000
Prepaid income tax ?EHEDLIE 289,324
Deferred tax assets BEEMBHEE 32 29,326
Other current assets HibhmeEE 7,469,602
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEED 298,543
Trade and bills payables B SN RIERER (15,936)
Contract liabilities aRARE (14,275,673)
Other current liabilities Hims B’ (2,591)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 32 (56,227)
Non-controlling interests FEIEIRIE (1,924,693)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAREFENAHREFEERLE 3,574,430
Reclassification of investment in a joint venture R—HEEERRINEEESD (3,574,430)

158 E YR — P B A Rl ey e as =

Gain on deemed acquisition of a subsidiary
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. X555 #®)
Year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued) BE—_E-_—+-A=+—8
WL FE )
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) HEWE—EMEAE (&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as ZW NI S TmE DI ¢
follows:
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiE IR & IR & EEY 298,543
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect  FARR AU EE —EIMT B A MR S K
of deemed acquisition of a subsidiary ReEBYRAEE 298,543
The results of the Xiamen Taiming acquired during the year had FAMKENENRB 2 XEHAEE
no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or BT -+ -_A=1+—HIFE
profit for the year ended 31 December 2021. RARE W sm FI W EE R E o
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended 31 December 2022

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2% MY

31 December 2022 — - —F+—-H=+—H
39. HEWE QA
F+=-—HA=+-—H

BE_-Z
IHEE

Details of the net assets of the subsidiaries disposed during the

year and the financial impacts were as follows:

B2 488
-7

A L B 2 RO B R R BT
ZEEMT :

Notes RMB’000
Bt aE ARBT T
Net assets disposed of: FritEEEFE :
Property and equipment EIEYNE 14 57.684
Investments in joint ventures REERRINEE 200,541
Investment properties wEMZE 15 223,731
Contract in progress EEIRE 19 329,384
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEE AR ME 11,479
Deferred tax assets RIETRIB A = 32 95,080
Trade receivables Z 5 W RIE 6,175
Other current assets HiRB&E 794,847
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFLEEBY 58,421
Trade and bills payables B I ENFIBEREE (85,381)
Other current liabilities Hi R A& (380,664)
Lease liabilities HEaE 16(a) (240,185)
Tax payable PR IR (669,638)
Non-controlling interests FEIERE RE RS (80,721)
320,753
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries k=i n ) =YNGII & 6,8 415,139
Exchange fluctuation reserve released upon & B A B RF AR B
disposal of subsidiaries HOBE 5,0 BN = s (31.372)
704,520
Satisfied by: LA 5175 2 HER
Cash BRe 704,520

An analysis of the net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

ARLHENBARNEERREEEY
MAFBDNT

RMB’000

ARET R

Cash and cash equivalents deconsolidated BIEEHRRE RESEEY (58,421)

Cash consideration HeRKE 704,520

Consideration receivables R E S RE (60,319)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in AN HENBARIMIRE X

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReEBYRARE 585,780
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. HEMB AR @
Year ended 31 December 2021 EF-_E-_—-%+-H=+—H
IHFE
Details of the net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of during AEELHEWBARNEEFENMEE
the year and the financial impacts were as follows: HEZFHEBWOT
Notes RMB’'000

B &E ARETT

Net assets disposed of: FriE&EFE :
Property and equipment I EYNET 14 206
Investment properties wEMZE 15 1,645,000
Properties under development BRAPYZE 4,263,153
Completed properties held for sale BEELEDERME 761,808
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE E 32 11,270
Trade receivables B Z IR 8,550
Prepaid income tax SEENERE] 104,592
Other current assets Hitymeh & E 4,498,595
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBRECEEY 619,944
Trade and bills payables B I RENFIARERE (192,871)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTRBRITREME R (2,500,000)
Other current liabilities HEfmsats (5,268,091)
Tax payable FERIFRIR (22,153)
Deferred tax liabilities FEETIEAE 32 (15,765)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (874,400)
3,039,838
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEWB A REEFE 8 (149,251)
Reclassification to investments in joint ventures A H & BIZ AR EETEH
at fair value at date of disposal* REERRIMBEEEDE (1,090,879)
Reclassification to investments in associates at ~ RAHE B AR EIERD
fair value at date of disposal* REtE AR EEDEE (834,487)
965,221
Satisfied by: LA 5175 2 HHR
Cash H4 965,221
4 For certain disposals, the Group has retained joint venture interests in * BETHEEAMS @ ARERR SR
the investee after the transactions. RERWIRE R FINE B AFN S °
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40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7355 ¥ B

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. HEMB AR @
Year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued) BZz-_E-_—%+-HA=+—H
ILFE#)
An analysis of the net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents FAREENEBEARNE S RESEEY
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MANFRADITT -
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents deconsolidated RIEEHHNIRE RIREEEYD (619,944)
Cash consideration HERE 965,221
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in AR HENBEARIMIRE X
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReEEWRARE 345,277
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  40. &R &8 KM=
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) FEFBHERS
During the year, the Group had deemed acquisition of a FRN - ANEBER R RS
subsidiary with total identifiable net assets fair value of NA) BEARIBRFEEAR
RMB92,931,000 (2021: RMB3,574,430,000). Further AR#92,931,0007c(=F ——F :
details are set out in note 38 to these financial statements. AR #3,574,430,0007T) © # —#

HBEENMBRERME3S -

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to FR - EFHELRHNE - A5E
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB539,000 FREEERBEEABNIIFRESAR
(2021: RMB54,914,000) and RMB539,000 (2021: E 2Bl A& AR®S5390007T( ==
RMB54,914,000), respectively, in respect of lease ——14F : AR¥54,914,0007T) & A
arrangements for buildings. R¥53900m(ZE=—F: AR

54,914,000 7T,) °
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(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  40.
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

meE RN @)

(b) MEEZHRMELNEBERE

activities
Interest- Senior notes
bearing bank and
Lease and other domestic
liabilities borrowings bonds
(Restated)
FTRRIT BARE
HESE RHEMER RRERES
(REE71)
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iz AR®BTn AR¥TR AR%Tx
At 1 January 2021 RnZZE—_—F—H—H 352,484 25,675,612 20,887,264
Changes from financing mMEEERERE
cash flows (89,733) 6,527,965 309,566
New leases Mg 54,914 - -
Foreign exchange movement [ i, 2= & & - (225,826) (561,140)
Interest expense FEXH 25,512 44,971 39,922
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 39 - (2,500,000) =
At 31 December 2021 and R —%F
1 January 2022 +=—A=+—HRK
—E-—F#—H—H 343,177 29,522,722 20,675,612
Changes from financing BB SEEIR G R E
cash flows (96,943) (4,935,173) (4,753,058)
New leases NHE 539 - -
Foreign exchange movement &3 = 2 &%) - 338,500 1,160,478
Interest expense AESLZH 20,162 39,823 79,004
Deemed acquisition of R EUEE — BB A A
a subsidiary 38 - 628,900 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EE P E A A 38 - 1,400,340 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 39 (240,185) = =
At 31 December 2022 RZEZ—F
+=A=+—H 26,750 26,995,112 17,162,036
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 40. A8 & n e XMzt @)

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

(0 FEHEENRERHARE

2022 2021

—E__ B

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T ARBTT

Within operating activities RIE L /EH) 5,089 4,943
Within financing activities NELE /S B 96,943 89,733
102,032 94,676

41. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

41, BAFEIELIR

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over the guarantees. The financial guarantee
contracts are measured at the higher of the ECL allowance and
the amount initially recognised less the cumulative amount of
income recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected
payments to reimburse the holders for a credit loss that it incurs
less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the
debtor. The amount initially recognised represents the fair value
at initial recognition of the financial guarantees.

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
financial guarantees which are not provided for in the
financial statements as follows:

AEEY BHRERFBEMERREE
EERE - WBRERERRBHAGEE
BEBEBRNSERSERD ERKA
R eENESENE BHMEEER
BELEBGLARSERTE  BHER
REEREERAAMELEEBEN
BB A S B E YA E5A KRN
TS - VPR EBEMHERD
WHERHRE

(@ REEHRR AEEBHMBERE
RIARNA T MwER A BEELT

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETET
Guarantees in respect of mortgage MAEEETYEERY
facilities provided for certain RREFRENER
purchasers of the Group’s (BF5E)
properties (notes) 25,482,461 21,647,437
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31 December 2022

—E_—_F+—-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued)

(@) (Continued)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating
to the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the
Group's properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees,
in the event of default on mortgage payments by these
purchasers before the expiry of the guarantees, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with the accrued interest and penalties owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks, net of any sales proceeds
as described below.

Pursuant to the above arrangement, the related properties
were pledged to the banks as collateral for the mortgage
loans, in the event of default on mortgage repayments by
these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal
titles and will realise the pledged properties through open
auction or other appropriate means. The Group is responsible
for repaying the banks when the proceeds from the auction of
the properties cannot cover the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of
the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance of
real estate ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will
generally be available within one to two years after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the guarantees is not significant as in the event of default on
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties can
cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals
together with the accrued interest and penalties and therefore
no provision has been made in the financial statements for the
guarantees.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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41. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued) 4. S YER (@)

(@) (Continued) (a)

In addition, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ and
associates’ own financial guarantees, which are not
included in the above, is as follows:

(%)

BEAN - REBDE R E QR KB
RERENHBER(LRAA L
O

2022 2021
—E-—F = =
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRE ARBTT

Guarantees in respect of mortgage BRSNS =N
facilities provided for certain ETMEERNIRE
purchasers of the joint ventures’ ERIR AR

and associates’ properties

4,433,874 5,437,686

(b) At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees (b)
given to banks in connection with loan facilities granted

RBEMKR  WENIBHREREE
ZHEARBITRTAE AT REE
A

to joint ventures and associates are not provided for in the NABEFBERENMBERE
financial statements is as follows: K
2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Guarantees given to banks in MBETFEERRIRIERF]
connection with loan facilities ZEREVE M4 T iRIT
granted to joint ventures 2R
and associates 3,202,552 4,987,480
In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the guarantees EERR REERNEIRENAAE
at initial recognition and the ECL allowance are not significant. REREEEREHETTERX -
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 42. BEHEM
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the RIEE R NEBGIATEERIT -
Group were pledged to secure certain bank and other PSR T AEENE THRITREME
borrowings granted to the Group: =
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-_—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B = ARBTR AR®TE

Bank deposits RITERK 27 2,031,012 54,574
Property and equipment L EINET 14 498,070 512,512
Investment properties KEMZE 15 12,847,267 10,714,425
Properties under development ERERPYE 18 49,683,439 23,837,954
Completed properties held for sale  #H{EHE D Ep % 22 - 903,840

65,059,788 36,023,305

43. COMMITMENTS 43, EIE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of REBRIREBARER AT EARFAIE :
the reporting period:

2022 2021
—=:=-= —E-—4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARKBTET

Contracted, but not provided for: BRABARBEE
Capital expenditure for properties under £ Bl KPEH) 2R AR ¥ 2% &
development and construction of FEPIREYED
investment properties in Mainland China BEARMRAY 18,135,770 19,826,245
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B 7355 ¥ B

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

43. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

In addition, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ and
associates’ own capital commitments, which are not included in

the above, is as follows:

43. EIE )

s -

AEEDERER

KRGV EARASECRMAA LT

CIPSE A NC]

2022 2021
—E-CF —E %
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: BRABARBE -
Capital expenditure for joint ventures’ ER=WNSI Y /N e
and associates’ properties under PEARERZEREFER
development and construction of BRI EYER
investment properties in Mainland China BEARMRAY 1,458,795 3,850,201
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS A4, BB H R 5
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances detailed in (a) BREBEERMEMFLNR S
note 25 to the financial statements, the Group had the RAEGRIN - INER - A5 B ELfEgE
following transactions with related parties during the year: FHENUTRRS :
2022 2021
—E—= —E—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B = AR®TRE AREBTET

Property rental income KB ERKIRFTIZES

from companies controlled AR YEESKA

by the Wong Family 0) 4,826 5,145
Property management fees received 2k B & K 5 i FT 4%

from companies controlled REMYMEERE

by the Wong Family (i) 1,363 3,415
Property rental expenses paid to {5 F & K R AT 5l

companies controlled NAEINMEREX N

by the Wong Family 0) 474 1,516
Advisory and operational service {5 T 5 A PRz A

fees paid to companies AR iﬁ&ﬂ‘%%

controlled by Mr. Wong 0) 3,333 -
Property management NFEEEREH A

fees paid to companies 7 EA=RLE =

controlled by Mr. Wong (i) 330 -
Aircraft leasing expense paid to NFELERZESIN—MA

a company controlled NRINREE S ER

by Mr. Wong (i) 3,314 3,877
Project management income REEE DA REE QT

received from joint ventures 7918 B B

and associates (iif) 93,850 104,091
Interest income on amounts due B A & A BIFIEHK]

from joint ventures FEWA (iv) 23,073 75,076
Consultancy service income REEE N LEEE QT

received from joint ventures BIFEAE A

and associates (v) - 50,623
Proceeds from sales of HEMRBARS

subsidiaries to the Wong Family BEERKREFERIE (vi) 56,000 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

45.

(@) (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The transactions were based on terms mutually agreed
between the Group and the related parties.

(i) The leasing expense was charged at a range of US$25,000 to
US$50,000 (2021: US$50,000) per month.

(i) The project management income was charged with reference
to the contracted sales amount and certain costs incurred on
property development projects.

(iv) Interest was charged at 8% (2021: 7.5% to 10.0%) per
annum.

(v) The consultancy service income was charged with reference to
the consultancy service agreements entered into between the
Group and related companies.

(vi)  The consideration was set at prices mutually agreed by both
parties.

(b) In the opinion of the directors, the directors of the
Company represent the key management personnel of
the Group. Further details of the compensation of key
management personnel of the Group are set out in note 9
to the financial statements.

Transactions of items (a)(i), (a)(ii) and (a)(vi) above also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
which are measured at fair value, other financial assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were
financial assets and financial liabilities stated at amortised cost,
respectively.

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

A4, BB R R 5 (%)

45.

@ &)
Mgk :
() HERBOERTEREE RS

77 KRAWE °

(i)  HLBATIIZE A 25,000% 50,000
EL (=T =—% : 50,000%7T) X
1o

iy EEEBRWATDZRYEZEREER
HERHERBRE TRAEEM
EE -

vy FEREFES%(ZT—_—%F:75%
Z100%) X1 °

v) HHAHEBRATIZRAEEREER
AMFAAES RMEE °

(vi) ZRERBESHHERE -

() EF=RR ARANEFRHEAEE
ETEEBAB - AKEXEEEA
B S FHISEN T RERM I -

A2 558 (a)i) 18 ~ (a)(ii) T K (a)(vi) TH IR
T%ﬁktm% JJ%MA ATHNEERS

R—BE-_—_FRgR_ZE_-_—%+_H4

=+—8- ﬁ%?ﬁ’&fiﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ“ﬁbﬁ
AERNERMEEI  AEBHMESH

BERBERABERAALR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments,
other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and senior notes and domestic bonds, reasonably approximate
to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, restricted cash, trade receivables,
trade and bills payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, the current
portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
amounts due from/to related parties approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021
was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments as at 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2021 are based on price quotation
from the respective fund managers or estimates based on
enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple for similar companies
adjusted to reflect the specific circumstances of the investments.

The fair values of wealth management products issued by a
bank in Mainland China as at 31 December 2021 were
estimated by using a discounted cash flow valuation model with
reference to the expected rates of return.

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

46. AREMARTEEBR ®)

RZEZZF+A=+—HBEKZ=%
Z—F+=ZA=+—H8 " ¥LmERKE
BENARBENERESCERERER
S ERCEEBEHTLRARMND
X¥EBERZREFENSEERBRA
BINEBIMERBHMBAN([REE
{8, EBITDA |) 58 -

R_ZE=——F+-_A=+—8 ' #ERK
H—ERITEITNEY ERKEATER
S RIGEER 2 E RS REF A
HEtEARE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R Y At

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46. NI EBEMARBEER &)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group'’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: BRAREENEE :
As at 31 December 2022

Fair value measurement using

DNAEFBER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RER EATEERE EATTEE
mSHE WARE BWARE
(B—%) (B=%) (B=#) A5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AR®T ARBTFT ARBTT
Financial assets at fair value BEAREEEEE
through profit or loss ATABENEREE 53,434 - 378,539 431,973
As at 31 December 2021 RZZE=Z—F+=-A=1+—H
Fair value measurement using
NAEFE-ER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R EBERAEE BEANAEE
TI5HE BABUR B A\ BUR
(=4 (B=4) (B=4&) #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTFT ARBFIT ARETT
Financial assets at fair value WAREEREES
through profit or loss AABENEREE 171,321 = 1,122,702 1,294,023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair

value hierarchy (Continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3

during the year are as follows:

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

46. AREMARTEEBR ®)

DREBHRE)

FAE=BRANRIABEFTEZBNOT :

2022 2021

—E== — et

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

=2 ARET T ARETIT

At 1 January n—HA—H 1,122,702 816,687
Loss recognised in profit or loss, net A8 HER Y E 185 58 (16,866) (60,005)

Purchases A - 700,802
Disposal k== (835,817) (109,497)
Transfer from Level 1 to Level 3 BHE—FEEE=H (a) 84,845 =
Transfer from Level 3 to Level 1 HE=MREZE R (b) = (210,332)
Exchange realignment M i, = B 23,675 (14,953)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 378,539 1,122,702

Notes: BsE

(@)  Except for certain unlisted investments included in financial assets at (@) BRBOFTAUNAAREETEBEEZEEFTA

(b)

fair value through profit or loss in aggregate of approximately
RMB84,845,000 has no recent market transaction with quoted
market price and has been transferred from Level 1 to Level 3 during
the year, there were no transfer into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities.

In 2021, except for certain unlisted investments included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss in aggregate of
approximately RMB210,332,000 which became a listed investment or
has recent market transaction with quoted market price and have
been transferred from Level 3 to Level 1, there were no transfer into
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities.

EHBENEREENIELTIRESETH
AR¥E 84,845,000 T2 AT H R 53R
BYERE-—REEE = RAE
B SREEMSRAESREALEN
BE=M -

by ZZT=—F BRIMDIAUQABETE
BHEHEFH A AEHEZNEREENI L
MR EA 4 AR 210,332,000 LA &
THRAKBEETNERSMEICHE
—REEERI SRHEENCHARE
HREASEHE=H -
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and domestic
bonds, amounts due from/to related parties, and cash and short
term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. Other than
deposits held at banks, the Group does not have significant
interest-bearing assets. Restricted deposits were held at banks in
the PRC at the same savings rate of unrestricted deposits
throughout the year. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
bank and other borrowings with floating interest rates.
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. Bif5R e &1 B 12 KBS )
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued) F=m@EE (&)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRIRFERTE Hb ] & E = RF A E
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in interest BT » REEHEIR  FIRNESIER
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s B AN EEGRHR AN E - &
profit before tax. There is no material impact on other 8 8 B 1~ @ Y 7N = B A HL fih R S AR K 2D
components of the Group’s equity. DR E KR EZ o
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit
basis points before tax

X BiAT =R
@, Omd) 18/ (Rd)

RMB’000
AR® TR
2022 —E-=

RMB AREE 150 (263,335)
HK$ BT 150 (16,905)
us$ v 150 (63,193)
RMB AREE (150) 263,335
HK$ BT (150) 16,905
us$ e (150) 63,193
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit
basis points before tax
HE 754 Al )
o Crd)  #an CRd)
RMB’000
AREFIT

2021 —E-—4F
RMB ARHK 150 (248,468)
HK$ BIT 150 (20,408)
us$ v 150 (62,626)
RMB AREE (150) 248,468
HK$ BIT (150) 20,408
us$ e (150) 62,626
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Under existing PRC foreign exchange regulations, payments of
current account items, including dividends, trade and service-
related foreign exchange transactions, can be made in foreign
currencies without prior approval from the State Administration
for Foreign Exchange Bureau by complying with certain
procedural requirements. However, approval from appropriate
PRC governmental authorities is required where RMB is to be
converted into a foreign currency and remitted out of China to
pay capital account items, such as the repayment of bank and
other borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group's PRC subsidiaries may also retain foreign currencies
in their current accounts to satisfy foreign currency liabilities or
to pay dividends. Since foreign currency transactions on the
capital account are still subject to limitations and require
approval from the State Administration for Foreign Exchange
Bureau, this could affect the Group's subsidiaries’ ability to
obtain required foreign currency through debt or equity
financing, including by means of loans or capital contributions
from the shareholders.

All the revenue-generating operations of the Group are
transacted in RMB. The majority of the Group’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB except for the Company and
certain investment holding companies within the Group
operating in Hong Kong, in which bank and other borrowings
and senior notes were denominated either in HK$ or US$. The
fluctuation of exchange rates of RMB against other foreign
currencies will not have material adverse effect on the operating
results of the Group.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate against HK$, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group'’s profit before tax.
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. Bif5R e &1 B 12 KBS )

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

s LB (2)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit

rate before tax
fE = BiAEF
#in,CRA)  #hn GEd)

RMB’000
ARET R
2022 —E-F
If HK$ weakens against RMB EBTTAARERE 3% 34,240
If HK$ strengthens against RMB EBTAAREHE (3%) (34,240)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rate before tax
b = At Al g A
g Cmd) Ol
RMB'000
ARBT T
2021 T
If HK$ weakens against RMB ERATARAREERE 3% 43,059
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BEBRTTHEAREAE (3%) (43,059)
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

It is the Group’s policy that all customers are required to pay
deposits in advance of the purchase of properties. In addition,
the Group does not have any significant credit risk as the credit
given to any individual or corporate entity is not significant. The
Group performs appropriate and sufficient credit verification
procedures for every credit sale transaction to minimise credit
risk. There is no significant concentration of credit risk within
the Group.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers
of property units and provided guarantees to secure obligations
of such purchasers for repayments. Detailed disclosure of these
guarantees is made in note 41(a).

The credit risk of the Group’s trade receivables and other
financial assets, which mainly comprise cash and short term
deposits, other receivables and amounts due from related
parties, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are all classified
under stage 1 for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. The loss allowance provision for restricted cash, pledged
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets and amounts due from related parties were not
significant as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s business, the
Group ensures that it maintains sufficient cash and credit lines
to meet its liquidity requirements. The Group’s objective is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank and other borrowings. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group will have adequate
sources of funding to finance its operation needs and manage
its liquidity position.

The maturity profile of the Group'’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
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undiscounted payments, was as follows:

5]

2022
—E-CE
In the
Within third to
one year or Inthe fifth years, Over
on demand second year inclusive  five years Total
RE=Z
R—FUR BRE
FERER REZF BREEMFE KRRIF #3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TRT ARETRT ARETR
Interest-bearing bank and other STESRTREMER
borrowings 11,888,484 11,652,634 4,081,886 1,585,468 29,208,472
Senior notes and domestic bonds BAZERIERES 4,944,920 7,660,860 6,646,261 - 19,252,041
Trade and bills payables BIRNFERER 10,409,743 366,464 45,327 - 10,821,534
Financial liabilities included in other &t A Bt 5078 &2 e 5t
payables and accruals ERANERAR
(excluding lease liabilities) (REAERIN 9,177,861 - - - 9,177,861
Lease liabilities HEAR 10,820 8,428 11,198 - 30,446
Due to related parties FEfBRE H 2OA 2,583,308 - - - 2,583,308
39,015,136 19,688,386 10,784,672 1,585,468 71,073,662
Financial guarantees issued: BEHBMBER:
Maximum amount guaranteed REERTIE 28,685,013 - - - 28,685,013
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. BI &R & IR B A2 K& IS ()
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) FEHESRKE &)
2021
—E = —kE
In the
Within In the third to
one year or second fifth years, Over five
on demand year inclusive years Total
RE=ZF
R—FLR FhE
FHRER REZF BREEEMFE RRAEF w5t

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETE

Interest-bearing bank and other FERITREMER

borrowings 9,977,133 9,025,815 11,250,777 2,491,646 32,745,371
Senior notes and domestic bonds BAZBERIERNES 7,765232 4,608,418 11,146,624 - 23,520,274
Trade and bills payables L) ANERENES 14,440,800 260,865 80,635 - 14,782,300
Financial liabilities included in other &+ A EL 4t {5 2008 &% =

payables and accruals ERANeRAE

(excluding lease liabilities) (HEEERIN) 11,171,333 = = - 11,171,333
Lease liabilities HEAE 66,406 56,689 134,215 220,230 477,540
Due to related parties JEf BB A 30E 2,612,018 = = - 2,612,018

46,032,922 13,951,787 22,612,251 2,711,876 85,308,836

Financial guarantees issued: BELMBEER

Maximum amount guaranteed BRERNE 26,634,917 = - - 26,634917
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total equity. Net debt includes total
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and
domestic bonds (as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less cash and bank balances (including
restricted cash, time deposits and pledged deposits). Capital
comprises all components of equity (i.e., share capital, non-
controlling interests and reserves). The Group aims to maintain
a healthy and stable net gearing ratio.

LR RS

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

47.

48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The net gearing ratios as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021 were as follows:

47.

PHERREE A ERBER®

BEAREE (%)

RZEBE-__—_F+_A=+—HEZ=-Z
——F+-_A=+—B®FEELEN
T

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B = ARBTR AR®TE

Interest-bearing bank and FTEESRITREME K

other borrowings 30 26,995,112 29,522,722
Senior notes and domestic bonds BREERNKIENES 31 17,162,036 20,675,612
Less: Cash and bank balances W BE RBITERES 27 (15,016,058) (20,005,869)
Net debt FETS 29,141,090 30,192,465
Total equity et 4 ER 36,625,241 42,707,111
Net gearing ratio FARELE 80% 71%

== /

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 48. M EHAIREIA

In January 2023, Xiamen Zhongjun publicly issued the first
tranche of 2023 medium-term notes in the PRC, with an
aggregate principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000 for a term of
three years and coupon rate of 4.1% per annum, which are
fully guaranteed by China Bond Insurance Co., Ltd. (&5
13 % & IR 5 B BR 2 7)) with irrevocable joint and several
liability.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
REEEERARAT I — T _FEFR

RZZE—_=F—RF EMFERTPEHA
FE1T2023FEFE —HHPHZE - A&
#a%8 & AR 1,500,000,0007T @ AH=
F o EAMNEETFI1%  BPEREH
HERERDBRA ARG EZET A
HEBTTRBER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-HA=+—H

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 49. NN R Z B AR R &R
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the REIPEHKR - AR FI 2B EHRIRFZIOT -
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
—E—= —E_—%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBARMNEE = =
Due from subsidiaries & W B 88 2 B 3R0R 2,420,364 2,234,898
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 2,420,364 2,234,898
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TR RIE 494 443
Due from subsidiaries A S NGIE 20,581,190 23,544,802
Cash and cash equivalents L RIBESEEY 127,263 33,053
Total current assets MEEERE 20,708,947 23,578,303
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Other payables and accruals H b e FRIB R FEET B R 255,708 279,308
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ 88817 M EME R 3,890,154 564,738
Senior notes BhRER 3,419,846 3,158,778
Total current liabilities mEEEERE 7,565,708 4,002,824
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFHR 13,143,239 19,575,479
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBEMRE
LIABILITIES 15,563,603 21,810,377
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings =t 58877 & Efth B 5% - 3,562,410
Senior notes BRERE 12,131,502 13,516,834
Total non-current liabilities EmBaEeRE 12,131,502 17,079,244
Net assets BEFRE 3,432,101 4,731,133
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIRA 365,138 365,064
Reserves (note) fE s (M EE) 3,066,963 4,366,069
Total equity M AERE 3,432,101 4,731,133
Wong Chiu Yeung Huang Youquan
= B
Director Director
S -
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R EE

31 December 2022 —E—_—F+—-_A=+—H

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

49. NN R 2 BI AR R 2R ()

Note: MizE :
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: INTRARIFERE
Share Exchange
premium fluctuation ~ Share option Retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
EXKH B E
R EER 1] 1] REEF @t
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(i ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 —Z_—%—Hf—H 287,304 9,936 92,670 2,008,319 2,398,229
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ERZEWA / (E18) %5
for the year - (556,264) - 3,585,523 3,029,259
2020 final dividend “ZCRERERE (287,304) - - (352,679) (639,983)
2021 interim dividend “TERhERE 12 - - - (421,436) (421,436)
At 31 December 2021 and R-Z-_—%+-fF=+—H
1 January 2022 k=—Z-_—F—H—H - (546,328) 92,670 4,819,727 4,366,069
Total comprehensive income/(loss) £RZ KA/ (E518) 258
for the year - 335,755 - (1,428,768) (1,093,013)
Issue of shares for scrip dividend ~ BARR X 2217 R& 572 - - = 572
2021 final dividend T -FRERE 12 (572) - - (206,093) (206,665)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-_—_F+-F=1+—H - (210,573) 92,670 3,184,866 3,066,963

50. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the board of directors on 30 March 2023.

50. #LEB SRR

AP HHRERER
EEFESHERTETH -

—E-=F=ZA=+H

In case of any inconsistency between the English text and Chinese translation of the

financial statements, the English text shall prevail.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEPHERE

TREAAEERERAYRFEZFEERE
E - A KABARTERIFZERER T
A CTEZERAWBERE M BTENRE L
TEHEE 287 -

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities, perpetual capital
instruments and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below:

RESULTS E4

Year ended 31 December

HBEt-A=t—HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—B--f ZT--f ZTTF FTNF ZFTNF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTRT ARETT ARETT AR%T:T
REVENUE 6 26,705,112 37,737,447 32,572,605 21,369,802 17,782,886
Cost of sales SHE KA (22,284,779)  (29,563,825) (24,708,788) (15,477,931) (11,636,290)
Gross profit ES 4,420,333 8,173,622 7,863,817 5,891,871 6,146,596
Other income and gains HA Rk 820,387 769,663 1,252,155 1,155,838 386,637
Changes in fair value of REYENRERE
investment properties, net FEE (25,422) 223,071 596,565 1,404,861 1,082,540
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAT (1,239,106)  (1,039,303) (758,913) (516,031) (398,421)
Administrative expenses THRX (1,781,374)  (2,056,594)  (2,094,020)  (1,616,310)  (1,298,702)
Other expenses Hibpix = (149,251) (255,414) (92,243) =
Finance costs BT & A (921,124) (825,919) (682,775) (528,142) (401,686)
Share of profits and losses of: FEME TSI & EEF R EE
Joint ventures BE AT (434,972) 570,209 607,657 181,599 513,275
Associates ko/N| (19,294) 70,427 33,975 (27,168) 22,217
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR A 819,428 5,735,925 6,563,047 5,854,275 6,052,456
Income tax expense BIERY (1,020,120) (2,067,114) (2,117,421) (1,830,809) (2,375,633)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ExER(EHE) (200,692) 3,668,811 4,445,626 4,023,466 3,676,823
Attributable to TFBIRFEL -
Owners of the parent FARHER A 24,544 3,070,022 3,803,238 3,510,045 3,385,284
Holders of perpetual capital KABRTERBA
instruments - - - 35,408 58,363
Non-controlling interests FEERR R (225,236) 598,789 642,388 478,013 233,176
(200,692) 3,668,811 4,445,626 4,023,466 3,676,823
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFMBRE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, PERPETUAL CAPITAL

INSTRUMENTS AND NON-CONTROLLING TSR
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E--f ZE-—-F ZEZTF ZT-NF ZT)NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETRL
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 193,964,068 195,012,986 170,614,421 149,382,054 101,490,775
TOTAL LIABILITIES BeE (157,338,827) (152,305,875) (131,461,807) (119,095,867) (79,351,368)
PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS XA EAXIE - - - - (700,000)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS RS (16,914,552)  (20,920,751)  (18,154,211) (12,707,177)  (5,957,221)
19,710,689 21,786,360 20,998,403 17,579,010 15,482,186
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